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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17-A

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
'AND SECTION 141 OF THE

ORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. For the fiscal year ended: December 31, 2003

2. SEC Identification Number: PW-102

3. BIR Tax Identification Number: 350-000-101-528

4. Name of Issuer as specified in its Charter: Manila Electric Company ; &

XA FHIVTILRD

o

5. Country of Incorporation: Phlllppmes

|

6. (SEC use only) Industry Classification Code:

§
e

7. Address of principa’l office: Lopez Building, Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City
Postal Code: 0300

8. Telephone Numbers: 631-5571 and 631-5572 Area Code: 0300

9. Former name or former address: Not applicable

-10. Securltles regnstered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC or
Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA: (as of December 31, 2003)

Number of Shares of
Common Stock Outstanding
Title of Each Class (Par Value at P10.00 per share)
Class “A” 599,556,877
Class “B” 399,704,584
Total 999,261,461

Amount of Debt Outstanding: P100.6 billion as of December 31, 2003
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11. Are any or all of these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange:

YES [x] NO [ ]

|

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities
listed therem'

Philippine Stock Exchange Cla.;s “A” and “B”

|

12. Check whether the issuer:

(a) has fi led all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC
and SRC Rule 17 thereunder or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule
11(a)-ﬂ thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of The Corporation

- Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or
for such shorter perlod that the registrant was required to file such
reports);

YES [x\] NO [ ]

(b) has beem subject to such filing requnrements for the past mnety_
(90) dayS'

YES [x] NO[ ]

13. State the aggrLgate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates

~ of the reglstrgnt. The aggregate market value shall be computed by

reference to the price at which the stock was sold, or the average bid and

asked prices qf such stock, as of a specified date within 60 days prior to

the date of filing. If a determination as to whether a particular person or

entity is an aff‘ liate cannot be made without involving unreasonable effort

and expense, the aggregate market value of the common stock held by
non-affiliates may be calculated on the basis of assumptions reasonable

under the circumstance, provided the assumptions are set forth in this

Form.

The aggregate number of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the issuer as of
March 1, 2004 consists of 604,443,401 Class “A” shares and 402,991,906 Class “B” - ‘
shares. As of that date, the aggregate market values of Class “A” and “B” shares amount
to P5.4 billion and P12.5 billion, respectively, computed based on closing prices per Class
“A” and Class “B” share of P20.00 and P34.00, respectively.
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- DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BYBEFEBENBE

|

The following documents are incorporated by reference in this report:

(a) Summary of Land Account

(b) Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedules

PART I - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Business
(1) Business Development

The name |of the issuer is Manila Eiectnc Company, also known as
MERALCO, a corporatlon duly organized on May 5, 1919 under the laws of the '
Republic of the Ph|ﬂ|ppmes. ,

Meralcos subsndlarles are Meralco Engineering Services Corporation
(MIESCOR), Corgorate Information Solutions, Inc. (CIS), Rockwell Land
Corporation, Meralco Energy, Inc. (MEI) and e-Meralco Ventures, Inc. (e-
MVI), Asian Center for Energy Management Corporation (ACEM), Meralco

Financial Services Corporatlon (FINSERVE)

Meralco Industnal Engineering Services Corporation (MIESCOR) was
incorporated on D‘ecember 5, 1973. It is one of the Ieadmg engineering and
construction firms in the country with field of expertise in power generation,
transmission and distribution, industrial plants, water resources and
telecommumcatlons With its thirty (30) years of service, MIESCOR has not
only served Mera!co s engineering, design and construction needs but also
actively part:c:pabed in both government and private sectors’ infrastructure
developments partlcularly in the power, water and telecommunication
industries. - MIESCOR's operations is further strengthened by its four (4)
subsidiaries. Mnes:cor Builders, Inc. (MBI), a construction firm involved in the
operation and maintenance of electric transmission, substation and
distribution faC|||t‘|es and other services; Landbees Corporation, a general
services corporatlon specializing in buildings, grounds, fleet and work tools
and equipment repalr and maintenance; Clark Electric Development
Corporation (CEDQ), a joint venture with Clark Development Corporation
which develops and operates the electric distribution system in the Clark
Special Economic Zone in Pampanga, and; Miescor, U.S.A., a subsidiary based
in San Jose, Cahforma which provides design and engineering services for

clients in the Unlted States.
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Corporate Information Solutions, Inc. (CIS), incorporated in 1974, is a
leading provide‘r of information technology services and integrated business
solutions, focus‘mg on the functional areas that are critical to customer’s
business contmunty, growth and profitability. The year 2003 was a year of
reformation anﬂ strengthening of core values for CIS. It went through a
major reorgamzatlon in the management level, allowing it to streamline its
operations and Fransform CIS to a more “lean and mean organization”. CIS
- focused on |mpr‘ovmg its back-door operations for its Bayad Center business,
making it a payment collection service more efficient and secure. For its
external . accounts, CIS has successfully expanded its technical support
capabilities and bagged more projects for multinational accounts, making CIS

a global playeri in the IT outsourcing industry.

Rockwell Land Corporation is a joint venture between Meralco, Benpres
“Holdings Corporatlon and First Philippine Holdings Corporation. Its former
name was “Flrst Philippine Realty and Development Corporation”
incorporated on August 11, 1975 and was renamed “Rockwell Land
Corporation” whuch was approved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on April 20, 1995. It is a property development company
initially tasked to develop the 15.5-hectare Rockwell Center into a prime
residential and Fommercnal area. Construction of its newest residential
tower, “The Manansala" is in progress. Rockwell Land expects to top-off the .
- 41-storey tower ahead of schedule by the 2™ Quarter of 2004 and deliver the
entire project to its clients by mid-2005. With the successful pre-selling of
the Manansala pr‘oject, the company is now finalizing plans to roll out its next
residential condommlum called the Joya lofts and towers, an 800-unit twin
tower project that will link directly into the Power Plant Mall. The Power
Plant Mall oontmues to be patronized by the targeted A & B segment of the
market. The companys relentless efforts to focus on strengthemng its
customer’s onalty and patronage had translated into growth in the mall's
sales levels partncularly in the fashion and specialty stores category.

Meralco Energy, Inc. (MEI), provider of loadside energy services to
Meraico customel"s, was officially formed in June 2000. Starting operations
with preventive mamtenance of customer substations, the company grew to
include all chemlcal and electric tests, emergency troubleshooting, supply and
installation of major electrical equipment and minor construction, Meralco
Energy, Inc. endeavors to become the Philippines’ dominant Energy Service -
Company (ESCO)\ by pursing its mission of providing all types of energy
services to industrial and commercial users of electricity.
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e-Meralco Ventures, (e-MVI) was registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commnssnon on June 22, 2000. It creates optimal value to Meralico
shareholders and customers by leveraging the power company’'s physical
(infrastructure), intellectual (knowledge and human resource) and digital
assets. e-MVI seeks to become the first true “carrier’s carrier” in the country
by providing the Felecommunications infrastructure that will enable local and
international carriers, internet service providers, data centers, other telecom
service providers and businesses of all sizes to transmit data over a robust,

reliable, scalable, secure and cost-effective communications highway.

Asian Center for Energy Management Corporation (ACEM), was
formally mcorporated on November 2001. The Center was created with the
vision of becommg the premier institution of learning for the power industry
in the Asian reglon. It aims to empower utility managers, utility engineers,
power customers and other practitioners through knowledge sharing and
policy deployment. :

- Meralco Financial Serwces Corporation (FINSERVE) was incorporated
in March 2002 as\ a way for Meralco to enhance shareholder value creation
and to expand customer service offerings through finance-related products
and services. Shortly after FINSERVE’s incorporation, Meralco forged an
alliance with Umonbank to develop Lumina Visa, the first utilities-specialized
credit card is also an international Visa credit card accepted in over 16 million
establishments worldwide. Along with the standard features of an
international Visa credit card, Lumina Visa aims to consolidate all of a typical
household’s utlhty‘ bills - under an auto-charge arrangement - into just one

bill, thus, providing payment convenience to its customers.

(2] Business of Issuer

The principal business of the issuer is the distribution and supply of
electric energy. Trhe market is categorized into four (4) major customer
classes and the relative contribution to sales of each is as follows:

CUSTOMER CLASS 2003 2002 2001

RESIDENTIAL | 35.78% 35.72% 35.87%
COMMERCIAL 35.14% 34.89% 34.84%
INDUSTRIAL | 28.49% 28.75% 28.66%
STREETLIGHTS 0.59% 0.64% 0.63%
TOTAL | 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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The principal sources of power of the iSsuer, and their relative
contribution to its total requirements, are as follows:

SUPPLIER 2003 2002 2001
HATIIINAl POWER CORPORATION 58.59% 64.65% | 89.51%
DURACOM 1.06% 3.98% 3.93%
PHIL. POWER DEV'T. CORPORATION 0.01% 0.02% 0.02%
QUEZON POWER 8.21% 7.84% 6.54%
FIRST GAS POWER | 3212% | 2351% | 0.00%
TOTAL | 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00%

Franchise

The franchise area of MERALCO is approximately 9337. square
kilometers. Th|s covers twenty-three (23) cities and eighty-eight (88)
mumcnpalltaes in Luzon as of 2003. :

Grant of Consolidated 25-year Franchise
Last June 9 2003, Republic Act 9209, grantmg Meralco a franchise “to
construct, operate and maintain a distribution system for the conveyance of
electric power to the end-users in the cities/ municipalities of Metro Manila,
Bulacan, ' Cavite \and Rizal, and certain c:tles/mumcnpahtles/barangays in
Batangas, Lagunz‘n, Quezon and Pampanga”, took effect. The franchise is for
25-years and coqsolldates 50 previously held franchises covering 111 cntles
and municipalities located in Metro Manila and six other provinces. :
RA 9209 |L the first franchnse granted by the Phlllppme Congress
- following the passage of Republic Act 9136, or the Electric Power Industry
Reform Act of 2001 (EPIRA). Under EPIRA, Congress has the exclusive power
to grant electric dlstrlbutnon franchises, repealing Section 43 of Presidential
Decree 269, which had delegated franchising powers to the National

Electrification Cor‘nmssmn
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Unbundling of Meralco’s Tariffs

In an Order dated May 30, 2003, the Energy Regulatory Commission
(ERC) approved new unbundled rate schedules for Meralco, which the
company implemented starting June 2003. The new rates unbundle or
itemize the monthly bills to customers according to cost and function, or into
generation, transmission, distribution, metering, supply, and universal
charges. The rates will show which portion of the bill goes to Meraico and
which are pass-through charges that Meralco collects on behalf of other

entities.

The unbundling of tariffs of distribution utilities such as Meralco was
mandated by Section 36 of EPIRA.

.Petition‘for‘a General Tariff Adjustment

Last October 10, 2003, Meralico filed with the ERC a petition to update
the company'’s tar‘lffs to more recent cost levels, through a 13.58 centavos per
kWh adjustment of its charges. In its petition, the company said that its
prevailing rates wgre based on 1998 assets appraised in 1999 and on audited
financial statemeqts for the year 2000. On the other hand, the proposed rate
adjustment was based on 2002 assets appraised in 2003 and on financial

statements for the year 2002,

In its fi ling,\ Meralco also asked the ERC to provisionally approve the
petition as the company ‘s need for adjustment is urgent. Meralco’s credit
rating has been dpwngraded at least four times since 2002 by Standard &
Poor’s and it currently stands at “CC”. At the same time, without an
adjustment, Meralcos Return on Rate Base (RORB) for 2003 had been

projected to reach only 7.8 percent, to fall further to 7.1 percent by 2004.

- In an Order dated November 27, 2003, the ERC provisionally allowed
Meralco to adjust |ts rates by an average of 12 centavos per kWh beginning
January 2004. The Commission has so far held two hearings on the petition,
last December 22, 2003 and January 12, 2004,

Shortly after the first hearing, the Freedom from Debt Coalition (FDC),
along with a number of party-list congressmen, filed with Supreme Court a
" petition for a Tem\porary Restraining Order (TRO) or a Status Quo Order
against the lmplementatlon of Meralco’s rate adjustment last December 23,
2003. The High Court subsequently issued a Status Quo Order on the rate
adjustment last January 13, 2004, in which it directed parties to submit
comments within 1(? days and set Oral Arguments on the case for January 27,
2004. In compliance with the Court’s Order, the company has suspended the
implementation of the rate adjustment provisionally-approved by the ERC.
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After hea‘ring oral arguments from counsels representing the FDC, the

ERC, the Office of the Solicitor General, and Meralco, the High Court directed -

the parties to Sl.llbmit their respective Memoranda by February 16, 2004. The
matter is still pending before the Supreme Court.

Recovery of Deferrc\zd Purchased Power Adjustments

In April 2902 the ERC ordered Meralco to stop collecting any deferred
or unbilled Purchased Power Adjustments (“PPA”), pending an accounting
and evaluation hy the Commission. The unbilled PPA relates to a portion of
purchased power costs in 2000 and 2001 that were not immediately passed

through to customers, estimated at P9.3 billion as of September 2002. The

ERC questioned the manner in which Meralco has been recovering its costs on.

a deferred basis.

Following lits evaluation, the ERC has so far allowed Meralco to recover
a portion of these costs amounting to P8.1 billion over approximately three
years, broken down as follows: collection of the P5.76 billion of unbilled PPA

Loy
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commencing Apnl 2003 at P0.0875 per kWh, collection of the P835 million of

unbilled PPA commencmg June 2003 at P0.0127 per kWh, and collection of
P1.5 billion commencmg February 2004 at P0.0224 per kWh. Meanwhile,

discussions with ERC are on-going regarding amounts related to the’

transmission line/fees of an independent power producer.

Customer Refund
In April 2003, the Philippine' Supreme Court affirmed an carlier

November 2002 decision that income taxes should not form part of Meralco’s

operating expenses for purposes of calculating its return on rate base, or
RORB, and has ordered the company to refund an estimated P30 billion
representing prmcupally the income tax component of its rates from February

1994 to May 2003

- In con5|derat|on of the logistical requirements of the refund process
and the company\s ability to fund the payout, the company has proposed to
pay the refund over four phases, starting with the company’s smallest
customers.  To dete, the ERC has approved the mechanics for implementing
Phases One to Three of the refund process. Phase One refunds to residential
and general customers consuming up to 100 kWh of electricity per month
began last June 2003 and was completed in August 2003. Phase Two refunds
to residential customers consuming 101 to 300 kWh per month began in
September 2003 and was completed in December 2003. Meanwhile, Phase
Three refunds to [residential and general service customers more than 300

kWh began in January 2004 and would be completed by December 2004.

;
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The general mechanics for Phase Four of the refund process, which
would cover Iarge commercial and industrial customers of the company, is
now pending before the ERC. The company shall be submitting more details
on Phase Four of the refund in subsequent filings.

Distribution_methods of the products or services

|

After its generatmg plants were sold to the government in 1979,
Meralco’s core business became electric distribution. v

" Power is recelved at 230 kVand 114 kv at 11 ma]or delivery points and
distribution volteges at minor points of delivery. From the major delivery
points, 115 kV subtransmrssron circuits bring power to 60 major distribution
substations and eventually to 47 distribution substations and primary served
consumers.

D|str|but|on is predominantly an overhead radial system with provision
for mterconnectlon, but there are pockets of underground distribution and
secondary network systems. Primary distribution voltages are mainly 34.5 kV
wye grounded, 13 8 kV deita, 13.2 kV wye grounded, 8.3 kV wye grounded,
6.24 kV wye grounded and 4.8 kV delta. Utilization voltages are 230 volts

single-phase or tHree-phase and 460 volts. System frequency is 60 Hz.

There is no publicly-announced new product or service being
undertaken or de\‘reloped by the Company and that no expenses are mcurred
in relation thereto. _

Competition

Electric drstrlbutlon has long been considered a natural monopoly.
With the enactment, however, of RA 9136 or the Electric Power Industry
Reform Act of 2001, the electric distribution business is now unbundiled into
two: distribution | (wires) which remains a natural monopoly and thus,
regulated, and supply, which is no longer consrdered a public utility and thus,
will be open and competitive. _

There will be a phased approach towards retail competition, or
competition in the supply business. This will start for customers with loads of
at least 1 MW, after certain conditions precedent specified by the law have
been met, and wrthm a period not exceeding three years. Until such time,

Meralco’s monopoly in the distribution wires and supply remains.
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Sources and availability of raw materials .

On Novem‘nber 21, 1994, MERALCO entered into a 10-year power supply
contract with National Power Corporation (NPC) commencing on January 1,
1995. Althougn the implementation of the contract had brought about
disputes between MERALCO and NPC, the parties entered into mediation talks
to resolve and settle the issues. The mediation discussions eventually
resulted in a Settlement Agreement, which was signed on July 15, 2003 and
will take effect upon approval by the ERC. Currently, MERALCO is negotiating
with NPC/PSALM on a Transition Supply Contract, pursuant to RA 9136.
(PSALM refers to the Power Sector Assets and Liabilities Management

Corporation created by RA 9136).

MERALCO |also entered into power purchase agreements separately
with Quezon Power (Philippines) Limited Co. (QPPL) on august 12, 1994, with
First Gas Power‘ Corporation (FGPC) on March 14, 1995 and with FGP
Corporation on January 9, 1997 (FGPC and FGP Corporation are collectively
referred to as “First Gas”). Under the terms of the agreements, these
independent power producers (IPPs) are committed to sell and deliver -
electric power and energy to MERALCO and MERALCO is committed to buy
electric power from them, subject to certain terms and conditions specified
therein. The agreements shall individually terminate on the date of the 25
anniversary of the commercial operation dates of the power plants of these

IPPs.

}

The state-owned NPC continues to be MERALCO’s main power suppher. -
However, since QPPL and First Gas began commercial operations in 2000,
more of MERALCO (3 energy requirements has been sourced from the IPPs in
recent years. 2003 in particular saw the IPPs accounting for approxumately

41%% of MERALCO's energy requirements.

* Settlement Agreement with NPC '

In July 2003, Meralco reached a settlement of a dispute relating to its
“take-or-pay” obligation under its contract with NPC. In 1994, Meralco
entered into a 10‘year Contract for the Sale of Electricity (CSE) with the NPC
under which the company committed to purchase minimum volumes of
electricity annuatly from the NPC, starting January 1995. Although the
company purchased less power than the stated minimum volume or quantity
beginning January 2002, the company has asserted that Meralco was not
obligated to purcnase the contracted volumes originally stated, as a result of
failures by NPC to comply with its obligations under the contract to complete

construction of specified transmission facilities and turn over to its customers

currently supplied directly by NPC.
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Under the settlement, Meralco’s obligation to NPC would be reduced
and the company would pay NPC a net amount of P20 billion spread out over
a period of app\roxmately five years. The reduction of Meralco’s power
purchase comml‘tment to NPC will allow the company to source more of its
power needs from IPPs, which will permit them to operate at more optimal
levels and thereby reducing Meralco’s cost of power. These cost savings have
been estimated to more than offset the additional charges resulting from the
settlement amount with NPC. Thus, consumers are expected to benefit from
the settlement in the form of lower rates and Meralco expects increase in the

demand for its services.

Last November 2003, NPC and Meralco simultaneousiy filed separate
petitions asking the ERC to approve the terms of the settlement agreement.
‘The matter is still pending before the Commission.

~ Transition Supply Contract

. RA 9136 stipulates that NPC is reqmred to submit to the ERC for
approval Transntlon Supply Contracts (TSCs) with distribution utilities. Under
the said law, utllmes having TSCs with NPC may nominate their contract
demand. MERA_LCO and NPC/PSALM are presently negotiating such a TSC.

Transactions with and/or dependence on_related parties

Transactions with affiliates consist principally of purchases of electrical
equipment, contracted services, sharing of facilities and maintenance of
power station and project advances.

Effect of existing or probable government regulations on the business

The Electric Power Industry Reform Act of 2001 or RA 9136 was signed
into law on June 8, 2001 and took effect on June 26, 2001. The
Implementing ques and Regulations (IRR) was approved by the Joint
Congressional Poywer Commission (JCPC) and signed by the Secretary of
Energy last February 27, 2002.

|

The Act and its IRR have an impact on the industry as a whole and the
Company in partlcular, providing for, among others: (1) the privatization of
the ownership anql/or operation of NPC’s generation and transmission assets,
contracts and fupctmns, (2) the structural and functional unbundling of
electric power mdustry participants’ business activities into generation,
transmission, dqtrlbutlon and supply, separating regulated and non-
regulated busmes\»s activities; (3) the introduction of competition in the
generation and supply of power; and (4) the unbundling and rationalization

of electricity rates and charges.

In compliance with the Act and the IRR, MERALCO implemented its
duly-approved unbundled rate schedule starting June 2003.
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RA 9136 and the IRR also provide for the following: (1) distribution
utilities, such as‘ Meralco, will provide open and nondiscriminatory access to
their distribution systems within three years from the effectivity of the Act,
subject to certaln conditions precedent; (2) distributors shall be allowed to
recover stranded contract costs, subject to review and verification by the
ERC for falrness and reasonableness; (3) distributors shall file a Business
Separation and Urnbundlmg Plan with the ERC on December 26, 2002; (4) NPC
shall segregate\ its subtransmission assets for disposal to qualified
distributors within two years from the effectivity of the Act; (5) NPC shall file,
with the ERC within six months from the effectivity of the Act, Transition
Suplly Contracts negotiated with distributors; and, (6) the Act, Transition
Supply Contracts negotiated with distributors; and, (f) distribution companies
may engage in related businesses, provided that up to 50% of the income
from the related business shall be used to lower wheeling charges.

Business Separation and Unbundling Plan

Section 36 of RA 9136 and its implementing Rules and Regulations
mandate electnc\power industry participants to structurally and functlonally
unbundle their busmess activities and thus file a business separation of such
provisions, the ERC promulgated the Business Separation Guideline, which
provides the framework for the plans to be filed by the industry participants.
The deadline for the filing has been set to six (6) months after the December
5, 2003 effectlwty date of the Guideline. MERALCO currently has-a Motion
pending before ERC asking for the reconsideration of certain provnsaons of the
Guideline. '

Costs and effects of compliance with environment laws

It is in electric generation where the cost and effects of compliance
with environmental laws would be significant. Meralco, as a distributor, has
endeavored through the contracts it has signed with IPPs to promote
environmentally elean fuel and technology. First Gas Power which has a
power supply contract with Meralco will utilize natural gas from Camago-
Malampaya field. Another IPP which has contract with Meralco, Quezon
Power, will be burmng coal but using technology which allows the plant to

meet strict envrronmental standards or emissions.

Considering that the Company is engaged in distribution of electric
power, the costs of compliance with envnronmental laws are being incurred

by these IPPs.

Number of the registrant’s employees

Total count of employees for the period ending 2003 stands at 5,824
and is projected to be maintained at this level up to the end of year 2004.
Employees of the company are classified according to the role and function
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they perform. The biggest group having a 39% share in the total employee
population is held by the Skilled workers numbering about 2,285. Next
biggest group |is the Leadship with 1,197 employees, or 21% of the
population. These are followed closely by the remaining groups namely:
Office Operation personnel with 1,115 employees (19%); Professional with
974 employees (17%); and General Administrative with 253 employees
(4%).

Meralco has two labor unions, namely, the Meralco Employees and-
Workers Association (MEWA) and the First Line Association of Meralco
Supervisory and Employees (FLAMES), for Rank-and-File (R&F) and.
Supervisory employees, respectively, R&F includes employees in PG I-VI
numbering 1 678‘whlle Supervisory are those in PG VII-XII numbering 3,380.
In the last two CBA negotiations (FLAMES: signed in December 2002; MEWA:
signed in December 2003), both went smoothly with the terms and conditions
of the CBA amlcably settled by both parties. :

Both CBA for the two labor unions will end on November 30, 2005. The
MEWA negotlatlons held last December 2003 was for the remaining 2 years of
the 5-year CBA 5|gned on December 21, 2000. On the other hand, FLAMES
signed the 3-year CBA last December 20, 2002.

ltem 2. Properties

Attached are the following:

¢ Update of Leased Offices :
. Schedulp of Property Plant and Equipment
e Update of Leased Substations

Summal"y of Land Account (location and description)

The real properties enumerated in the Summary of Land Account are
used as sites for the Company’s transmission lines, substations,
operating/service centers, and prmcnpal/dlstrlct/ branch offices.

With respect to limitation of ownership, all property, real, personal and
mixed, tangible and intangible owned by the Company as of December 31,
- 1957 and all prdpeny, real, personal and mixed, tangible and intangible
which may hereafter be acquired by it, situated in the Republic of the
Philippines, and necessary or appropriate to the public utility plant and
business of the Cpmpany and to its operation as a going concern, excepting
such property as expressly excepted and excluded from the lien and
operation of the indenture, are mortgaged in favor of the Bank of the
Philippine Islands (formerly Peoples Bank and Trust Company) as Trustee for

the benefit of bon‘dholders.
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003

ASSETS

IN SERVICE
LAND & LAND IMPROVEMENTS
BUILDING AND IMPROVEMENT
STATION EQUIPMENT
TOWERS & FIXTURES
POLES & FIXTURES
"OVERHEAD TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
LINE TRANSFORMERS &! INSTALLATION
CONSUMER METERS & INSTALLATION
STREETLIGHTING & SIGNAL SYSTEM
OFFICE FURNITURE & FIXTURES
TOOLS & SHOP EQUIPMENTS
COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT
TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT
OTHER TANGIBLE PROPERTY
CONTRIBUTION IN AID OF CONSTRUCTION

TOTAL

NOT IN SERVICE
LAND & LAND IMPROVEMENTS
BUILDING AND IMPROVEMENT
CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS

TOTAL

Prepared By :

R .G A S
R. A. DE CASTRO/

17
. MARCQ3JO

Reviewed By :

LOCATION

Various Locations
Various Locations
Various Locations
Various Locations
Various Locations
Various Locations
Various Locations
Various Locations
Various Locations
Various Locations

* Various Locations

Various Locations
Various Locations

Various Locations -

BALANCE
December 31, 2003

23,302,516,036
. 4,751,689,479
21,607,622,523
68,157,699
16,772,974,197
13,731,359,599
16,360,084,024
11,518,933,854
581,976,301
(226,782,953).
332,485,478
4,657,025,281
., 1,213,853,882
3,084,186,119
(491,824,827)

117,264,256,692

6,187,669,652

6,187,669,652

W Il

R. G. ORLINO °
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
PROPERTY ACCOUNTING - APPRAISAL & DEPRECIATION
SUMMARY OF LAND AND LAND RIGHTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003
» T.C.T. AREA IN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.
BOTOCAN TRANSMISSION LINES (110 KV)
Santol Street- E. Rodriguez Sr. Blvd. Route 46811 24,493
E. Rodriguez Sr. Bivd. - San Juan River Route 35913 42,919
San Juan River - Katipunan Ave. Route 46812 219,076
_ 35915 54,250
273,326
Katipunan Ave. - Marikina River Route 35915 36,405
: 46813 11,074
47,479
Gardner Transmission Line Right of Way S-79863 3,975
Bgy. Sucat, Muntiniupa City
Bgy. San Pedro, Makati City 6937 . 8,609
Guadalupe-Tejeros-Olympia Carline '
Pasig River - Lopez Jaena Street 6938 13,278
Bgy. Sta. Rosa, Pasig City 193 - 817
{Napindan Hydraulic Project) 14,095
Bgy. Camarin, Caloocan City
Transmission Right of Way 22310 2,713
Ibayo-Napindan, Taguig, M. M. OCT-691 215
ibayo-Napindan Transmission Right-of-Way
P. Naval St., Bgy. Malaya; Pililia, Rizal 3254 284
Bgy. Pinagkamaligan, Bgy. Pablacion, Tanay, Rizal Lot-1164 120
J. Abad Santos St. cor. Quirino St. Lot-1165 45
Tanay Extension Office 165
Sta. Mesa to Marikina tract of land
Sta. Ana to Junction, Pasig City tract of land

Page 1 of 17
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_ T.C.T. AREA IN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.

Bgy. Botocan, Majayjay, Laguna © T-92138 10,391
Site | - Substation Site
Botocan Substation
Bgy. Botocan, Majayjay, Laguna T-43563 18,909
Site Il - Trans. Right of Way 1431 4,741
Between Botocan & Balanas Liners 23,650
Bgy. Suyok (Kay Buto) Tanay, Rizal M-81342 337
Tanay Transmission Line Right-of-Way
Bgy. May-Iba, Antipolo City, Rizal 26774 1,170
Antipolo Transmission Line Right-of-Way
Kaayusan cor. Kaluwagan St. PT-84312 1,478
Karangalan Village, Santolan, Pasig city PT-84313 2,833
BOTOCAN 115KV LINE (Meralco Tower) 4,311
San Guillermo, Morong, Rizal no tct yet 573
oth Ave., cor Sevilla St. cor|D. Aquind St., 14962 1,300
Caloocan City
GRACE PARK SUBSTATION
Bgy. Camarin, Caloocan City 322885 8,962
CAMARIN SUBSTATION 322886 152

‘ 9,114
A. Flores St., Ermita, Manila 48429 1,639
ERMITA SUBSTATION
J. Rizal Street, Bgy. Pamplona, Las Pifias City S-79858 2,082
LAS PINAS SUBSTATION
Sta. Cecilla Road, Sitio Kubo-Kob, Bgy. Pamplona 40739 | 7,918
Mapulang Lupa, Las Pifias City
PAMPLONA SUBSTATION
Bgy. Ibayo, Las Piias, Metro Manila 47102 3,184
ZAPOTE SUBSTATION 62685 711

3,895

McKinley Road, Forbes Park, Makati City 64899 1,000
FORBES PARK SUBSTATION
Vito Cruz cor Kakarong Street, Makati City 8-51742 1,791

MAKATI SUBSTATION
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Fiie N, 228207
' T.C.T. AREA IN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.
Amorsolo St. cor Lumbang St., Kayamanan C S-79682 4,900
Subd., Makati City S§-51742 2,096
MALIBAY SUBSTATION 6,996
L. Guinto St. cor Dagonoy St., Malate, Manila 22048 369.2
MALATE SUBSTATION 22049 1029.7
1398.9
M. H. Del Pilar, L Roque, Bgy. Tugatog, T-94885 7,476
Provincial Road, Malabon
MALABON SUBSTATION
EDSA, Bgy. Wack-Wack, Mandaluyong City 12100 1,264
MANDALUYONG SUBSTATION (Wack-Wack) 12091 769
: 2,033
EDSA SHOEMART-SHANGRI-LA, Mandaiuyong City 9152 604
SM - SHANGRI- LA SUBSTATION 11368 500
- 1,104
Marikina (A.C. 34.5 Feederjine) N-39141 12,137
(From Miriam College to Bgy Malanday, N-46245 958
Marikina City) N-38764 3,197
_ . 6,292
St. Joseph St., Bgy. Barahgka, Marikina City N-30470 300
BARANGKA CHORILLO PROPERTY ' '
East Drive, Santan St., Marikina Heights, N-30467 5,050
Bgy. Parang, Marikina City
PARANG SUBSTATION
Guerilla St., Bgy. Sto. Nifio, Marikina City N-30472 700
- (Formerly Sto. Nifio Substation)
VACANT
Kapitan Moy Street, Sta. Elena, Marikina City N-30471 894
MELI SUBSTATION :
Katipunan Ave., Loyola Heights, Quezon City 46813 3,463
MARIKINA SUBSTATION '
Alabang Hills Subd. Road, Bgy. Cupang, 64471 3,553
Muntinlupa City '
ALABANG SERVICE CENTER
National Road, Bgy. Putatan, Muntinjupa City S-79861 1,560
MUNTINLUPA SUBSTATION
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T.C.T. AREA IN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.
Madrigal Business Park, Phase 3, T-210118 2,400
Bgy. Alabang, Muntinlupa|City :
AYALA-ALABANG SUBSTATION/BRANCH OFFICE
Plaza Dilao, Paco, Manila 61536 1,0344
PACO SUBSTATION 137786 209.9
180640 209.7
137785 209.8
137784 3423
137783 4226
180641 250
196644 896.6
69456 2456
152094 784.1
- 152095 1,142.2
152096 1,112.5
152097 164.5
7,024.2
Isla de Provisor, D. Romualdez St., Paco, Manila 146850 10,891
TEGEN SUBSTATION ‘
Quirino Ave., Bgy. Tambo, Parafiaque City S-79855 1,157
PARANAQUE SUBSTATION
Sun Valiey Subd., Bgy. La|Huerta, Parailaque City S-79859 1,613
SUN VALLEY SUBSTATION T-44095 - 583
2,196
Sta. Cecilia St., Bgy. San Dionisio, T-120937 6,898
Parafaque City
B. F. PARANAQUE SUBSTATION
S. Antonio Avenue/ Pilapil Sts., Bgy. Kapasigan, - 12098 1,450
Pasig City (41550)
PASIG SUBSTATION
Elisco Road, Kalawaan Sur, Taguig, Metro Manila 308397 5,021
(Inside National Steel Corp. Compound)
TAGUIG SUBSTATION
Canley Road cor Orambo Drive, Bgy. Bagong PT-105095 198.5
llog, Pasig City PT-105096 320
HILLCREST DRIVE SUBSTATION PT-105097 217
PT-105098 347.5
PT-105094 227
1,310
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T.C.T. AREA IN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.
EDSA, San Roque near BLTB Terminal, Pasay City 4385 2,500
PASAY SUBSTATION
P. Tuazon St., Gen. Romulo, Cubao, Quezon City 33825 1,970
CUBAO SUBSTATION
Along Banawe Ave. cor Del Monte Avenue, RT-53270(30108) 7922
Quezon City RT-53270(30108) 600
LA LOMA SUBSTATION 1,382.2
Quirino Hi-way, Novaliche§, Quezon City 63451 7.677
NOVALICHES SUBSTATION
P. dela Cruz St., Bgy. San Bartolome, N-136291 3,704
Novaliches, Quezon City
KAYBIGA SUBSTATION
Scout Santiago Rallos St., Diliman, Quezon City 17720 797.2
QUEZON CITY SUBSTATION 17721 784.7
' 1,581.9
Santol Street, Bgy. San Isidro, Quezon City 46811 10,569
STA. MESA SUBSTATION 107627 16.5
' 107628 82.8
107629 100.7
8116 9.7
110430 118.4
111780 804.9
115549 1,803.5
105119 1,063
14,568.5
N. Domingo St., San Juan, Metro Manila 42264 1,334
SAN JUAN SUBSTATION :
A. H. Lacson St. (formerly Gov. Forbes St) 28895 375
Sampaloc, Manila 28215 1,000
SAMPALOC SUBSTATION 1,375
Pedro Gil (Herran) Jesuitas St., Sta. Ana, Manila 59501 1068.48
STA. ANA SUBSTATION '
Cordillera Street, Bacood, Manila 81178 1,200
PANDACAN SUBSTATION
81211 7,303

Abad Santos cor New Antigoﬂo St., Tondo, Manila
NORTH PORT SUBSTATION
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‘ T.C.T. AREA IN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.
La Torre comer Narra Strqet, Tondo, Manila 59986 2218
PALOMAR SUBSTATION 59081 4171
59927 351
59783 175.5
1165.4
Mc Arthur Highway, Bgy. Malinta, T-146230 140
Valenzuela City 2,593
MALINTA SUBSTATION 2,733
Bgy. Bagbaguin (Canumay), Valenzuela City V-53151 2,627.50
BAGBAGUIN SUBSTATION V-53152 201.00
: V-53154 269.00
V-55380 417.00
'V-55376 267.00
V-55428 50.00
V-55366 217.00
V-55379 534.00
V-55437 65.00
. V-55439 1,285.50
V-53079 637.00
V-55440 20.50
6,590.50
Ortigas Avenue Extension 159233 10,805
Bgy. Sto. Domingo, Cainta, Rizal
CAINTA SUBSTATION
Bgy. Mayani - Concepcion, Baras, Rizal M-68784 3,000
BARAS PROPERTY (VACANT) M-16069 113
3,113
Bgy. Dolores, Taytay, Rizal OCT-No.1172 2,347
TAGUIG-DOLORES 115KV RIGHT-OF-WAY 663866
Philec Road, Bgy. Dolores, Taytay, Rizal 548416 28,714
DOLORES SUBSTATION
Near Dragon Cement, Bgy. Dulong Bayan M-1602 6,648
Teresa, Rizal
TERESA | SUBSTATION
Sukol Highway, Bgy. Iba, Antipolo City 216628 1,000
TERESA |l SUBSTATION 216629 1,000
216630 1,000
216631 1,000
223294 2,117
6,117
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T.C.T. AREA IN

LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.
Sumulong Highway, Bgy. Mambugan, 234662 160
Masinag, Antipolo City : 234663 2,304
MASINAG SUBSTATION 234664 1,802
234665 781
234666 460
) 5,507
Sitio Sagbat, Bgy. Maybangkal, Morong, Rizal M-733 1,726
MORONG SUBSTATION
Gomez St., Kapalaran Subd., Bgy. San Juan, 96326 1,030
Taytay, Rizal
TAYTAY SUBSTATION
Bgy. May-Iba, Antipolo, Rizal 399524 ‘ 1,050
Poblacion, Bgy. Hulo, Sta. Cruz, Angat T-35360 1,000
ANGAT SUBSTATION - T-35360 - 45
: 1,045
Mc Arthur Highway, Bgy. Burol Primero 68515 2,650'
Balagtas, Bulacan
BALAGTAS SUBSTATION
La Trinidad, Bgy. Bundukan, Bocaue, Bulacan 26771 4,769
BOCAUE SUBSTATION ' ' ' :
Dofia Remedios Trinidad Highway, Bgy. Sto. TC-1084 ' | 819
Cristo, Baliuag, Bulacan TC-1085 819
BALIUAG SUBSTATION TC-1086 579
. ‘ TC-1087 579
2,796
McArthur Highway, Bgy. San Marcos, T-305631 2,000
Calumpit, Bulacan (RT-53831) '
CALUMPIT SUBSTATION
New Duhat Overpass, Duhat, Bocaue, Bulacan T-184873 v ‘ 10,729
DUHAT SUBSTATION T-205688 . 2,627
13,356
Bgy. Gaya-Gaya, San Jose Del Monte, Bulacan T-9989 _ 500
GAYA-GAYA SUBSTATION
Bgy. Ibayo, Marilao, Bulacan T-23065 3143.4

MARILAO SUBSTATION
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Aguinaldo Highway, Bgy. Santiago,
Gen. Trias, Cavite (VACANT)
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T.C.T. AREA IN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.
Provincial Road, Mabini St,, Bqy. Mojon, 15814 803
Malolos, Bulacan 15815 99
MALOLOS | SUBSTATION 902
Bgy. Pinagbakahan, Malolos-Plaridel Provl. Road, T-100347 11,496
Malolos, Bulacan T-100058' 1,608.5
MALOLOS 1l SUBSTATION T-100059 877
13,981.5
Steel Asia Mfg. Corp., Bgy. Bahay Pare , T-28387 2,627
Meycauayan, Bulacan . [
PROPOSED BAHAY PARE SUBSTATION
Bgy.' Iba & Camalig, Meycauayan, Bulacan T-108371 1,000
MEYCAUAYAN SUBSTATION T-108372 3,000
- T-108373 1,000
5,000
Cagayan Valley Road, Provincial Road, M-81168 6,189
Bgy. Silangan, San Miguel,‘ Bulacan - ‘
SAN MIGUEL SUBSTATION
Bocaue Exit, Bocaue-Sta. Maria Provl. Road, T-161762 518
Bgy. Turo, Bocaue, Bulacan T-161763 6,661
STA. MARIA SUBSTATION 7,179
Bay. 'Subivc, Baliuag, Bulacan T-307181 » 377
(Formerly Subic Substation)
VACANT -
Bgy. Tikay & Santol, Malolos Bulacan T-52095 4,407
" First Bulacan Industrial Clty (FBIC)
TABANG SUBSTATION |
De Leon St. cor De Guzman St., Bgy. Caridad, 20655 628
Cavite City, Cavite (Dalahican)
CAVITE SUBSTATION
Bgy. Palico, Imus, Cavite 205046 1,166
PALICO SUBSTATION
Gen. Aguinaldo Hway, Bgy Anabu, 368010 1,315
imus, Cavite 368011 2,081
IMUS SUBSTATION 368012 2,081
5,477
T-23724 1,000



28
: T.C.T. AREA IN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.
Puerto Azul Road, Bgy. Tanauan, T-344605 11,101
Tanza, Cavite T-344606 6,442
TRECE MARTIREZ || SUBSTATION 17,543
National Highway, Bgy. Arhaya, Tanza, Cavite T-275041 750
TANZA SUBSTATION T-275042 924
T-274981 750
- T-274982 750
' 3,174
National Highway, Bgy. Biluso, Silang, Cavite P-3331 7,887
SILANG SUBSTATION P-3331 343
' 8,230
Bgy. Habay, Bacoor, Cavite T-37535 2,223
BACOOR SUBSTATION
Westgrove Heights , Silang, Cavite T-44244 3,600
Donated by Ayala Land, inc
Rizal Avenue, Bagong Pook‘ Subdivision, ‘ 5230 1..521 |
San Pablo City, Laguna (Prov. Road cor MRR)
SAN PABLO | SUBSTATION
Bgy. Del Remedios, San Papl'o City, Laguna T-33214 1,598
SAN PABLO [l SUBSTATION T-33215 1,632
T-33216 1,863
5,093
LIIP Compound, Bifian, Laguna (Mamplasan Exit) T-333984 6,160
LIIP SUBSTATION ‘ ‘
Camelray Industrial Park | | T-161671 11,048
Bgy. Canlubang, Calamba, Laguna
CARMELRAY SUBSTATION
National Road, Bgy. Masiit, Calauan, Laguna - T-67708 7,313
CALAUAN SUBSTATION » ’
Bgy. Tagapo, Sta. Rosa, Laguna T-13039 406
STA. ROSA | SUBSTATION T-5233 1,354
1,760
Laguna Technopark , Bgy. Bifiang, Bifian, Laguna T-142570 10,883
STA. ROSA Il SUBSTATION
Bgy. Balibago, Sta. Rosa, Laguna T-30407 1,359
BALIBAGO SUBSTATION T-30405 5,750
' 7,109
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Along National Highway, Bgy. San Agustin,
Tiaong, Quezon Province '
TIAONG SUBSTATION
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‘ T.C.T. AREA IN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.

\
Provincial Road, Bgy. Pagé.awitan. T-127943 7072.5
Sta. Cruz, Laguna ‘
STA. CRUZ SUBSTATION
Bgy. Landayan, San Pedro, Laguna T-234187 5,000
SAN PEDRO SUBSTATIO”
Road to Liliw Provl. Road, ?gy. Bambang, T-143699 2,000
Nagcarian, Laguna ; :
NAGCARLAN SUBSTATK?
Bgy. Diezmo, Cabuyao, Laguna T-298373 4,700
LISP SUBSTATION ‘
Hacienda Sta. Elena, Bgy. Malitiit, T-195348 5,531
Sta. Rosa, Laguna ‘;
Bgy. Mayapa, Calamba, Laguna T-87985 8,993
CANLUBANG SUBSTATION
Bgy. Parian, Calamba, Laguna ' T-456442 -5,007
PROPOSED CPIP SUBSTATION (T-437696)
Quezon Ave., Bgy. Gulang-Gulang, Lucena City T-11750 396
LUCENA | SUBSTATION o

, | _
Bgy. Ibabang Dupay, Marktown Subdivision, T-10369 7,792
Lucena City .
LUCENA |l SUBSTATION
Bustamante St., Candelariaj, Quezon Province 340067 -1,184
CANDELARIA SUBSTATION
Bgy. Ayuti, Lucban, Quezon Province 0-9737 340
LUCBAN SUBSTATION
National Highway, Bgy. Mapagong, Pagbilao, T-255222 3,522
Quezon Province ' '
PAGBILAO SUBSTATION
Sia Subdivision, Bgy. Mationa, Tayabas, T-230239 280
Quezon Province T-230240 193
MAUBAN SUBSTATION 473
T-279136 1,624
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T.C.T. AREA IN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.
Bgy. Mationa, Tayabas, Quezon T-261719 11,000
TAYABAS SUBSTATION
Bgy. Bolbok, Batangas City T-26251 1,313
(PROPOSED BATANGAS SERVICE CENTER) T-26252 306
, , T-26253 31,570
T-26254 9,985
T-26255 7,920
T-26332 992
52,086
Samson Road/Araneta Ave., Calaanan, Caloocan City 29516 1,272
CALOOCAN EXTENSION OFFICE
Manlla South Road, Bgy. Pamplona, Las Pifias City 25858 1,487
LAS PINAS BRANCH OFFICE 417
Gen. Luna St., Bgy. Flores, Malabon City R-51156 1,399
VACANT :
Bgy. Concepcion & Ibaba, Malabon, M.M. 8250 187
MALABON BRANCH OFFICE 8991 20
8249 279
M-11426 801
8076 246
8077 44
8078 130
8079 . 110
M-21833/M-12162 554
M-21834/M-8247 67
M-21835/M-8246 96
M-21836/M-8251 72
M-21863/M-8247 77
: 2,683
Bayanbayanan Ave.cor Gen Ordoitez Ave., SW N-30468 1,058.4
Molave St., Marikina Henghts, Concepcion, Marikina N-30469 919.9
~ MARIKINA BRANCH OFFICE : 1,978.3
Kamagong St. cor. Ayala Ave. Ext., Bgy San Antonio, 2136142 955
Makati City \
MAKATI BRANCH OFFICE
J. L. Escoda and Agoncillo §ts. Malate, Manila 240167 752
MALATE BRANCH OFFICE 24264 496
' 24265 416
1,664
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. Shaw Boulevard cor. Mariina Yulo St. 11764 664
Bgy. Bagong Silang, Mandaluyong City 11765 826
MANDALUYONG BRANCH OFFICE 1,490
Lubiran St. cor. Magmapa St., Bacood, Sta. Mesa, Manila 217022 - 21,733
MANILA DISTRICT SERVICE CENTER 217023 15,844.7

37,577.7
Valle Verde VI-A, Green Meadows Subd. 210867 2,960
Bgy. Ugong, Pasig City
GATE 3 MERALCO CENTER
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City 12101 171,013
MERALCO CENTER PT-113804 79,351
' PT-113806 5,000
PT-113807 649
258,973
Elisco Road , Bgy. San Joaquin, Pasig City PT-106584 921
CENTRAL TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION PT-106585 4,624
: PT-106586 7,056
PT-106587 19,011
31,612
Elisco Road , Bgy. San Joaquin, Pasig City PT-109996 6,919
SUBSTATION & CONTROL PT-109997 4,443
" 11,362
Dr. S. Antonio/Pilapil Sts., Bgy. Kapasigan, Pésig'City 41550(12098) 1,532
PASIG BRANCH OFFICE
Quirino Avenue, Bgy. Tambo, Parafiaque City 79856 728
PARANAQUE EXTENSION OFFICE 79857 612
1,340
F. B. Harrison/Doro Sts., San Jose, Pasay City 1337-A 1,000
PASAY EXTENSION OFFICE
Forest Hill Drive, Novaliches, Quezon City 348275 1,144
NOVALICHES BRANCH OFFICE
Quezon Avenue, Bgy. Roxas, Quezon City RT-103379 1,297.1
ROOSEVELT BRANCH OFFICE (300423)
EDSA Bgy. Sitio Kangkong, Balintwak, Quezon City N-168227 3,323
BALINTAWAK DISTRICT N-168228 3,955
377986 42,627
49,905
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T.C.T. AREAIN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION < NO. SQ. MTR.
Capitol Estate Ii, Common‘wealth Avenue 52599 1,200
Batasan Hills, Quezon City TD-07167
COMMONWEALTH BRANCH OFFICE : :
EDSA, Bgy. Katipunan, Quezon City 67021 1,500
BALINTAWAK BRANCH OFFICE
Commonwealth Ave., Diliman, Quezon City - T-124759 _ 468
VACANT :
EDSA, Kamuning, Quezon|City ' 18304 : 1,500
KAMUNING BRANCH OFFICE '
Espafia/Josefina Sts., Sampaloc, Manila 36895 792
ESPANA BRANCH OFFICE '
Blumentrit Street, San Juan, Metro Manila 12099 © 883
SAN JUAN EXTENSION OFFICE A
San Marcelino St., Ermita, Manila 94970 _ | 1,099
- SAN MARCELINO PAYMENT OFFICE ‘ 94970 ‘ 857
1,956
Claro M. Recto, Sta. Cruz, Manila : - ' 164445 : 275.4
TONDO PAYMENT OFFICE :
T. Santiago St., Bgy. Viente Reales, Maysan, Valenzuela City - B-45381 - o 47,262
VALENZUELA DISTRICT B-45382 3,790
V-51514 250
V-51517 - 16,213
V-63375 ‘ 374
V-62217 275
V-42326 ' 5,000
V-23992 513
' 73,677
Mc Arthur Highway, Bgy. Malanday, Vélenzuela City 15612 . 3626.4
VALENZUELA BRANCH/POLO SUBSTATION
Bgy. Navotas, Talim Island, Cardona, Rizal M-1633 147,348
TALIM ISLAND QUARRY
Bgy. Parugan (now San Jose), Antipolo City, Rizal T-287560 43,575
VACANT '
Bgy. Tayuman , Binangonan, Rizal M-68761 309
SAN CARLOS REPEATER |STATION
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T.C.T. AREA IN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.
Sumulong Highway, Bgy. Mayamot, Antipolo City R-3396(260671) : 68,918
VACANT ,
" Bgy. San Isidro, Montalban, Rizal 248784 113,790
VACANT ’
Bgy. Punta, Jala-Jala, Rizal M-51186 246,840
Bgy. Pililia, Rizal (Road) 272855 10,800
' Ortigas Ave. Extension, Bgy. Lumang Dayap T-586369 . ‘ 720
Cainta, Rizal |
CAINTA BRANCH OFFICE
Bgy. San Isidro, Angono, Rizal 588121 19,953
GEN. SHOPS & OFFICE BUILDING & 588121 44
ANGONO EXTENSION OFFICE 588120. 39,917
588120 , 87
60,001
Sumulong Highway Bgy. Mayamot 212139/149147 - 514
Masinag, Antipolo, Rizal 228287/75107 471
MASINAG EXTENSION OFFICE ‘ 985
Circumferential cor. Gen. Luna St. T-250022 9%
Bgy. San Roque, Antipolo, Rizal
VACANT
Bgy. Sta. Cruz, Antipolo City, Rizal T-299908 244
PROPOSED ANTIPOLO REPEATER STATION T-299909 240
484
Bgy. Cruz Na Daan & Maginao, San Rafael, Bulacan T-305633 62,087
SAN RAFAEL SERVICE CENTER T-305632 : 1,183
' : 63,270
P. Mabini St., Bgy. Guinhawa, Malolos, Bulacan RT-29351 625
(OLD MALOLOS BRANCH OFFICE) (T-260254) '
RT-29350 51
(T-260256)
676
Bgy. Agnaya, Plaridel, Bulacan TC-3001 ' 3,662
PLARIDEL SERVICE CENTER TC-3002 3,261
TC-3003 : 3,192
TC-3004 3,133
TC-3005 3,143
TC-3006 2,599
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|
Bgy. Agnaya, Plaridel, Bulacan TC-3007 1,799
PLARIDEL SERVICE CENTER , _ " TC-3008 2,692
‘ \ TC-3009 2,725
| _ TC-3010 2,739
: ‘ TC-3011 1,327
] TC-3012 1,323
- TC-3013 1,961
\ - TC-3014 2,112
\ TC-3015 2,227
| 37,915
Bgy. Mulawin, Norzagaray, Bulacan (VACANT) . T-65142 6,836
Bay. Graceville, (Gaya-Gayia) San Jose Del Monte, Bulacad T-80847 ' 65,343
VACANT ‘ . T-80848 41,383
“ . - T-179053(M) : 993
| 107,719
. b | ,
Bgy. Buroi Primero, Balagtas, Bulacan no tct yet 3,020
BALAGTAS BRANCH OFFICE 6,981
i _ 10,001
. |
Bgy. San Jose, Baliuag, Bulacan T-35505 : 130
BALIUAG BRANCH OFFICE © T-35506 , 1,668
' ' : 1,798
Bgy. Bagbaguin, Sta. Maria, Bulacan |  T-288084 1,737
STA. MARIA BRANCH OFFICE
Pariancillo St., Bgy. Sto. Nifto, Malolos, Bulacan T-88606 62
NEW MALOLOS BRANCH OFFICE ‘ T-88607 : 1,486
T-88608 60
T-88609 388
‘ : 1,996
Bgy. Minuyan, San-Jose Del Monte, Bulacan . _ T-181904-09 ' 1,440
VACANT ’ T-182022-23 740
‘ ' T-190257-72 5,032
T-194330-31 6,509
13,721
Bgy. Minuyan (Bitungol), Norzagaray, Bulacan T-31444 P 399
BITUNGOL REPEATER STATION
National Road, Tagaytay City, Cavite T-27818 6,000

TAGAYTAY SERVICE CENTER & EXTENSION OFFICE
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LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO, SQ. MTR.
Bgy. Tejero, Rosario, Cavite T-462673 2,373
ROSARIO BRANCH OFFICE
P. Burgos Avenue, San Roque, Cavite City T-11341 284
CAVITE BRANCH OFFICE
Aguinaldo Highway, Bacoor, Cavite T-37535 1,995
BACOOR BRANCH OFFICE
Bgy. Pala-Pala, Dasmannas Cavite 322307 45,100
CAVITE DISTRICT & STOCKYARD
Bgy. Wawa, Rosario, Cavite - Site || T-17574 14,529
- Site | T-17614 7,962
VACANT ' 22,491
Bgy. Bayang Luma, Imus, Cavite T-250508 179
IMUS PAYMENT OFFICE T-250507 646
' 825
Aguinaldo Highway, Bgy. Abubot, Dasmarifas, Cavite ' T-205045 32,857
DASMARINAS SERVICE CENTER T-224776 . 748
. ' 33,605
M. Paulino St., San Pabio City, Laguna T-2790 900
SAN PABLO BRANCH OFFICE
Poblacﬁon, San Pedro, Laguna T-26725 363
SAN PEDRO BRANCH OFFICE T-26724 854
1,217
Bgy. Dita, Sta. Rosa, Laguna T-50015 31,854
STA. ROSA DISTRICT T-50016 31,373
' 63,227
Bgy. Real, Calamba, Laguna T-86944 2,065
CALAMBA BRANCH OFFICE
Poblacion, Sta. Cruz, Laguqa T-144099 1,822
STA. CRUZ EXTENSION OFFICE
Bgy. San Ignacio, San Pablo City, Laguna T-39355 30,681
SAN PABLO DISTRICT/BRANCH OFFICE T-42824 27,263
57,944
Mt. Imok, San Pablo City, Laguna 0-560 1,000



T.C.T. AREA IN
LOCATION/DESCRIPTION NO. SQ. MTR.
Quezon Ave., Bgy. Gulang-Gulang, Lucena City 24971 1,000
LUCENA BRANCH OFFICE
Bgy. Pallocan, Kanluran, Batangas City T-41023 - 2,728
BATANGAS BRANCH OFFICE
San Pascual, Batangas 27192 33
VACANT 27193 163
27194 422
- 27227 365
27189 740
27190 1,005
27191 156
2,884
Laurel, Talisay, Batangas T-48582 939
VACANT T-48584 1,014
1,953
Prepared By : Reviewed By : :
\£ .Q’. db %‘ - — %W
R. A. DE CASTRO/ ms DE LARA R. G. ORLINO
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~ Item 3. Llegal Proceedings

o The real property tax case between the Company and Muntinlupa
City, amounting to more than P88 Million, according to Muntinlupa,

- remains unresolved by the Supreme Court. This case stemmed from
the re-assessment made by the then Municipal Treasurer of
upa on the tax declaration valuation of the Gardner/Synder
generat‘.ing facilities on the basis of the amount of consideration
when these facilities were sold to National Power Corporation
(NPC) m compliance with PD 40. The difference between the tax
declaratlon value and the consideration of sale was charged with
tax dlfferentlal The Company protested the re-assessment on the
ground that the realty taxes due had been duly paid on the basis of
the tax declaration and it was improper to re-assess the value of

- the prqperties by reason of the higher consideration of sale.
However, the Company will pay only the realty tax differentials
correspondmg to two years only, the maximum period when
penaltles and interests may be charged under the law, or about P36
Million \lﬂhlch is already the subject of a garnishment issued by the
Municipal Treasurer of the Company’s bank deposit at Equitable
Bank. If Muntinlupa will persist to collect an amount beyond P36

Million, Fhe Company is contemplating to file another lawsuit on the
issue regarding limit of liability. Our retained counsel, Quiason Law,
has fi led three motions for reconsideration already. On October 1,
2003, the Supreme Court issued a Resolution giving due course to
the last| motion for reconsideration and endorsing the case to the

Court en-banc for further consideration.

« A franchise tax case is pending between the Company and
'Muntinh}:p'a with probable liability of P95.5 million. We opposed the
assessment on the ground that the tax was imposed at the time
when Muntlnlupa was still a municipality and, therefore, pursuant
to the Local Government Code, is invalid. The Regional Trial Court
resolved the case in favor of the Company. Muntlnlupa appealed

the decision to the Court of Appeals.

o The Mu‘nicipality of Taguig assessed the Company with local
franchlse tax worth around P131 Million. The Company. contested

the asstsment on the ground that pursuant to the Local
Government Code, a3 municipality can not impose local franchise

tax. Ca‘se is pending proceedings in the Regional Trial Court of

Pasig.
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Meralco has a pending local franchise tax case with the City of Pasig
amounting to about P435 Million covering the years 1996 to 1999
assessed on gross revenue in the entire franchise area of the
Company. We contested the assessment on the grounds that the
assessment is not authorized by a City Ordinance and that,
assuming the Company is liable to pay, the assessment must be
based on gross receipts within the City not on gross revenue within
the entlre franchise area. The Regional Trial Court declared in its
dec:snon that the City of Pasig is entitled to impose local franchise
tax frorp the time it became a city but that the tax should be based
on gross receipts within the City. If based on gross receipts, the
local framchlse tax would amount to P66.7 Million. We appealed the
decision to the Court of Appeals. The City filed a motion for
execution pending appeal which the Court denied.

The NLRC decided against the Company a labor case involving 162
project-:hired employees for the Meralco Transformation Project.
We fi led a motion for reconsideration which was resolved in our
favor by the NLRC. Possible liability to the Company is estimated at
over P112 million consisting of backwages and benefits., The
complamants appealed the ruling of the NLRC to the Court of

Appeals.

Another labor case of material significance to the Company u)volves
66 regular employees dismissed because of their involvement in an
illegal strlke in July 2000. The NLRC sustained the illegality of the
strike but tempered the decision by awarding separation pay to the
dismissed employees estimated at P12 Million. We filed a notion for

reconsideration which is presently under consideration.

Lucena ‘Clty assessed realty taxes on our poles, wires, insulators
and transformers located in Lucena City annually from 1992, which
as of today totals P16,493,097.60. @ We contested the assessment

and the case remains pendmg in the Court of Appeals.

AAA Cryogenics, Inc. sued the Company for the losses it allegedly
suffered\ due to power outages or voltage fluctuations that allegedly
occurred from October 7, 1997 to April 4, 1998 in its plant at
Cabuyao, Laguna. The total amount of claim is P21,092,760.00.
Hearing of the case is still on-going at RTC-Pasig.
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In the year 2000, we filed an application with the Energy
Regulatory Commission (ERC) for approval of all electrical capital

pro;ects from 1994 to 2000. The ERC has issued an Order requiring

the CJmpany to show cause why no penalties must be imposed to

the CJmpany for failing to seek prior approval for these projects.

‘ Penaltles are estimated at the aggregate of about P70 million plus

permlt fees of about P40 Million. We filed our explanatmn which is
pendmg resolution.

The medlatlon of the dispute arising from the Contract for the Sale
of Electric Energy between the National Power Corporation (NPC)
and the Company concerning the differential billings of about P27
Billion\imposed by NPC for failure of the Company to take the
stipulaFed contracted energy from Year 2000 to 2004, and the
Compapy’s claim for unrealized revenues from customers directly
connected to NPC and transmission failures/delays of about P8
Billion,| resulted into a Settlement Agreement whereby NPC credited
Meralco’s claim at a settlement amount of P7 Billion. The remaining
P20 Bll;llon was agreed to be paid by Meralco out of recoveries from
consumers. The Settlement Agreement is filed with the ERC for
approval is pending proceedings.

The Company filed applications with the ERC for the reduction of
interest on meter and bill deposits of customers from the 6%
percent rate stipulated in the Company’s terms and conditions of
servnce‘t«o a lower rate that the ERC may reasonably determine, and

for authority to collect surcharge from delinquent electric bills.

ltem 4. Suhmission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year

covered by this report to a vote of security holders.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANGIAL INFORMATION

Item 5. Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholders Matters

m

Market Information

The principal market where the issuer’s common equity is traded is the
Philippine Stock Exchange. The quarterly high and low sales prices adjusted
for corresponding stock dividends for fiscal years 2001 and 2002 and for the

first quarter of 2003 follow:
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CLASS A
FROM T0 HIGH LOW
01/01/02 03/31/02 33.50 22.50
04/01/02 06/30/02 32.00 20.00
07/01/02 09/30/02 21.00 18.25
10/01/02 12/31/02 18.75 7.50
01/01/03 03/31/03 10.00 8.20
04/01/03 - 06/30/03 10.25 6.00
07/01/03 09/30/03 16.25 . 9.70
10/01/03 12/31/03 15.00 13.25
01/01/04 02/29/04 21.75 16.50
‘CLASS B
FROM 10 HIGH LOW
01/01/02 03/31/02 52.00 29.50
04/01/02 06/30/02 48.50 29.50
07/01/02 09/30/02 34.00 25.50
10/01/02 12/31/02 32.50 7.90
01/01/03 03/31/03 14.00 9.00
04/01/03 06/30/03 15.25 7.90
07/01/03 09/30/03 24.75 14.25
. 10/01/03 12/31/03 24.25 19.50
01/01/04 02/29/04 ~ 36.50 25.00

(2] Holders

As of December 31, 2003, the issuer has a total of 69,379 common
equity holders. Following are the name of the top twenty (20) shareholders
of each class, the number of shares held and the percentage of total shares

outstanding held by each:
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List of Top 20 Stockholders ( Consolidated )

Decesber 31, 2003

Rank Shareholder d Nase/Address

Nat Class

i 100071307

L5 )

1100123343
3 1100071314

§ 1100056929

§ 1100000641

§ 1100030934

71100079302

3 1100052533

9 1100134564

10 1102388026

\
PLD WONINEE CORPORATION
B/F MALATI STOCE £XCH. BLIS. ,
767 AYALA AVENLE, MARATI CITY

FIRST PHILIPPINE UNION FENDSA, INC,
4/F BENPRES BLG., NERALCO AVE.
COR, EXCHANGE R0AB, PASIS CITY

PCD NONINEE CORPORATION
G/F MAIATI STOCK EXCH. DLDG.,
8787 AYALA AVENUE, MAKATI CITY

AERALEO PENSION FUND
LOPEZ BLDG., MERALCO CENTER
ORTIGAS AVE., PASIE, B. M.

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
UF WORTH DAVAD NININS CORP. BLDG.
1104 GANBOA ST., LEGASPT VILLASE, MAIATI CITY

FIRST PHILIPPINE SOLDINSS CORPORATION
©4TH FLR., CHROMICLE BUILDING,

TEXTITE ROAD COR. NERALCD AVE., PASIS CITY

SOCIAL SECURITY SYSTEM
STOCT INVESTHENT lBAN‘SEC., SALARY LOANS BEPT.
UF §55 BLEG., DILINAN, 0.L.

LAKD DANK OF THE PRIL, TA B03-141 (ASSET PRIVATIZATION TRUST)
ASSET PRIVATIZATION TRUST, NBAC BLDG.,

04 GANBO ST., lESAfPI VILLAGE, BAKATY CITY 1229

LANDBANR PHILS. FAD PCGS ITF NFI

C/0 CITIBANK, N.A. H/F CITIBANK

TONER PASED DE ROXAS, MALATI CITY

CITIBANK N.A, NARILA 030 CITIBANK R.A. REW YORK ADR NANI
GLOBAL SECURITIES SERVICES 11/F CITIBAK TONER
8741 PASED DE ROXAS, MAKATI LITY

FIL

FOR

Rl

fiL

Fll

FiL
FliL
FiL

HON

A

Naaber of Shares Percentage
114,488,138.00
1135,708,401.50

AT 2
1579212 1

230,394,739.00  23.056502 2

230,084,791.00  23.025484 1
COI45,138,879.00  14.524415 2

59,754, 715,00 5.979888 1
28,793,320.00  2.881460 1

88,508,038.00  8.841308 1

17,303,453.00
30,761,726.00

1L.731825 X
3.070048 7

48,065,189.00  4.810071 2

-----------

C39,520,000.00  3.984043 1
21,507,00  0.004149 %

40,061,508.00

4.009412 %

30,800,965,00  3,992085 1
< 20,839,100.00  2.886042
23,560,472.00  2.357789 %

§,690,873.00  0.869830 2
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List of Top 20 Stockholders ( Consolidated )

Deceaber 31, 2003

Rask Shareholder 8 Nase/hddress

13

1

15

16

18

1§

i)

Kat Class

1100043147

1100128210

1100071377

1100047433

1100057458

1100048347

1100117604

1100030733

1100051430

1140013024

HONE DEVELOPHENT l#TWﬁL FUND
RN. 407 4F INVESTNENT DEPT., THE ATRIUN OF WARATI BLDG.,
MAKATI AVE., WALATI CITY

BOARD OF ADNINISTRATOR - ESOP
C/0 AERALCO '

PHILIPPINE HEALTH INSURANCE CORPORATION
8TH FLOOR, PRIL. HEART CENTER
BLDG,, EAST AVENUE, | QUEZON CITY

INSULAR LIFE ASSURANCE CORPANY
INSULAR LIFE DLDS., AYALA WE.,
BATATI, NETRO MARILA

NETROPOLITAN BANK & |TRUST COMPANY ,
NETROBANK PLAZA, SE*. GIL J. PUYAT AVEWUE,
BAXATT, RETRO NAKILA

THE INSULAR LIFE ASSURANCE CONPAWY, LT,
INSULAR LIFE DLIS., AYALA AVEWDE,
NARATI, NETRO MANILA

THE INSULAR LIFE ASSURANCE CORPAWT, LTD.
6781 AYALA AVENUE, MARATI, :
HETRO NANILA

FIRST WETRD IWVESTHENT CORPORMTION
GROUKD FLOOR, VELLINGTON BLDS., PLAZA LORENTD RUIZ,
BINDNDO, NANTLA

BAWJEL N, LOPEZ &/0R|f. TERESA L. LOPEZ
THE BUSTLE PENTHOUSE, RIZAL TONER, RESEDENTIAL BRIVE,
ROCKWELL CENTER, NAXATI CITY

CORCEPCIONS" AND/OR ARANETA
C/0 RAUL CONCEPCION MO, 17 TANBILE RD.,
NORTH FORBES PARK, MAKATI CITY 1219

FIL

Fit

FIL

FIL

FIL

FiL

318

FIL

FiL

42

Naaber of Shares Percestage

L68,80.00  0.114987 2
1,192,970 0.119338 2

2,361,308.00  0.235305 %

1,072,268.00  9.107308 %
M,708.00 0071624 2

-------- sescanemss

LIBLITLN 0173246 2
1,328,360.00  0.152948 X

730,080.00  0.0730822
730,080.00  0.073082 X

C1,060,160,00 0, 108120 2

sa3szzasszssisasssss  ssgasesas:

1,390,440.00  0.139268 2

37,380.00  0.003989 1
1,326,341.00  0.132752 %

ansvsvessrmsaswecness - -
SITTIIJTETTUTTIIRRSES | sSI|IaassdR

1,000,001.00  0.100074 2

306,633.00  0.030886 2
§72,20.00  0.067278 2

978,921.00  0.097944 %

15,331.00  0.001534 %
489,339.00  0,068905 ¥

703,870.00  0.070439 %
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
List of Top 20 Stockholders ( Consolidated )

December 31, 2003

Raok Shareholder 8 Nane/Address Nat Class  Kosber of Shares Percentage

.....

.....................................

{ CLASS A ) 536,041,010.00 89,4228 2
{CLass o) 360,746,593.00  90.249280 2
SUB-TOTAL 097,567,403.00  89.025100 2
{TLASS M) §2,698,082.00 10457714 %
(o888 ) 38,975,77.00  9.750712 2

----------------------------

OTHER STOCXHOLDERS { 69359 )

we 3 ses susanseews

§RAND TOTAL 999,261,461.00 100.000000 2

---------------------------

ANGELD 6. RACABURAY
OPERATIONS NAMAGER ,
SECURITIES TRAWSFER SERVICES, INC.

4
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(3] Dividends

There were no cash dividends declared by the issuer in favor of Class
“A" and Class “B” shares for the two (2) most recent years ended December

31, 2002 and 2003.

The issue\r’s loan agreements contain restrictions with respect to,
among others, Payments of dividends subject to certain conditions. Said
agreements provide that Meralco shall not declare or pay any dividends
(other than dlwdends on preferred shares or stock dividends) which in
respect to Class “A” and Class “B” of its common shares would exceed 80%
of Meralco’s net income after taxes during the preceding financial year and
reduce its debt-to-equity ratio to less than 75:25.

(4) RecentlIssuance of Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction

In 2003, common shares arising from cancelled subscriptions under
the EsopP 11 Offermg in 1999, were subscribed by qualified participants
under the repurqhase option approved by the SEC. The remaining allocation
to the Plan of about 12 million common shares was offered for sale during the
ESOP 12™ Offermg (“Centennial Offering”) from December 16 to 31 2003 as

approved by the SEC.

The approyal of the Company's application for its ESOP 11* Offering
repurchase optlon and exemption from the registration requirements for the
re-issuance of the common shares covered by said Plan was confirmed by the
SEC through a resolution on -February 20, 2003. Citing the fact that the
subject offering ‘is limited to the remaining participants of the Company’s
ESOP and the small amount involved, the SEC resolved that the proposed re-
issuance of the cancelled unpaid option shares representing 40% of the
participants’ original subscriptions is exempt from registration under Section

10.2 of the Securities Regulation Code.
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Item 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

PART HI FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(Per “Annex C” SRC Rule 12)

(A) Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD & A) or Plan of Operation

(1)  Plan of Operation - Not Applicable
2) Management’s Discussion and Analysis '

(a) Full fiscal years

Introduction

Meralco is the largest electric power distribution company and the largest private

sector utility in the ﬁm1ippines The company has a franchise, recently consolidated from

50 separate franch1§es and valid for 25 years from June 2003, to distribute electricity

throughout the great‘er metropolitan Manila area as well as nearby areas on the island of

Luzon, covering a population of approximately 19.6 million people. With an estimated

electrification rate (deﬁned as the estimated proportion of households with electricity out
of all households vnthm the franchise area) of approximately 97%, Meralco’s franchise
area covers 23 cmes and 88 municipalities, including the most urbanized and
industrialized areas‘ in the Philippines, and accounts for approxnnately 25% of the

Philippine populatlo‘n, approximately 58% of all electnc1ty sales in the Philippines and
approxunately 50% of the country’s GDP.

Meralco’s busmess is subject to extensive government regulation, pr1nc1pa11y by
the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC). The terms of Meralco’s franchise, the terms
and conditions of 1ts‘ services, the rates that it charges its customers, its rates of return and
recoverable costs, tlixe prices at which it purchases power and the areas in which it is
allowed to operate, as well as many other aspects of its operations, are all subject to the

approval of the Ene‘rgy Regulatory Commission (ERC), other government agencies or

Congress. With the enactment and implementation of Electric Power Industry Reform .
Act (EPIRA), the Phlhppme power industry continues to undergo various forms of

restructuring affecting all principal sectors of the industry — generation, transmission,
distribution and supbly. The company believes that it is likely to benefit from further
. power industry restll'ucmring in important respects, principally by introducing more
efficient energy markets. However, the company cannot predict the complete impact of
the reform program on the company and other participants in the Philippine power

industry and principal elements of the program remain to be implemented.

LIS AR

LD

s



® ®

)] Any known trends or any known demands, commitments, events or
uncertainties that will result in or that are reasomable likely to result in the

registrant’s ]lquld‘lty increasing or decreasing in any material way.

The major factors affecting the company’s financial condition and results of
operations are:

~* Regulated Rates and Cost Recoveries.
. Electnclty Supply.
e Philippine Economic Conditions.
e Exchange Rates. '
* Industry‘ Restructuring.

Regulated Rates and Cost Recoveries

The compax‘ly s rate structure, allowed returns and permitted cost recoveries are
the most sxgmﬁcant determinants of its operating results. The company’s rates are set
(with the approval of the ERC) to perrnlt the company to earn a reasonable rate of return
on investments it makes toward provision of electric service and are based on the
company’s Retum On Rate Base (RORB). The company s rate structure also permits the

company to pass tﬁrough to its customers certain increases in its costs resulting from

increases in purchas‘ed_power costs, effects of peso depreciation and system loss. '

Pursuant to the Supreme Court’s final ruling in April 2003, RORB is calculated

for regulatory purpc‘ases as operating income before operating income tax, divided by rate

base, defined as th:e sum of the appraised value of the company’s net utility plant in
service at the end of the relevant period plus one-sixth of the company’s annual operation
and ,maintenance e:‘{penses The previous formula generally resulted in a lower figure for
RORB than the fo‘rmula currently applied. The Supreme Court’s decision resolved a
series of ERB and court decisions and appeals that began in 1998. The Supreme Court’s
order required appllcanon of the current formula retroactive to February 1994, and
ordered a refund of ‘resulting overcharges for the period from February 1994 through May
2003. Before the|issuance of the Supreme Court’s April 2003 ruling, RORB for
regulatory purposes was calculated on a different basis under which operating income
was determined after operating income tax and rate base was calculated baséd on the
average of the appréised values of the company’s utility plant in service at the beginning

and end of the relevant period and also included one-sixth of annual power purchase
expense for the relevant period.

As the appraised value of utility plant in service takes account of replacement
cost, Meralco’s rate base takes into account the effects of inflation and exchange rate
fluctuations on its 1hvesMent in utility plant when basic distribution rates are adjusted
from time to time with ERC approval The ERC (formerly the Energy Regulatory Board
or ERB) has approv‘ed seven increases in the company’s basic rates since 1981 and the
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most recent increase was granted in November 2003. Historically, Meralco’s rate
increase applications have been calculated based on a maximum RORB of approximately
12% (a level of RORB that the Supreme Court stated was a reasonable rate of return in a
1966 decision). In! the past, the then ERB typically has granted Meralco rate increases
based on an allowaible RORB of 10.5%. All these RORB calculations were based on the
formula for calculating RORB that was applied before May 2003. In the rate increases
for the company aﬂproved in May and November 2003, the ERC has approved tariffs for
the company basedfon the company’s weighted average cost of capital for 2000 of 15.5%,
as determined by }he ERC. These tanff increases set the RORB to 15.5% for the
respective years covered by the rate increase petition using the formula applied since

May 2003.

The Purchqsed Power Adjustment (PPA) and the Currency Exchange Rate
. Adjustment (CERA) previously allowed the company to pass on automatically to its
customers increases and decreases in purchased power costs and the effects of peso
depreciation on principal repayments of foreign currency-denominated debt  and
operation and maintenance expenses. Under new rules promulgated by the ERC, the
Generation Rate Adjustment Mechanism (GRAM) and Incremental Currency Exchange
Rate Adjustment (ICERA) have replaced the former PPA and CERA mechanisms. The
GRAM and the ICERA still allow the company to pass through increases or decreases in
power purchas_e'coéts and some of the effects of peso depreciation. However, GRAM .
and ICERA adjustn‘lents may only be made quarterly (except in relatively extraordinary
circumstances) base‘d on applications by the company and will require ERC approval. In
order to mitigate th? effect of the time lag between the company’s incurrence of increased
costs and the recovery of those increased costs pursuant to approved adjustments, the
'GRAM and the ICERA each allow adjustments to include a carrying charge representing
the financing costs ‘associated with the deferral of recovery at the 91-day Treasury Bill

rate plus 300 basis points, but not exceeding 12%.

The company’s recovery of costs arising from system loss through the system loss
charge in its unbundled rates is limited to expenses of system loss of up to 9.5% of the
total power purchast by the company. System loss refers to electrical energy lost due to
technical losses and non-technical losses mainly due to pilferage. System loss is
calculated as: one minus the fraction obtained by dividing (x) the total power sold and
used by the compaq‘y by (y) the total power purchased by the company. The company’s
system loss levels have been in excess of this 9.5% cap, increasing from 10.18% to
10.85% from 2000 through 2002. For the year ended December 31, 2002, the
company’s unrecoverable system loss over the 9.5% cap on recoverable system loss was
1.35% which equaled R1,351 million. System loss for the full year 2003 was 10.85%.
The company estimates that, based on its 2003 purchased power cost, its pre-tax income
is reduced by approximately 1,100 million for every percentage point that the

company’s actual S)"stem loss exceeds the cap. :
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Electricity Supply

Meralco does not operate its own generation capacity and must purchase all of the
power that it distributes from bulk suppliers, such as NPC and IPPs. Meralco is
dependent on NPC| for power, although its dependence has been decreasing in recent
years and the company expects to further reduce its dependence on NPC in the future by
purchasing more electricity from IPPs. For the year 2003, the company purchased
approximately 58.7% of its requirements from NPC, down from 64.7% for the full year
in 2002 and 89.5% for the full year in 2001. Meralco’s 10-year power purchase
agreement with NPC expires in December 2004, which will allow the company to source
more of its power| from other sources, such as IPPs with which the company has
contracted. In addmon as part of the ongoing restructuring of the power industry under
EPIRA, the Wholesale Electricity Spot Market (WESM) is expected to be established in

the near future to p1‘*ov1de a wholesale spot market for power supply which the company

“will be able to tap.

Philippine Economic Conditions

In recent years, the company has been adversely affected by - a general economic

slowdown in the Ph‘ilippines and elsewhere in the world, which has resulted in lower than

expected électﬁcity‘ demand, particularly among the company’s industrial customers.

From 1998 through 2002, the Philippine GDP grew at a compound annual rate of
approximately 3.2% (in constant 1985 pesos), compared to 4.5% during the period from
1993 to 1997. Peak/ demand on the company’s system grew at a compound annual rate of
4.8% during the period from 1998 to 2002 and 8.2% during the period from 1993 — 1997.

|

Exchange Rates

Depreciatior‘l of the peso against foreign currencies, particularly the U.S. dollar,
can affect the company’s operating results and financial condition in a number of
respects. While all the company’s revenues are denominated in pesos, approximately

87% of the'princip‘JaI amount of the company’s indebtedness, most of the company’s

capital expenditures, a substantial portion of the company’s power purchase costs and
interest expense al?d a small portion of the company’s operation and maintenance
expenses are denominated in, or indexed to, U.S. dollars, and can increase significantly
_in peso terms as af result of any substantial depreciation of the peso. The peso has

experienced a significant decline against the U.S. dollar, depreciating from P26.376 : -

US$1.00 on June 36, 1997, to P55.586 : US$1.00 as of December 31, 2003.

Increases in| power purchase costs that are indexed to the U.S. dollar will be
recoverable under the GRAM, subject to ERC approval, as increased generation costs to
the company. Adju‘stments approved pursuant to the ICERA mechanism will permit the
company to recover increased expenses arising from peso depreciation insofar as they
relate to increases‘ in the company’s foreign currency-denominated operation and
maintenance expenses and principal payments on foreign currency-denominated debt.
However, increases in foreign currency-denominated capital expenses and interest
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expense are not adjusted for under ICERA. Approval of adjustments to the company’s
basic distribution rates (which have been granted seven times since 1981) would be
required to order to recover increased capital expenses through an increase in the
company’s rate base Adjustments granted pursuant to the GRAM and the ICERA are
deferred and amortlzed as amounts are recovered through adjustments in customers’
billings. Foreign exchange losses from increases in interest expense on foreign currency

‘denominated debt a‘u'e reflected in the company’s ﬁnanc1al statements under “interest and

other ﬁnan@hl charges ”

Followmg a period of significant peso depreciation, the consequences to the
company cnﬁﬁ also include the following:

. peso terms, the amounts payable for debt service, cap1ta1 and operation and
maintenance expenditures for nnported goods and services and any other
expenses due in foreign currencies will increase, requiring additional funds to

tisfy lihe company’s payment obligations or budgeted capital and other
spending The company will ordinarily be required to make payment of such
mcreased amounts prior to the time they can be recovered through any
; adjustment to the company’s rates and pass-through costs.

p { .

o ‘& prmc1pal amount of, and interest expense on, the company’s foreign
'cm'rency-denommated debt will increase at relevant period-end dates for
purposeg of financial reporting and determination of compliance with the
-company s financial covenants. This increase can result in immediate adverse -
movements in measures such as total debt, debt-to-equity ratio, current ratio
and interest or debt service coverage ratios and the company may encounter a
‘significant time lag until it can reverse these adverse impacts through
improved financial and operating performance.

o The confpany will not be able to apply to-the ERC for approval of adjustments
under the ICERA more frequently than quarterly (except in extraordinary
circumstances such as a sudden and severe depreciation of the peso). The
ERC has 45 days to evaluate ICERA adjustment applications, after which they
are deemed approved. Under some circumstances, however, the company
could inc::ur a delay of up to twelve months between the time ICERA-related
costs are incurred and the time the adjustments are fully recovered from

cnstomers

Industry Restructuring

Under EPIRA, a fundamental restructuring of the Philippine power industry is
under way, which c:ould require significant adaptations by the company in its business.

These restructuring measures include:

o The deregulation of, and introduction of competition in, power generation and supply
activities and pricing;
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o The privatization of NPC’s power generating assets;

e The unbundling of the relative costs of the various segments of the power generation,
supply, transmission and distribution chain in bills to customers;

o The implement?tion of open access to available capacity on distribution networks for
delivery of power to consumers based on payment of transmission or wheeling
charges; :

e Freedom of consumers to choose electricity suppliers;

e The implementz‘xtion of the wholesale electricity spot market, or WESM; and

e Removal of cross-subsidies between different customers and geographic areas built
into rates for supply and distribution of electricity, under which Meralco’s customers
‘and franchise territory have borne net subsidies for other customers and regions.

Recent Developments

- June 2003 Rate Increase

In May 2003, the ERC approved a tariff increase averaging £0.17 per kWh over
the levels in effect|in May 2003, after the reduction of rates ordered by the Supreme
Court in April 2003. The increase consisted of a £0.0835 per kWh increase reflecting
higher generation and transmission charges and a 20.0865 per kWh distribution charge
increase for Meralco. This adjustment was based on the company’s assets in service as of
1998, as appraised‘ in 1999. The tariff increase was implemented in customer bills
beginning in June 2003. K - O

January 2004 Provisional Rate Increase

To update its tariffs to reflect more recent cost levels, the company filed a petition
with the ERC on October 10, 2003 to increase its tariffs by an average of P0.1358 per
kWh over the rates: in effect after the rate increase granted in June 2003. This proposed
increase was based on the company’s assets in service as of 2002, as appraised in
December 2002. ‘ On November 27, 2003, the ERC provisionally authorized the
company to implement a P0.12 per kWh increase in its tariffs starting January 2004.
Under the impleme‘ntting rules and regulations promulgated pursuant to EPIRA, the ERC
has up-to one yealL from the issuance of the provisional approval to finally decide on
Meralco’s petition‘. Various consumer groups and government figures, including
President Macapa‘gal-Anoyo, have expressed opposition or concern over this
provisionally apprt:)ved rate increase and final approval by the ERC will require a
process of hearing‘s and filings with the ERC. On December 23, 2003, the Freedom
from Debt Coalition filed a petition for a restraining order, prohibition and injunction
against Meralco a}nd the Energy Regulatory Commission for the rate increase. On

January 13, 2004, the Supreme Court issued a Status Quo Order. The order stopped the
implementation of the temporary rate increase.




Customer Refund

In April 2003, after extensive contests and appeals by the company, the Philippine
Supreme Court afﬁrmed its decision ordering the company to pay a refund, estimated to
be £30,323 mllhon based on operational data of the company as of May 2003 that the
Energy Regulatory Board, or ERB, the predecessor to the ERC, had claimed the
~ company overcharged its customers from February 1994 to May 2003. The Supreme
Court ruled that the company had improperly included: operating income tax in its
operating expenses for purposes of calculating its return on rate base, or RORB. This
had the effect of | reducmg the permitted level of the company’s rates from February

1994 to May 2003 by P0.167 per kWh.

The company has reached an agreement with the ERC to carry out the refund in
~ four phases. Phase One, which involved refunds totalmg approximately P2,170 million
to residential and lcommercial customers consuming 100 kWh or less of electricity per
month, was approved by the ERC in June 2003. Phase Two, which involves refunds of
approximately P4,559 million to residential and commercial customers consuming 101 —
300 kWh per month, has also been approved by the ERC and is expected to be
completed in February 2004. Phases One and Two represent approximately 22% of the
‘total refund but still satisfy the company’s refund obhgatlons to approximately 82% of
the customers entitled to the refund. .

|
A schednle for Phase Three, which will involve estimated reﬁmds of -
approximately R4, 905 million to residential and commercial customers consummg more
than 300 kWh of elecincxty per month, has been approved by the ERC in an order issued
in November 2003 According to the order, Phase Three payments are to commence in
January 2004 and should be completed in June 2004. Meralco filed a Motion for
Reconsideration, pjetmomng the ERC to extend the duration of the period to make Phase
Three payments up to December 2004. On February 13, 2004, the ERC ruled favorably
on the Motion for Reconsideration. -

.Phase Four will involve estimated refunds totalmg approximately 218,689 mllhon
to commercial and industrial and street-lighting customers, which include the company’s
highest usage customers In order to limit the financial burden imposed by the refund,
the company has \pn'oposed to the ERC that the Phase Four refunds of approximately
P18,689 million be paid over a period of five years startmg in May 2005. The ERC’s
decision on the company s proposed schedule for paying the Phase Four refunds remains

pending.

Income Tax Refund

As a result of the customer refunds discussed in the previous section, the company
has effectively ov’erpaid income taxes estimated at P8,902 million. This amount
represents the income tax effect of the £0.167 per kWh rate charged to customers from
February 1994 to December 31, 2002, which formed part of the company’s revenue for
such periods totaling P28,728 million. The company amended its income tax returns for
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1999 and 2002. Fc\ar the year ended December 31, 1999, overpaid income taxes amounted
to 21,126 million a‘md was set up as an asset. For the year ended December 31, 2002, the
amended provision for income tax represents the minimum corporate income tax. The

amendment of income tax returns for December 31, 2002 resulted in an additional

overpayment of inc{:ome tax of about 2202 million, which increased the total overpayment
for the year December 31, 2002 to P495 million. As of December 31, 2002, total

overpayment of income tax amounted to P1,621 million which was applied as.a credit

against 2003 income tax payments. Under existing BIR procedures, a taxpayer may file .
amended income ta:x returns within a period of three years after the relevant tax year and
may pursue a tax r‘eﬁmd or tax credit within a period of two years from the date of the
erroneous payment. However, under the new Civil Code and rulings of the Supreme
Court, the compaﬁy believes that it has six years within which to file claims for
erroneously paid income taxes from the date of the erroneous payments. The company
has a contingent as}set for overpaid income taxes for the years 1994 to 1998 and 2000 to
2001 estimated at 27,119 million. The company is still discussing with the Bureau of
Internal Revenue th:e issues pertaining to the recovery of income taxes paid on previously
reported revenues that will be refunded to the customers. This contingent asset is not

recognized in the financial statements unless the realization of income is virtually certain.

Settlement with NPC

In July 2003, the company signed a settlement agreement with NPC that remains
subject to ERC app}roval and resolves a dispute relating to its 10-year Contract for Sale of .
Electricity, or CSE, with NPC entered into in 1994. Under the CSE, the company
committed to p‘urcﬂa‘se a minimum quantity -of power annually from NPC. However, a
number of disputes ‘arose in the wake of the slowdown in the economy and in the growth
of electricity demand in the Philippines. Since 2002, the company was purchasing less.
power than the stat}ed minimum. Under the settlement, the company’s power purchase
commitment to NPC will be reduced during the remaining contract term through 2004
and the company will pay NPC a net amount of P20,050 million in installments from the
time the agreement\is approved by the ERC through the end of 2009, as the cost of this
settlement amount is recovered from the company’s customers in the form of increased
generation charges.‘ On November 24, 2003, NPC and the parent company both
submitted the Settlement Agreement to the ERC for its approval. The following day, the

Parent Company filed a motion for the consolidation of both cases.

Results of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared to Year ended December 31, 2002

Consolidated Operating Revenues. For the year ended December 31, 2003,
Meralco and Subsidiaries achieved consolidated operating revenues of 135,035 million,
an increase of 12.5% over the £120,044 million achieved in the same period in - 2002.

This increase was driven primarily by a 4.4% increase in sales volume by the parent
company.




g/ e =

o @ i saa3037

The increase in parent company’s revenue was also driven by an increase in
purchased power costs. Due to the refund ordered by the Supreme Court in April 2003,
operating revenues for the period from January 2003 to May 2003 reflect the reduction of
permitted distribution rates by P0.167 per kWh totaling 1,595 million. Parent company’s
operating revenues from June 2003 reflect an upward rate adjustment approved by the
ERC in May 2003 jof P0.0865 per kWh over the rates in effect prior to the rate reduction
ordered by the Supreme Court.

Operating eipenses Consolidated Operating expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2003 increased to P129,037 million, or 8.8% over the R118,552 million in

operating expenses for the same period in 2002.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 Change
: (in millions)

Recoverable purchased power 110,076 98,631 11.6%
Operations and maintenance 10,784 10,415 3.5%
Depreciatio}n and amortization 4,576 - 5,215 (12.2%)
Taxes other; than income tax 1,728 2,891 (40.2%)
Cost of contracts and services » 585 906 (35.4%)
Real estate sold 1,288 494 160.7%
Total - 129,037 118.552 8.8%"

The increasJe in consolidated operating expenses was primarily due to an increase
'in the company’s purchased power costs. Parent Company’s recoverable purchased
power cost for the|year ended 2003, were 110,076 million, or 11.6% over the P98,631
million in purchased power cost for the same period in 2002. The increase in purchased

\
power cost was due to a 4.3% increase in volume purchased as well as an increase in cost

per kWh.

Consolidated operation and maintenance expenses increased by 3.5% to 210,784
million for the yea‘lr ended December 31, 2003, compared with 210,415 million in the
same period in 2002, due primarily to increase in retirement expense, and provision for
various tax assessments and legal claims.

Coﬁsolidatﬁd depreciation and amortization declined by 12.2% from B5,215
million for the year 2002, to 4,576 in same period in 2003, primarily due to a reduction

in the current replacement cost in deprec1able utility plant and others, resulting in a lower

base of deprecxable‘ assets.

The Parent Company’s account, Taxes other than income tax decreased by 40.2%
from P2,891 million in the twelve months ended December 31, 2002, to 1,728 million in
the twelve month§ ended December 31, 2003, due to a change in the treatment of
franchise taxes. Based on the ERC Dec151on dated March 20, 2003 on the Company’s
consolidated petitions, the franchise tax should be identified as a separate item on the bill.
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and computed as a percentage of the sum of all charges, except taxes and the universal
charge. Prior to unbundling of charges which were implemented in June 2003, franchise
taxes were computed by multiplying gross receipts by the franchise tax rates.

- Cost of contracts and services, a subsidiary account, decreased by 35.4%' from
P906 million in 2002 compared to P585 million of last year primarily due to a decrease in
construction contracts.

Real estate| sold, also a subsidiary account of Rockwell Land Corporation,
increased by 160.7% from £494 million in 2002 to 21,288 million in 2003 due mainly to
the intensified marketing campaigns particularly on “Manansala”, a residential
condominium.

Operating Income. As a result of the foregoing, consolidated operating income
. increased 302% from 21,492 million in 2002, to 5,998 million in 2003.
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- Other Income (Charges). During the year ended 2003, other income (charges) |

were £4,524, a decrease of approximately 38.9% over the B7,402 million in other
income (charges) for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 - Change
(in millions) .
Interest and other charges — net (3,229) (3,840) (15.9%)
Unrecoverable purchased power (1,508) (1,351) 11.6%
Equity in net earnings of investee '
Companies 207 306 (32.4%)

Recovery of (provision for) probable

losses on disallowed receivables 6 (1,639) (100.4%)
Write-off of disallowed receivables : 0 ( _878) (100.0%) -
Total (4,524) (2,402) (38.9%)

Interest and|other charges - net for the year ended December 31, 2003, declined
by 15.9% in companson to the twelve months ended December 31, 2002, from P3,840
million to 3,229 million due to a lower debt level.

Parent Company s unrecoverable purchased power above the 9.5% cap on
recoverable system | loss totaled P1 ,508 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, an
increase of 11.6%, | over the total of 21,351 million for the year ended December 31,
2002. Although the system loss level was maintained at 10.85% in 2003, the same level
as in 2002, the i increase in the unrecoverable purchased power amount was caused by the
increase in purchased power cost per kilowatthour.
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Consolidate‘d equity in net earnings of investee companies decreased from R306
million in 2002, to‘ P207 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, due mainly to

the decrease in equitized earnings from First Private Power.

Recovery of| (provision for) probable losses on disallowed receivables. In 2002,
the Parent Company made a provision for disallowed recoveries of 21,639 million. Of
this amount, P829| million is accounted for by the Quezon Power Phils., Ltd. (QPPL)
transmission line fees and P810 million is accounted for by the VAT savings reflected as
part of the mandated residential rate reduction. On January 26, 2004, the Energy
Regulatory Commission (ERC) allowed the recovery of approximately P1,798 million in
VAT savings reflected as part of the mandated residential rate reduction, P810 million of
which had been prov1ded for in 2002. As a result; that P810 million was reversed in
2003. AdJustments to the QPPL transmission line fee component resulted to a net
provision of RP405 ﬁnlhon Provisions for NPC’s penalty on energy imbalance charges
were also recorded at P399 million. The foregoing adjustments resulted to a net
recovery of B6 million in 2003.

Write-off of disallowed receivables. For the year ended 2002, the parent
company wrote-off R878 million to recognize the portion of deferred PPA pertaxmng to
antl-pllferage expenses that the ERC disallowed the company to recover.

Income from Ordinary Activities before Extraordinary Loss. As a result of the

foregoing, the con}:pany posted a consolidated income from ordinary activities ‘for the
year ended 2003, totaling P907 million compared to a loss from ordinary activities of

P4,364 million for the year 2002.

'Extraordinary Loss. An extraordinary loss was recorded in 2002 as a result of the
Supreme Court’s A‘pnl 2003 decision where refunds from February 1994 to December
. 2001, amounting to 23,817 million, net of tax effect for 1999 of 1,126 million, were

accounted for.

Consolidated Provision for (Benefit from) Income Tax. Consolidated provision
for income tax for the year ended December 31, 2003, was R505 million, a sigm'ﬁcant
increase from P(1,359) million benefit for the year 2002, primarily due to the income

posted for the year 2003.

Consolidated Net Income (Loss). As a result of the foregoing, net income for the

year ended 2003, was R907 million, compared to a P28,181 million net loss in the same -

period in 2002. Thé significant increase was mainly due to the extraordinary loss — net of

tax effect of P23, 817 for the year 2002 caused by the rate refund ordered by the Supreme
Court.

Proceeds from long-term loans with various multilateral and bilateral institutions
of the Parent Company totaled 421 million in 2003 as compared to P45 million in 2002,
which were used for system upgrading and expansion of distribution facilities.
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Capital expenditures of the Parent Company in 2003 was 26,435 million, 1.1%
lower than the 2002 level of P6,505 million. The Company limited capital expenditures
due to budget constraints, wherein capital projects were prioritized according to

importance.

Cash dividends paid out to preferred stockholders decreased by 75.7% from R74
million in 2002 to Pl 8 million in 2003 primarily due the financial crisis brought about by
the rate refund ordered by the Supreme Court.

Unappropri‘ated Retained Earnings bounced back from a deficit of P(11,664)
million in 2002 to carnings of 2,951 million, primarily due to the income posted for the

year 2003 and the transfer of appropnated retained eamings amounting to P12 600
million.

- Basic Earni}ngs Per Common Share on Net Income (Loss) excluding depreciation
" on appraisal i increase for the period under review increased by 106.6% from (27.289) in
2002 to R1.791 in 2003 due mainly to the income posted in 2003.

|

Year ended December 31, 2002 compared to Year ended December 31, 2001

Consolidated ~ Operating Revenues. The company achieved consolidated
operating revenues| of P120,044 million for the year ended 2002, representing a 9.5%

decrease compared to 2001 operating revenues of 132,710 million. The decrease in -

operating revenues/ was mainly due to the reduction in Parent Company s distribution
rates by P0.167 per kWh as a result of the Supreme Court decision in April 2003. The
decrease was also brought about by a reduction in the cost of power purchased from
NPC, which was nnplemented pursuant to an executive order issued by Ph111pp1ne
President Macapagal Arroyo in May 2002 reducing NPC’s rates by capping the
" purchased power cost adjustment component of its rates at R0.40. Total sales volume
increased by 0.6%, reflecting sales volume increase in the residential sector of 0.2%, the
industrial sector of 0.9% and the commercial sector of 0.7%.

Consolidated Operating Expenses. Operating expenses decreased by 6.8% to PRI 18 552
million in 2002 fromP127,252 million in 2001. ,
Years Ended December 31,
2002 2001 Change
: (in millions)

Recoverable purchased POWET ........cccuviiieiicnsei s nmscsnssessesseanis $98,631 P106,279 (7.2%)

Operations and MAINERANCE. .....c.ucvvcemierricvrressinnecscsras e 10,415 10,333 0.8%

Depreciation and amortizz‘ttion ........................................................... 5,215 5,059 . 3.1%

Taxes other than iNCOME TAX........eceererereinrerreressrarmneesimssrseinseesssasanne 2,891 2,981 (3.0%)

Cost of contracts and services 906 988 (8.3%)

Real estate sold ' 494 1,612 (69.4%)
B OO SO 118,552 127252 (6.8%)

The decrease in consolidated operating expenses was primarily due to a decrease in the
cost of recoverable purchased power of 7.2% (from £106,279 million in 2001 to 298,631 million




" in 2002). Operation|and maintenance expenses increased slightly by 0.8% from 210,333 million
in 2001 to 210,415 million in 2002 due primarily to scheduled increases in salaries and employee
benefits under the company’s collective bargaining agreement and provisions for obsolete

inventory.

Depreciation and amortization increased by 3.1% (from P5,059 million in 2001 to
P5,215 million in 2002), reflecting additional utility plant equipment and other items placed in
service and the booking of appraisal revaluation for the year which increased the base of

depreciable assets of the parent company.

‘ Taxes other than income tax, a parent company’s account, decreased 3.0% from P2,981
million in 2001 to £2,891 million in 2002 due to a decline in operating revenues.

Consolidated Operating Income. As a result of the foregoing, operating income
decreased by 72.7% from £5,458 million in 2001 to 1,492 mxlhon in 2002.

_ Consolidated Other Income (Charges). During 2002, consolidated other income
(charges) were B(7,402) million, an increase of approxlmately 103.6% over the B(3,635) million
in non-operating expenses for 2001.

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 Change
' _(in millions)
Interest-and other Charges — Net .......vinivininerceiissenesnacens P(3,840) P(3,287) 16.8%
Provision for probable ]oEses on disallowed receivables............. (1,639) - (100.0%)
Unrecoverable purchased POWET.cvvismmstsaresnsnsneerensaresssusernserereres (1,351) ( 953) " 41.8%
Write-off of disallowed reCeiVables........ou.uummimrermseroereosecsnanseses { 878) - £ (100.0%)
Equity in net earnings of investee COMPANIES...c.ciireerirrecsressonssessens 306 v 605 T (49.4%)
TOUA] ....ooveveermairessrsenesssssistasiscssnsssresssessssocssstressaspasns senesesssens (7,402) (3,635) . 103.6%

Consolidatec‘i interest expense and other charges —net for the year ended December 31,
2002, rose by16.8% i comparison to the year ended December 31, 2001 from P3,287 million to
P3,840 million because of lower interest income, the higher cost of debt and depreciation of the
peso. Average interest rates for 2002 were 6.6% for foreign loans and 11.5% for domestic loans

compared to 6.4% and 10.6% last year. The peso depreciated from an average of P51.22 in 2001
to £52.00 in 2002.

After having made no provision for disallowed recoveries in 2001, the company made
provision of £1,639 million for disallowed recoveries in 2002 due to the ERC’s potential
disallowance of recolverabi]ity of a portion of deferred PPA pertaining to QPPL transmission line
fees and the ERC’s potential disallowance of recovery of VAT savings which have been passed
on to the company’s residential customers.

Unrecoverable purchased power above the 9.5% cap on recoverable system loss
increased by 41.8% from R953 million in 2001 to 21,351 million in 2002 due to the increased
level of system loss from 10.39% in 2001 to 10.85% in 2002 and the higher cost of purchased

power per kWh.

After having made no pi'ovision for write-off of disallowed receivables in 2001, the
company made provision for write-off of disallowed receivables of 878 million in 2002 due to
ERC’s disallowance| of recovery relating to anti-pilferage expenses. The remaining balance of
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disallowed anti-pilferage expenses of P401 million has been reflected as a reversal of 2002
revenues.

Equity in net earnings(losses) of investee companies decreased by 49.4% from P605
million in 2001 to £306 million in 2002 mainly due to losses derived from two subsidiaries.

Consolzdated income (loss) from ordinary activities before income tax and extraordinary
loss. As a result of the foregoing, income before income tax declined from P1,823 million in 2001
to a loss of B(5,910) million in 2002 primarily due to the reduction in distribution rates ordered by
the Supreme . Court‘ which brought operating income down and various provisions made
pertaining to the deferred purchased power adjustments which were disallowed for recovery by

the ERC totaling £2, 918 million.

Income Tax; Eﬁ‘ecnve Tax Rates. Provision for (benefit from) income tax decreased ﬁ'om
P838 million in 2001 to 2(1,359) million in 2002 due to the loss incurred for the year. In 2002,
the company pald tl‘le minimum corporate income tax of 2% of gross income instead of the
regular corporate income tax of 32% of taxable income. The effective tax rate in 2001 is 43. 5%
due to the non-deductibility of depreciation on appraisal increase for tax purposes.

Extraordinary Loss. As a result of the Supreme Court’s April 2003 decision, refunds
from February 1994 io December 31, 2001, amounting to 223,817 million, net of tax effect for
1999 of P1,126 mllhon, were accounted for as an extraordmary loss in the 2002 statement of
income.

Consolidated|Net Income (Loss). As a result of the foregoing, the company posted a net
loss for 2002 of P28,181 xmlhon compared to net income in 2001 of 1,352 million.

Year ended December 31, 2001 compared to Year ended Décember 31, 2000

Consolidated|Operating Revenues. Parent Company’s operating revenues for 2001 were
£129,400 million, a 2‘4.8% increase over 2000 revenues of 2103,691 million. This was due to the
pass-through of increz‘ases in purchased power costs from NPC and other suppliers, as well as an
increase in sales vo]ume Total sales volume increased by 3.7%, reflecting sales volume increase
in the residential sector of 3.3%, in the industrial sector of 2.3% and in the commercial sector of
5.3%. Ona consohdated basis, operating revenues increased by 24.3%, from 106,750 million in
2000 to 132,710 rmlhon in 2001, mainly due to increased sales volume of parent company and

sales to real estate, spemﬁcally Rockwell Land Corp.

Operating Expenses. Consolidated operating expenses increased by 26.6% to 127,252 million in
2001 from P100,528 million in 2000.

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 Change
(in millions)
Recoverable purc‘hased POWETccreritenirerecrraeenne P106,279 P82,719 28.5%
Operations and Maintenance ........ocovvvcrieiennene . 10,333 8,566 20.6%
Depreciation and amortization ..........cceceeeeeeinenes 5,059 4370 15.8%
Taxes other than iNCome taX.....cccovvrervercrverieranne 2,981 2,404 - 24.0%
Cost of contracts flnd services 988 1,116 (11.5%)

Cost of real estate 1.612 1,353 19.1%

TOHA] .oloceeenecerceenrerereiereeessece e sesenseees 127,252 100,528 26.6%
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The increase in consolidated operating expenses was due to an increase in the cost of
recoverable purchased power of 28.5% (from P82,719 million in 2000 to £106,279 million in
2001) due primarily to an increase in volume of electricity purchased and a 23.8% increase in the
average per kWh pl"ices of power from NPC and other suppliers. The increase in the power
suppliers’ average prices was due to the falling value of the peso, which increased the fuel costs
and other dollar-denominated costs of electricity producers, and higher average production costs
of IPPs because the|IPPs were dispatched at less than MEQ. 2001 is the first full year of IPP

operations.

Consolidated Operation and maintenance expenses increased by 20.6% from B8,566
million in 2000 to P10,333 million in 2001 due primarily to higher costs of salaries and

contracted services.

Depreciation and amortization increased by 15.8% (from P4,370 million in 2000 to
P5,059 million in 2001) mainly as a result of the additional depreciation expenses related to
various utility plant ‘equipment and other items placed in service and the booking of appraisal
revaluation for the year.

Consolidated taxes other than income tax of parent company increased 24% from P2,404
million in 2000 to 2,981 million in 2001 due to the increase in operating revenues in 2001.

Consolidated Operating Income. As a result of the foregoiﬁg, consolidated operating
income decreased 121.3% from P6,222 million in 2000 to 5,458 million in 2001, principally due
to a higher rate of increase in operating expense compared to the increase in revenues. ,

Consolidated Other Income (Charges). During 2001, consolidated other income
(charges) were £3,635 million, an increase of approximately 37.0% over the 2,653 million in

non-operating expens‘es for 2000.

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 Change
: . (in millions) .
Interest and other charges I s P(3,287) P(2,408) 36.5%
Unrecoverable purchased POWeT........coccoiciencninnsnciisesisnnnns (953) (583) 63.5%
Equity in net earnings (losses) of investee companies............... 605 338 79.0%
TOMAL weereeeveorseebssoreesssssnessesssmsssesessssssssssosssssssssssoees s (3635 - _(2.653) 37.0%

The company experienced an increase of approximately 36.5% in consolidated interest

and other charges — net from £2,408 million in 2000 to B3 ,287 million in 2001 due to the full-

year effect of additional debt incurred in 2000. Unrecoverable purchased power costs above the

9.5% cap on recoverable system loss increased by 63.5% from P583 million in 2000 to R953

million in 2001 due tci) the increased level of system loss from 10.18% in 2000 to 10.39% in 2001
and higher costs of purchased power. Of the P370 million in higher losses approximately 200

million was due to system loss, and the balance was due to higher cost of purchased power.

Consolidated equity in net eafnings of investee companies increased from £338 million in
2000 to P605 million in 2001 due to higher income of some subsidiaries. '
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Income Tax; Effective Tax Rates. Meralco’s effective tax rate of 44.0% in 2001 was
higher than the effective tax rate of 36.7% in 2000 due to higher deprecxatlon on appraisal
increases which is not deductible for income tax purposes.

Consolzdatqd provision for income tax decreased 32.3% from 21 554 million in 2000 to

P838 million in 2001 due to lower taxable income in 2001.

Consolidated Net Income. As a result of the foregoing, the company posted a decline in

consolidated net income of 45.7% from £2,490 million in 2000 to 1,352 million in 2001 due to
unrecovered cost of ‘purchased power above the system loss cap, hlgher depreciation cost, hxgher
interest expenses and higher operations and maintenance expenses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

. The following table shows the company’s cash flows on a consolidated basis as of and
for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, and 2001:

December 31,

2003 2002 2001

. (in millions) -

Cash Flows
"Cash|and cash equivalents,
© DERINMNG werrereerreeneessessesnnsesmssieeess P6,832  P2,966 P5,374

Net cash provided by operating : N s

BCHVILIES. c.ooecerrcrnaseres i sesenine 9,878 12,414 4816
Net cash used in investing activities . ©T(4964)  (5431)  (10;840)
Net cash provided by (used in) _ :

financing activities ........... tresseessens (6.426) (3,117) 3,616

Cash land cash equivalents..........cocu... : 5,320 6,832 2,966

At December 31, 2003, cash and cash equivalents fell to 25,320 million compared to
P6,832 million at Décember 31, 2002. Principal sources of cash for the year 2003 were cash flow
from operations totalmg 215,456 million, P610 million from issuance of preferred stock and
drawings from long-term and short-term credit facilities totaling 2421 million and R500 million,
respectively. These funds were used primarily for capital expenditures, including capitalized -
interest, of 6,818 million and debt service payments for short-term debt and long-term debt and
interest expense of P2,214 million, P6,051 million and P3,246 mﬂhon respectlvcly

As of December 31, 2002, cash and cash equivalents totaled £6,832 million. Principal
sources of cash in 2002 were cash flows from operations totaling £18,302 million and drawings
from existing Iong-tém and short-term credit facilities totaling P45 million and P3,129 million,
respectively. These ﬁnds were used primarily for capital expenditures, including capitalized
interest, of P6,853 m11110n and debt service payment for short-term debt and long-term debt of

P4,631 million and Pl 888 million, respectlvely
Operating Activities

Net cash flows from opérating activities in 2002 amounted to P12,414 million, an increase of
P7,598 million or 157.8%, from £4,816 million in 2001, mainly due to a significant reduction in
purchased power cost by about P7,648 million and improved collection performance as
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manifested by a substantial decrease in ac counts receivables by P2,466 million. For the year
ended December 31‘, 2003, net cash flows from operating activities slightly declined to £9,878
million compared to 12,414 million for the same period in 2002 due to the payment of customer
refunds in accordance with the April 2003 Supreme Court order beginning June 2003.

Investing Activities

In 2002, the company’s net cash used in investing activities was £5,431 million, a decrease of
P5,409 million, or 49 9%, from 210,840 million in 2001 on account of lower capital spending.
For the twelve months ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, net cash used in investing activities
were P4,964 and P5 431, respectlve]y Capital expendltures for the twelve months ended
December 31 were P6 818 million in 2003 and P6,853 in same period of 2002, a decrease of
0.5%. In 2002, the c‘ompany spent P6,853 million in capital expenditures, a decrease of £1,391

million, or 16.9%, in|comparison to the 8,244 million spent in 2001.
F i'nancing Activities .

The company used net cash of $3,117 million for financing activities in 2002 compared to net
cash prov1ded from ﬁnancmg activities of 3,616 million in 2001. The net cash used in financing
activities in 2002 was higher than in 2001 mainly because of debt payments amounting to 4,631
million on short-tenﬁ loans and P1,888 million on long-term loans. Net cash used in financing
activities for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were P6,426 million and B3,117
million respectively. Prmcxpal repayments on short-term and long-term loans as of the close of

the period ended December 31, 2003 totaled £8,265 million.

Debt Fi inanciﬁg :

Consolidated long-term debt, net of current portion, was 3,239 million as of December 31, 2002,

compared with P3 98‘6 million as of December 31, 2001. For year ended December 31, 2003,

long-term debt stood at 225,281 million as compared with 229,486 million for the same period in
2002. The parent company’s proceeds from short-term borrowings amounted to £3,006 million in
2002 as compared with 6,320 million in 2001. Repayments on long-term debts totaled 21,179
million in 2002 and 21,106 million in 2001. For the year 2003, repayments on long-term debts
amounted to 5,277 million compared to 21,179 million for the same period in 2002. '

‘The parent company’s drawings from existing credit facilities during 2002 totaled 3,051
million, compared to R921 million during the twelve months ended December 31, 2003. Short-
term and long-term debt at the end of 2002 totaled £33,170 million, a decrease of P802 million,

or 2.4%, from £33,972 million at the end of 2001.

The scheduled maturities of the company’s outstanding indebtedness as of December 31,
2003 are as follows:

Amount in Original Currency Total-
Period U.S. Dollar Japanese Philippine Peso
Yen Euro Peso Equivalent
(in millions)
January ! to December 31, 2004 100 1,011 4 1,305 - 7,668
January 1 to December 31, 2005 77 1,011 2 1,815 6,789
January 1 to December 31, 2006 14 1,011 - 124 1,466
2007 thereafter . _ 8 4.046 1 6 7.149
280 L1079 i —3.250 23072
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Comprehensive Liability Management Plan (CLMP)

On December 4, 2002, the Parent Company announced the creation of a special

NI

committee to oversee the formulation and execution of a sustained viability plan and program

under the CLMP.

The Parent Company has short-term and long-term maturing in 2004 amounting to
P12,954 million. It has various options for refinancing its maturing debts. The Parent
Company’s short-term lenders have agreed to further extend payment of short-term loans due in

March 2004 for another 90 days and will consider further extensmns until the Parent Company

can complete its reﬁﬁmcmg program in 2004.

On June 24‘, 2003, the Parent Company’s stockholders approved the issuance of
additional bonded indebtedness of up to US$600 million or its equivalent currencies. The Parent
Company filed an ap‘p]hcatlon of similar nature with the ERC last September 5, 2003 which was
provisionally approxl'ed by the ERC on January 9, 2004. Public hearings on the Parent
Company’s applicati(‘m are currently ongoing.

Contingent Liabilities and Off-Balance Sheet Financing

The company, Meralco Industrial Engineering Semces Corporation, or MIESCOR, and
Rockwell Land Corporation, or Rockwell, have contingent liabilities with respect to claims,
lawsuits and taxes. ‘The company’s management, after consultations with outside counsel,

believes that the ﬁnal resolution of these claims, lawsuits and tax matters will not matenally ‘
affect its financial posmon and results of operations. The company has no off- balance sheet -

financing.

Equity Financing

The company has issued non-voting, non-convertible redeemable preferred shares to certzin
customers who are located more than 30 meters from an existing line or wire operated by Meralco
in order to finance the installation of additional facilities to connect such customers to Meralco’s
facilities. The preferred shares earn dividends at 10% per annum and after five years are
redeemable at the option of either the company or the holder. As of December 31, 2003, there

were 141 million pre‘ferred shares issued and outstanding in respect of which P1,407 million of

capital had been pald into the company.

(ii) Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material
to the compa‘ny, including any default or accelaration of an obligation.

Covenants

The First Mo‘rtgage Bonds issued under an indenture as primary obligations and those
issued as collateral for all the other secured loans have a first mortgage lien on substantially all of
the Parent Company’ s utility plant (P84,848 million as of December 31, 2003, P78,300 million

as of December 31, 2002 and P76,100 million as of December 31, 2001) in favor of a local bank,

as trustee, for the beneﬁt of all bondholders.

(&)
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The indenture and| loan agreements contain restrictions with respect to, among others,
encumbrances on assets; payments of dividends subject to certain conditions; acquisitions of
additional franchise areas; disposition of a significant portion of the Parent Company’s assets;
availment of additional long-term borrowings; and maintenance of certain financial ratios. In
addition, substantiallly all of the Parent Company’s existing loan agreements contain cross default
provisions which may render the outstanding loans due and demandable. For the years ended
December 31, 2003’ 2002 and 2001, the Parent Company did not comply with the minimum
required return on net fixed assets of 8% required by two secured creditors. However, the Parent

\
Company has received a waiver on noncompliance to this requirement from one of these secured

creditors and has reé:e:ved notice from the other secured creditor that a waiver will be issued
subject to certain conditions. In addition, for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the
Parent Company did not comply with certain financial ratios required by its unsecured creditors.
The Parent Company, however, continues to service the principal and interest payments at
maturity dates and has not received any demand for payment nor have any of its existing creditors

~ commenced default proceedings.

(iii) ~ All material off-balance sheet transactions, hrrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

Not Applicabl'e.

(iv)  Any material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of
such commitments, and the expected sources of funds for such expendltures

should be described;
2004 Capital Expenditure Requirements

Electric Capital Projects: (in million Pesos)

a. System Requirements £1,727
b. Customer Allocation - 2,540
c. Miscellaneous Allocation 1,389
Non Electric Projects 9
Other Capitalized Items 85

Total Capex £5,750

To date, the company has met, and expected that it will continue to meetv its capital
expenditure requlrerr‘lents primarily from cash flow from operations and long-term borrowings
that are primarily foreign-currency denominated.

The compan;J/ is required by the ERC to take necessary steps, including making necessary
capital expenditures, to build and maintain its network so as to meet minimum performance and
service requirements jand in any event to make capital expenditures in each year at least.equal to
the amount of depreciation taken in the prior years. Most expenditures on transmission and
substation projects, supervisory control and distribution automation, and distribution line projects
are non-d]scretlonary The remaining capital expenditure is discretionary, which encompasses
allocation projects, telecommunications projects and other non-electrical capltal expenditure. If
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the actual peak demand is lower than the forecasted demand, a portion of the non-discretionary
capital expenditure may become discretionary.

The company has a tentative capital expenditure budget of B5,750 million for the year
2004. Due to financial constraints brought about by the refund issue and the inability to
restructure and or refinance maturing obligations, the budgeted amount could be trimmed down
further to B5 billion. Meralco has to prioritize its projects to only those deemed urgent in this
year’s (2004) projeét line up. Funding of capital expenditures will be sourced primarily from
internal]y_generated‘cash flow, availments from existing credit lines and borrowings from local

and foreign financial institutions.

The R5,750 million approved capital expenditure budget is geared to support projects on
areas with large c:oncentration -of core customers, give priority to correction of normal
deficiencies in the system, stretch loading limits of our facilities and initiate practical and cost-
effective projects to correct system deficiencies. ' '

(v)‘ Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales or
revenues or income from continuing operations should be described.

Rate Applications with ERC

On April 14, 2000, the Parent Company filed with the ERB an application for a PO.3O per
kwh rate increase. : ‘ : :

In accordance with| Section 36 of RA No. 9136, the ERC required the National Power

Corporation (NPC) and all the distribution utilities to file their unbundled rate charges within six
months from the effe‘ctivity of RA No. 9136. On December 26, 2001, the Parent Company filed
with the ERC a petiti‘on for its unbundled rate charges. The filing was made in accordance with

the UFR issued by the ERC on October 30, 2001.

On June 17, 2002, thJ ERC issued an Order consolidating the Parent Company’ s P=0.30 per kwh
rate increase petition‘ (ERC Case No. 2001-646) with its unbundling petition (ERC Case No.
2001-900), in order to simplify and expedite the resolution of the rate cases. All records and
proceedings of the rate increase application were deemed consolidated with that of the -
unbundling. The hearings on the consolidated petitions were terminated on December 19, 2002.

On March 20, 2003, the ERC promulgated its Decision on the consolidated rate
petitions. In the D‘ecision, the ERC granted an Overall Average Tariff Adjustment
(OATA) of P0.054 pe‘r kwh, compared to the Parent Company’ s February 2003 effective selling
price of P5.4040 p& kwh, not including adjustments due to the Currency Exchange Rate
Adjustment (CERA) nd the franchise tax. Meanwhile, according to a press statement released by
the ERC, the approvéd rates would lead to an overall Weighted Average Tariff Adjustment
(WATA) of P0.22 per kwh when compared to February 2003 rates.
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‘In a filing dated March 31, 2003, the Parent Company manifested that its computations and
simulations showed that the unbundled rates approved by the ERC will not result in the OATA
mentioned by the DCCIS]OH nor the WATA found in the ERC’ s press statement. The Parent
Company also sald in its manifestation that it disagreed with a number of the findings,
conclusions, and dlsposmons of the ERC in its Decision. Thus, the Parent Company stated that it
would not 1mplement the Decision beginning with its April 2003 billing cycle and it would file a
motion asking the ERC to reconsider its March 20, 2003 Decision within the 15- day period

allowed following réceipt of the Decision.

On April 9, 2003, the Parent Company filed a Motion for Reconsideration with the ERC. On May
30, 2003, the ERC released an order resolving the Parent Company’ s appeal providing for
unbundled tariffs that will result in a total increase of P0.17 per kwh over May 2003 levels, after
giving effect to the reductlon of rates ordered by the SC in April 2003. This consists of P0.0835
per kwh increase reﬂectmg higher generation and transmission charges and a P0.0865 per kwh
increase in Parent Company-related charges (distribution, supply, and mctermg) The tariff
increase was implemented in June 2003.

On October 10, 2003, the Parent Company filed an application at the ERC seeking to adjust -
Parent Company-related charges by an average P0.1358 per kwh. The Parent Company’s rate
application was based on (a) an independent appraisal of 2002 assets appraised at an exchange
rate of P53.096:US$1.00; (b) the Parent Company’s audited 2002 financial statements and (c) the
Company’s weighted average cost of capital (WACC) for 2002.

On November 27, 2003, the ERC approved an. average provisional adjustment in Parent
Company-related charges of P0.12 per kwh, effective January 2004. Under the implementing -
rules and regu]ation§ of Electric Power Industry Reform Act (EPIRA), the ERC has up to one
year from the 1ssuam‘:e of the provisional approval within which to issue a final decision on the
Parent Company’s pentlon Hearing on the Parent Company s petmon started on December 22,

. 2003.

- On December 23, 2003, a consumer group and three party list congressmen filed a petition at the
SC seeking a revocatlon of the November 27, 2003 provisional increase granted by the ERC. In a
Resolution dated January 13, 2004, the SC ordered ERC and the Parent Company to observe the
status quo prevallmg\before the filing of the petition. After the conduct of oral arguments on the
petition on January 2‘7 2004, the parties were given twenty (20) days or until February 16, 2004
to file their respechve memoranda before the SC. The respective memoranda of the parties were
submitted to the SC on February 16, 2004. The status quo order remains until lifted by the SC.

N

Exchange Rates

(As discussed earlier). |

(vi)  Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the
registrant’s continuing operations;

There are no|significant elements of income or loss not arising from continuing
operations.
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(vii) The causes for any material changes from period to period in one or more

line items of the registrant’s financial statements;

MATERIAL CHANGES ON THE LINE-BY-LINE ITEMS OF THE
COMPANY’S CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Noncurrent Assets

Current Assets

Stockholders’ Equity

Consolidated Utility Plant and Others at revalued amounts increased from 280,481 million to
P86,357 million due to construction work in progress completed and the appraisal increase
recorded for the }"ear.

Land held for ﬁJtlure developments- at cost ,a Rockwell Land Corporation account, declined
by P681 million due to the assignment of certain parcels of land as security for loans.

Other noncurrenti assets decreased slightly from £23,805 million in 2002 to R22,809
million in 2003, mainly due to decreases in the Deferred foreign exchange loss (CERA II)
from P7,501 million in 2002 to P6,588 million in 2003, Deferred PPA from P5,757 million in
2002 to P3,487 million in 2003 and Intangible assets from P1,577 million in 2002 to P788

million in 2003.

Receivables increased from P21,318 million in 2002 to P23,802 million in 2003 due to the .

_increase in revenues.

Consolidated inve‘ntories as of December 31, 2003 decreased from P1,312 million in 2002 to

21,202 million , dhe to a slow down in capital expenditures because of cash flow consfraints.
Deferred income |tax assets decreased from P2,049 million to P1,367 million due to the
utilization of NOLCO amounting to P753 million. ’

Other current assets decreased from P769 million to P468 million due to a reduction in the

balance of Advance payments to suppliers from P394 million to P115 million.

Preferred Stock ipcreased from £837 million in 2002 to R1,407 million in 2003_ due to the
increase in customers requiring the purchase of preferred shares to help finance electric
projects.

Appraisal increase in utility plant and others increased by 5.0% from P26,140 million in 2002
to P27,445 millio‘n in 2003 as a result of the asset appraisal completed by the Parent

Company in Septe“mber. '
Reflecting the Net Loss incurred in 2002 amounting to $28,181 million as a result of the
recognition of an ‘Extraordinary Loss due to the Customer Refund, the Parent Company’s

Unappropriated Retained Earnings(Deficit) for the year 2002 was P(11,664) million. In

2003, the balance in the Appropriated retained earnings of P12,600 million was transferred to

Unappropriated retained earnings to beef up the deficit. In addition, the Net Income earned in
2003 amounting to P907 million resulted to significant improvement in the Unappropriated
Retained Earnings ‘amounting to P2,951 million.

Parent Company Retained Eamings was also adjusted upward for the reversal of self-
insurance expenses. Accrual for self-insurance will no longer be done in compliance with
International Accounting Standards.




~ Noncurrent Liabilities

Current Liabilities
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P

Customers Refund-noncurrent portion represents the balance of the customers refund not
yet due W1thm one year. As of December 31, 2003 this amounted to P18,689 million,
lower than the December 31 ,2002 balance of P22,594 million due to the transfer of the
amounts due|within one year to the Customers Refund-current account.

Customers’ deposits — noncurrent balance of the Parent Company as of December

31,2003 is Pl

3,255 million, 11.2% higher compared to the December 31, 2002 ﬁgure of

P11,924 m11110n

" (in million pesos)
2003 2002
Meter and servxce deposits 9,800 8,898
Interest on Meter and service deposit 3455 3.026
Total 13,255 11,924

Estimated liability for project development amounting to 21,630 million is the liability

of Rockwell

“Manansala” |

Land as agreed upon with contractors for the construction of the

condominium project.

Liability arising from deferred pass-through fuel costs increased from 24,544 million in -

. 2002 to £8,286 million in 2003 due to additional costs incurred in 2003 amounting to

USD 64 million.

Provisions am
to the interes
provisions for
to 2,000 mill

ounted to P2,870 million in 2003. Of this amount, P2,379 million .pertains
t differential on meter and service deposits and P491 million pertains to
various tax assessments and legal claims. In 2002, the balance amounted
ion for the interest differential on meter and service deposits.

Consolidated Notes Payable also decreased by 20.8 %, from P7,344 million to 25,816
million, due to the partial retirement of parent company’s short-term loans.

Long-term debt —current portion increased from P6,065 million in 2002 to P8,776 million in
2003. This is due to the higher level of debt amortizations scheduled within a one year

period.

Long-term debt classified as current amounted to P14,155 million due to the

rec]asmﬁcat:on of long-term debt to short term debt as a result of the Company sbeingin .

technical default of certain loan agreements.

(vili) Any seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or
results of operations.

Seasonality

The following table sets forth the company’s quarterly sales in gWh.
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2003 2002 2001 2000
. _ (in gWh)

Quarterly Sales

First Quarter 5,470 5,007 5,343 5,055

Second Quarter 6,116 5,948 5,818 5,662

Third Quarter 6,157 5,931 5,820 5,646

Fourth Quarter 6.091 593 5708 5.518

Totals 23,834 22,822 - 22,689 21.881

The comp‘any’s business evidences a degree of seasonality on both a quarterly and half-
yearly basis. The second and particularly the third quarters are typically periods of greater
electricity demand. The first, and to a lesser extent, the fourth quarters tend to be periods of
comparatively reduced demand from the company’s customers because of cooler temperatures

and the reduction of production by industrial customers. Because there are usually significant

reductions in dem
to be lower than
generally increase
company’s revenu

(b) Additional

()

and during the first quarter, the revenues for the first six months of a year tend
for the second six months of a year. The company’s industrial customers
production during the third quarter and, accordmg]y, a higher proportlon of the
es are earned in the second half of the year.

Requirements as to Certain Issues or Issuers

Debt Issues -

A

statement that the registrant’s'net worth exceeds P25 mllllon, and if

unsecured bonds are to be issued, that the registrant has been in
bu‘snness for three years, unless the Commission based upon a
consideration of all aspects of the matter determines that it would not
be inconsistent with the public interest to permit a variation of these

provisions.

Not Applicable.
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY

COMPUTA‘TION OF RATIO OF UNAPPROPRATED RETAINED
EARNINGS OVER TOTAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
As of December 31, 2003

(With comparative figures for December 2002)
(In Million Pesos, Except Ratio)

Preferred stock

Common stock
Capital in excess of par value
. Deposits on subscriptions to preferred stock

Subscriptions receivable, common stock

TOTAL PAID-IN CAPITAL {a) -

UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (b)

RATIO ( b/ a)

X

Section 43 of the Corporation Code states that "Stock corporations are
prohibited from retaining surplus profits in excess of one hundred (100%)
percent of their paid-in capital stock.”

2
N

2003
1,407
9,993
2,895

101

(10)

3 4 7y
‘3 ;\C, Ot o

RN

o ;
Nl R
PO

VIR

2002
837
9,993

2,974

(8)

69
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ITEM 7 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (SRC Rule 68)

" Notes:

Consolidated Audited Financial Statements

@S> SEC

1. Utility Plant and Others (Refer to Notes to Financial Statements)

2. Schedule of Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities (in million pesos)

Meralco

National Po‘wer Corporation (Napocor)
Transmission Company

Duracom Mpbile Power Corporation
Quezon PO\‘NBT Philippines Ltd

First Gas Power - Sta, Rita

First Gas Power - San Lorenzo
Foreign and local purchases

Deferred cre‘dits

Accrual of imbalance charges.

Others

e T OO QA0 TN

TOTAL - Parent Co.

Rockwell Land C?rporatic'm

Corporate Information Solutions, Inc.

Meralco Industrial Eng'ng. Services Corp.

Liability arising fr“om deferred pass-thru fuel cost

Current portion of advance payment received
from a customer

Current portion of meter & service deposits

Accrued taxes \

Accrued interest on loans

Current portion of interest on meter and
service deposits

Advance payment received from pole rentals

Accrued pension

Customers' deposits

Deposits from pre-‘selling of condominium units

Accrued expenses‘ and other payables

GRAND TOTAL

2003

3,708

2,374

210
980
2,037
981
645
533
285
214

11,968

49
56
0
0

0
470
1,163
285

101

File No.82-3%37

Page 1 of 2 pages

2002 2001
3,100 8,213
2,090 0
283 218
336 746
3,540 2,932
1730 0
705 880
533 0
306 0
498 215
13,122 11,204
149 297
182 210
304 267
0 . |
633" 799 .
480 688
742 617
42 527
72 31
200 0
378 0
47 187
389 0
2760 2626
20240 17,453

a. Liability to INPC represents unpaid power purchases from NPC and rental of
NPC equipments in the Balintawak substation.

b & c. Foreign|and local purchases represent amounts due to suppliers of poles,
cables, wires, transformers and such other requirements of the different

: s‘ubstations.

d. Others mainly represents miscellaneous payables such as water bill (MWSS),

telephone charges (PLOT) and security services, etc.



3. Breakdown of Consolidated Interest and Other Financial Charges
(State separately: Interest on bonds, mortgages and other similar
long-term debt; amortization of debt discount, expense or premium

and other interest.)

Meralco
Interest on Ior‘ g-term debt
Interest on de‘ferred fuel cost true up
Interest on short-term loans
Other interest‘expenses
Amortization qf debt expense
Interest charged to construction
Other financial expenses

. I,
Miscellaneous income

"TOTAL - Parent Co.

Meralco Industrial Eng'ng. Services Corp.

Inferest expense on loans
Other income ‘

Rockwell -Land Con"poration
Interest expen?e on loans
Other expenses

Interest incomg

Miscellaneous income
Corporate Information Solutions, Inc.

Interest expense on loans
" Miscellaneous income

GRAND TOTAL

2003

1,820
152
335
967

19

(68)
286

- (559)
3052

53
.(41)

248

(16)
(79)

Page 2 of 2 pages

2002

1,879
0

384
1,035
115
(119)
423

450

3,267

68 .
(8) | S

341
308
0
(155)

1,899

N
(=]
-

469
1,014
60
(217)

(556)
2,669

2103

(174)

66
(54)
(50)

&«
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item 1. Financial Statements

The consolldated financial statements and supplementary schedules,
Exhibit 1, are filed as part of this Form 17-A.

Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial

Disclosures

The accodnting firm of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV) has been the
Company’s Independent Public Accountants since 1986. There was no event
in the past seventeen (17) years where SGV and the Company had any
- disagreement w th regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or
practices, financial statement disclosures or auditing scope or procedure.

PART i1l - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION ﬂ

Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers

(1) Identity of Directors, Executive Officers and Significant Employees

The names of the incumbent Directors and Executive Officers of the
Company and their respective ages, current positions held, periods of service
and business experience during the past five years are as follows:

Senior Executive Officers:

MANUEL M. llII'EZ. 61, Director/Chairman and CEO (July 1, 2001 to
‘present).

Chairman of Philippine Commercial Capital, Inc. (1986 — Present),
Rockwell ‘Land Corporation (1986 — Present), Director of ABS-CBN
Broadcastlng Corporation (1986 — Present), First Philippine Holdings
Corporatlon (1986 — Present), Benpres Holding Corporation (1986 —
Present), Bauang Private Power Corporation (1995 — Present), First

Prlvate Power Corporation (1995 - Present)

Educational Background

. Bacheldr of Science in Business Administration

o Harvard Program for Management De\celopment

JESUS P. FRANCISCO: 60, Director/President and COO (July 1, 2001 to
present).

Chairman & President of Meralco Industrial Engineering Services
Corporatmn, Chairman of Meralco Energy, Inc. (1980 — Present), UP
Engineering R & D Foundation, Inc.; President of Meralco Millennium
Foundation:, Inc. (May 8, 2002 — Present); Vice Chairman of e-Meralco
Ventures, Inc. (2000 — Present); Director of General Electric Philippines
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Meter and Instrument Co., Inc. (GEPMICI), Corporate Information
Solutlons, Inc. (1987 — Present), Bauang Private Power Corporation
(1995 -~ Present), First Private Power Corporation (1995 — Present),
Rockwell Land Corporation (1995 - Present)

Educatlonal Background
. Strategnc Business Economics Program — University of Asna and

Pacifi e (formerly CRC) — 1986

e Senior Managers Program — Harvard Business School — 1982

e Master\‘s in Busmess Management - Asnan Institute of Management
- 1971

e B.S. Electncal Engineering — University of the Philippines — 1966

» B.S. Mechanical Engineering — University of the Philippines - 1963

|

Honors/Awards

o The Onofre Banson Award for Professional Achievement conferred
by Tau] Alpha U.P. College of Engineering — August 2002 :
e The 2001 - 2002 Outstanding Bedan Award conferred by San Beda
College Alumni Association and San Beda College Alumni
, Foundatlon, Inc.
e UPAA’s Professional Award in Engineering conferred by University
of the Phlllppmes —June 19, 1999
e« UPAE |Most Outstanding Alumnus in the Field of Electrical
Engineering conferred by University of the Philippines — 1998
e Asian I\nstltute of Management Alumni Achievement Award (Triple
- - A) conferred by Asian Institute of Management — 1996 S
o Tau Alpha Foundation, Inc. Achievement Award conferred by Tau
Alpha Foundatlon, Inc. ~‘March 30, 1990
e Phﬂ:ppl‘ne Society of Mechanical Engineers Achievement Award
~ conferred by Philippine Society of Mechanical Engineers — October
27, 1984

DANIEL D. TAGAZA: 63, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer &
Comptrollér
Trustee of Meralco Pensnon Fund (1997 - Present), MMLDC Foundation,

-Inc. (2002|— Present); Director & Treasurer of Corporate Information
Solutions, Inc. (1998 - Present), Meralco Industrial Engineering
Services quporation (1998 —~ Present), Meralco Energy, Inc. (1999 -
Present); Director of General Electric Philippines Meter and Instrument
Company, Inc. (1997 - Present), Mutual Fund Company of the
Philippines (1997 — Present), PCCI Insurance Brokerage, Inc. (1998 -

Present), Philippine Commercial Corporation, Inc. (2000 — Present),

Educational Background ‘
MBA Candidate — De La Salle University - 1977

Bachelor of|Science in Commerce — Araullo Lyceum - 1964.

)f/
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RICARDO V. BUENCAMINO: 59, First Vice President.

Dlrector\of CEPSI Philippines, Inc., Corporate Information Solutions,
Inc. (2001 - Present), Clark Electric Distribution Corporation, General
Electric | Philippines Meter and Instrument Co., Inc.,, Landbees
Corporation, Meralco Energy, Inc., Meralco Industrial Engineering
Services Corporation (2001 — Present), MIESCOR (USA), Inc., Meralco-
AFME (Association of Former Meralco Employees), Asian Center for
Energy Management.

Educational Background
¢ Master in Management - As:an Institute of Management - 1995

e B.S. in Electrical Engineering — Mapua Institute of Technology -
1966

ROBERTO R.ﬂlMAlﬂHA. 43, Vice President.

Director of Meralco Industrial Englneermg Services Corporatlon (2002
- Present), e-Meralco Ventures, Inc. (2000 — Present), Meralo Energy,
Inc. (2000 — Present), Soluziona Philippines, Inc. (2000 - Present),
CEPSI Phullppmes, Inc.; Trustee of Meralco Millennium Foundation, Inc.

(2002 ~ P\resent)

Educational Background

. Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engnneermg — University of the

Phlhppmes — 1983 (College Scholar)

» Master in Business Management Asian Instltute of Management -

1987 (Dean’s List)

Other Directors and Officers

FELIPE B. ALFONSO: 67, Director/Vice Chairman (July 1, 2001 to present).
Director/Chairman of Manila Electric Company; Chairman of e-Meralco

Ventures,\Inc., Merailco Energy, Inc.; Co-Vice Chairman of the AIM |

Board of Trustees (1999 -~ Present); Executive Director of the Ramon V.

del Rosario, Sr. AIM Center for Corporate Social Responsibility;

Member, Board of Directors of Metrobank, Jollibee Foods Corporation
(2000 - Present), Benpres Holdings Limited, Bauang Private Power
Corporation (1995 — Present), First Private Power Corporation (1995 ~
Present), Bacnotan Cement Corporation, Coca-Cola Foundation of the
Phlllpplnes, Wockhardt Limited of India, Hambrecht & Quist

Phlllppmeé, Inc,; Member, Board of Trustees of Makati Business Club;

Dlrector-GeneraI of the Philippine Committee of the Pac1ﬁc Basin

Economic Council (PBEC).

Educatlonal Background
o Master in Business Admlnlstratlon, New York University (1967)

« Bachelor of Laws, Ateneo de Manila University — 1962
e Bachelor of Arts, San Jose Seminary, Ateneo de Manila University
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OCTAVIO VICTOR R. ESPIRITU: 60, “Independent Director” (May 29, 2001 to
present).

Chairman & President of MAROV Holding Company, Inc.; Chairman of
Delphi Group, Inc.; Director of Bank of the Philippine Islands, SM
Development Corporation, International Container Terminal Services,
Inc.,, ISM Communication Corporation, Netvoice, Inc.; Member,
Advisory Board of JG Summit Holdings, Inc.; Member, Board of
Trustees of Philippine Center for Population and Development, Inc.,
Ma. Montessori Foundation, Inc,

|

.Educatlonal Background

« Masters in Economics — Georgetown University, Washmgton, D.C. -
1966

» AB Economics — Ateneo de Manila University - 1963

MONI(}II\HAGI]B 58, Director (June 23, 1998 to present).

President and CEO of STI Education Services Group; Chairman of CEOs,
Inc., GRQW Inc.; Vice Chairman of CBV Asset Management
Corporation; Director of PhilSteel Corporation, Steel Corporation,
Filipino Merchant Insurance Corporation, Jollibee Foods Inc., I-
Academy, Meralco Fmancral Services Corporat|on (2002 - Present)

-Educatlonal Background
. Bachelor of Arts — Ateneo de Naga University — 1966 (Cum Laude)

. Bachelor of Laws Ateneo de Manila University - 1971

' BHBlSTIANS MONSOD: 67, Director (December 21, 1998 to present)

Consultantw‘ of MERALCO (October 2002 to Present); Consultant of
Banco Filipino; Director and Chief Strategist — Benpres Holdings
Corporation (1985 — 2002); Directors and Senior Consultant — First
Philippine |. Holdings Corporation; Director of First Philippine
Infrastructyre Development Corporation, Manila North Tollways
Corporation, Maynilad Water Services, First Generation Corporation,
Philippine Electric Corporation, First Philippine Industrial Corporation,
_First Philip:pine Balfour Realty, Philippine Electric Corporation, Ecco-
Asia Corporatlon, First Electro Dynamics Corporation, First Philippine
Energy Corporatlon, Asian Eye Institute, First Philippine Industrial
Park, Fnrst\ Holdings Realty and Development Corporation (1985 to

October 2002).

Educational Background

e Masters in Economics — University of Pennsylvania — 1963
» (Universiw Scholar)
. Bachelor of Laws — University of the Philippines - 1960 (Member,

Phlllpplne Bar)
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. Doctor of Laws, Honoris Causa conferred by Ateneio de Manila
Unlver‘suty 1995

¢ Doctor of Humanities, Honoris Causa conferred by Ateneo de Manila
University — 1993

« TOFIL| Awardee (The Outstanding Flllplnos) for Government
Serwces 1995

e Man of the Year Awardee conferred by Catholic Educators
Assocnatmn of the Philippines — 1992

. Specnal Citation for Exemplary Performance in Government Service
conferred by the Joaquin “Chino” Roces Foundation

WASHINGTON Z SYCIP: 82, “Independent Director” (August 1996 to
present).
Founder of SGV Group; Chairman of the Board of Trustees and Board of
Governors\ of Asian Institute of Management, Philippines; Chairman of
Cityland Development Corporation (2001 - Present); Chairman of
Lufthansa | Technick Philippines, Inc. (2000 — Present); Chairman of
MacroAsia Corporatlon (1996 — Present); Director of Belle Corporation
(1996 — Present); Benpres Holdings Corporation (1997 - Present); First
Philippine ]Holdmgs Corporation (1997 — Present); Philippine Air Line,
Inc. (1997 - Present); Philippine Hotelier, Inc. (1997 — Present),
Philippine [National Bank (1999 - Present); Philamlife, Inc. (2001 -
Present); The PHINMA Group (1996 — Present); Solid Group (1996 -
Present); State Investment Trust Group (2001 — Present); State Land
Group (1996 - Present); Systems Standards, Inc. (1998 —~ Present), ‘
William, Gotihong, & Abomz, Inc. (1996 Present). -

|

ducatlonal Background

¢« MAin Scuence in Commerce — Columbia University - 1942

e BS Commerce — University of Santo Tomas — 1940 (Summa Cum
Laude) , _

e MA Science in Commerce -~ University of Santo Tomas 1939

(Meritiséimus)‘

- Honors/Awards

1992 Ramon Magsaysay Awardee for International Understanding

+ Management Man of the Year -~ conferred by Management
Assoc:atlon of the Philippines 1967

. Accountancy Hall of Fame - conferred by Philippine Institute of
Certuﬁed Public Accountants - 1980

. Phlllpplne Legion of Honor, Degree of Commander —~ conferred by
the Phlllpplne Government — June 30, 1991

» Star of the Order of Merit — conferred by the Republic of Austrla -
1976

o Officer First Class of the Royal Order of the Polar Star awarded by
H.M. the King of Sweden — June 1987
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. Doctor of Laws, Honorary Degree — conferred by the University of
Melboyrne 1993

» Doctor of Laws (Honoris Degree) — conferred by the University of
the Ph“lluppmes

» Doctor of Philosophy in Financial Management — conferred by De La
Salle qnlverSIw, Philippines

. Doctonate Degree in Accounting Education — conferred by the
University of Santo Tomas, Philippines

¢ Doctorate Degree in Development Management — conferred by the
Iligan | Institute of Technology, Mindanao State University,
Ph:hppmes. '

MARGARITO B. TWES: 60, "Independent Director” (September 25, 2000 to
present). _

President and CEO of Land Bank of the Philippines (2000 ~ Present);
Chairman of LBP Insurance Brokerage, Inc. (2000 — Present), LBP
Leasing Corporatlon (2000 — Present), LBP Countryside Development
Foundatlon (2000 — Present), LBP Realty Development Corporation
(2000 — Present), Masaganang Sakahan, Inc. (2000 — Present), LBP
Financial Serv:ces SpA (2000 — Present), Management Committee of
National leehhood Support Fund (NLSF), People’s Credit and Finance
Corporatlon (PCFC), Asia Pacific Rural and Agricultural Credit
ASSOCIal‘Ion, Chairman & President of LBP Remittance Co. U.S.A.; Acting
Chairman of Philippine Crop Insurance Corporation (PCIC); Pres:dent
of APRACA\ CENTRAB; Director of Cotton Development Administration,
Great Paqﬁc Life Assurance Corporation, Pacific Plans, Inc., PhilEquity
Fund, Inc,, Center for Legislative Development, Inc,, Alsons Cement
Corporatlon, Asean Finance Corporation (AFC); Trustee of Ayala
Foundation, Inc.; Council Member of National Food Authority, Food
Terminal, Inc.

Educatlonal Background :
e MA, Development Economics -~ Williams College, Massachusetts,

U.S.A. - 1968
. D|ploma~ in Business Studies — City of London College — 1965
Bachelor of Arts — Universidad Central de Madrid, Spain — 1962

EDMUNDO M. VARONA: 67, “Independent Director” (July 28, 2003 to
present).

Member, Board of Regents of the Umver5|ty of the Philippines System
(March - July 2003); President and General Manager of RMG Hospital
Supply, Inc. (2001 - Present); Marketing Consultant of Novartis Agro
Philippines,\lnc. (1997 - 2001), Novartis Healthcare Philippines, Inc.

(1997 — 2001).

Educational Background
o BS in Agriculture, University of the Philippines — 1957
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EMILIO A. VICENS: 36, Director (April 14, 2003 to present).

Managlng Director of Union Fenosa Internacional - Asian Region (2002
- Present), Director of Enron Global Markets; Director & Manager of
Enron Internatlonal Associate of Enron Capital & Trade Resources
(November 2000 — October 2001).

Educational Background
e MA, Busmess Administration — Harvard University — 1996

« Bachelor of Business Administration — Universidad Metropolitana —
1991 (Student Excellence Award by P & G Merit Scholarship by
University Student Council Head).

CESAR EA VIRATR: 73, "Independent Director” (May 28, 2002 to present).
Director, [Corporate Vice Chairman & CEO of Rizal Commercial Banking
Corporati\on (2003 — Present); Chairman & President of C. Virata and
Associatels, Inc. Management Consultants (1986 — Present); Director
&/or Cha‘lrman of various financial companies such as RCBC Savings
Bank, Inc., RCBC Capital Corporation, Bankers Association of the
Ph|l|pp|nes, Nippon Life Company of the Philippines, Inc., Business
World Pubhshmg Corporation, Belle Corporation, Coastal Road
Corporatlon, Luisita Industrial Park Corporation, Pacific Land, Inc,,

Mapua Institute of Technology, Bankard, Inc., YCG Corporate Services,
Inc.

Educational Background
‘e« MBA m Industrial Management — University of Pennsylvama

Wharton Graduate School - 1963
e B.S.in Busmess Administration — Umversrty of the Phlllpplnes (1952
‘ (Cum Laude)
e BS. in ] Mechanical Engineering — University of the Philippines —
1952 (PSME Gold Medal)

MLMCL

. Honorary Doctorate Degrees — Ateneo de Mamla University,
Umver5|ty of the Philippines, St. Louis University, Centro Escolar
Umver5|ty, Lyceum of the Philippines, Philippine Women's
University, Manila Central University

CAMILO D. QUIASON: 78, Corporate Secretary and General Counsel

Director of Enrico Realty Corporation, Semper Investment, Inc.,
Quemabar Investment, Inc., Manila North Tollways Corporation, First
Philippine Industnal Development Corporation (2002 - Present),
Maynilad W@ter Services, Inc. (2002 — Present); Trustee of Eugenio
Lopez Foundation, Inc, (1998 ~ Present), Associate Just|ce of the

Supreme Court of the Philippines (1993 - 1995).
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Educational Background
Specral Studies — Southwestern Legal Center, Dallas, Texas — 1964

. Master of Laws — University of the Philippines 1956

« Bachelor of Laws — University of the Philippines - 1950

. College of Liberal Arts — University of the Philippines - 1946
lEﬂNlSAﬂ DELALLANA: 50, Vice President

Director & Treasurer of Soluziona Philippines, Inc. (1995 - Present),
Director of e-Meralco Ventures, Inc. (2000 - Present), CEPSI
Phulippines, Inc. (199 — Present), Asian Center for Energy Management
Corporatlon (2001 - Present), Meralco Industrial Engineering Services
Corporatlorn (2003 - Present); Trustee & Vice President of Meralco
Millennium Foundation (2002 - Present); Trustee, Vice President &
Treasurer of MMLDC Foundation, Inc. (2002 — Present),

e Educatlonal Background
e Master| of Arts in Economics —~ Utah State University, Logan, Utah

U.S.A. — 1977
. Bachelor of Arts in Economics — University of the Phlllppmes 1974
(Dean 's Medal for Excellence; College Scholar)

RAFAEL L ANDRADA: 44, Vice Presndent and Treasurer

Trustee of Meralco Pension Fund (1997 - Present); Director of
Rockwell ‘Land Corporation (1997 - Present), First Private Power
Corporatlon (1997 — Present), Bauang Private Power Corporation
(1997 - Present), e-Meralco Ventures, Inc. (2000 — Present), Meralco
Industrial Engineering Services Corporation (2002 -~ Present),
Soluziona |Philippines, Inc. (2001 — Present), Meralco Millennium
Foundatlon, Inc. (2002 - Present), Meralco Financial Services

Corporatron (2002 - Present), BayanTrade.

Educatlona\l Background :
. Bachelor of Science in Commerce, MaJor in Management - De La

Salle Un iversity - 1982

ELPI 0. CUNA, JR.: 66, Vice President

Director of Manila Overseas Press Club (2000 - Present); Member of
International Association of Business Communicators (1988 -
Present), Public Relations of the Philippines, Philippine National Red
Cross (Rizal Chapter), National Social Action Council, Philippines
Columbian Association, National Citizens Movement for Free Election.

Educational Background
« AB Economics — Ateneo de Manila University - 1959.
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JAIME R. CAMACHO: 55, Vice President & Chief Information Officer
Director ‘of e-Meralco Ventures, Inc. (2002 — Present), Corporate
Informatl‘on Solutions, Inc. (2004).

Educational Background

o Basic Management Program - Asran Instltute of Management -
1990

e B.S. Electric Engineering - University of San Carlos - 1971

CARLOS 0. Rlllll 60, Vice President (retired June 30, 2003)

Director of Miescor Builders, Inc., e-Meralco Ventures, Inc., Soluziona
»Phlhppmes, Inc.,, General Electric Philippines Meter and Instrument
Co., Inc,, Meralco Industrial Engineering Services Corporatlon.

Educatlonal Background
o Bachelor of Science in Electrical Englneermg - University of the

Phlhpp‘mes 1964

GllS SAN DIEGII 56, Vlce President & Assistant Corporate Secretary
Director . of Corporate Information Solutions, Inc. (2002 —~ Present),
Soluznona\ Philippines, Inc. (2003 — Present), Meralco Energy, Inc.
(2000 — Present), Meralco Financial Services Corporation (2002 —
Present); Trustee of the Meralco Pension Fund, Meralco Millennium
Foundation, Inc. (2002 — Present), MMLDC Foundation, Inc. (2002 —
Present), Asian Center for Energy Management Corporation (2003 —
Present). EEE PR T B

The Directors are elected at the annual meeting of stockholders to hoid
office until the next succeeding annual meeting and until their successors
shall have been elected and qualified.

Significant Employees

'There are| no persons other than the Directors and Executive Officers"
expected by the registrant to make significant contributions to the Company.

Family Relationships

None of the Directors or Executive Officers of the Company are
relatives.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The registrant is not aware of any legal proceedings during the past
five (5) years of the nature required to be disclosed under Part IV of Annex
“C” of the SeCUI"ItIES Regulation Code (SRC) with respect to Directors and
Executive Officers.
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The aggregate compensation of the Company’s Directors and Officers
for the last two (2) fiscal years are as follows:

-~ NAME \ YEAR SALARY ~ BONUS TOTAL
Chief Executive Officer |  2004* 16,728,717 | 3,215220 | 18,944,137
;’;’ice:“*""" Executive | * 9pp3 15,728,717 | 3,215,220 18,944,137

2002 13,720,032 | 4,946,679 | 18,666,711
AWl officers and directors | 2004* 24,963,675 | 4,980,587 | 29,944,262
as a group unnamed 2003 24,963,675 | 4,980,587 | 29,944,262
2002 22,205,040 | 7,790,252 | 29,995,292

|

*For year 2004, no significant change is anticipated in the compensation of directors and officers,

As provided in the Company’s Amended By-Laws, the Directors, as
such, shall not receive any stated salary for their services, but by resolution of
the stockholders, a fixed sum and expenses of attendance, if any, may be
allowed for attendance at each regular, special or committee meetings of the
Directors; but no}-hing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any
director from serving the Company in any other capacity and receiving

compensation therefor.

The Company has no standard arrangement with regard to the
renumeration of\ its existing directors and officers aside from the
compensation received as herein stated.

The'registr?nt has not granted any warrant or options to any of its
Directors or Executive Officers.
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item 11. Security \nwnershin of Certain Record Owner and Management

(1} Security Ownership of t:ertain Record and Beneficial Owners

Following is the security ownership as of February 29, 2004 of certain

record and ben“eﬁcial owner of more than 5% of any class of the Company’s
voting securities:

Class Name, Aqdress of Name of Beneficial Gitizenship Number of | Percent
Record qwner and Owner and Relatienship Shares Held
Relationship with With Record Owner
Issuer

A&B PCD Nummee Corp. The Hongkong and Filipino & 378,789,617 37.91%
GJF, Makatl Stock Shanghai Banking Corp. Foreign
Exchange B‘ldg , Ayala Ltd.
Avenue, Makati City PCD participant
No relationship with Government Service
Issuer Insurance System
PCD Participant
Land Bank of the
Philippines
PCD Participant
‘A First Philippine Union None Filipino 230,084,781 | 23.03%
Fenosa, lnc.\ . o
4JF, Benpres Bldg.
Exchange Road corner
Meralca Avenue
Pasig City |
A&B | Meralco Pension Fund | None Filipino 88,548,036 8.86%
Lopez Bidg., lMeralcu
Center, Pasig City
Trust Fund for Meralco
Retirement Plan

"PCD Nommee Corporation is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Philippine
Central Deposntory, Inc. (PCD) and is the registered owner of the shares in
the books of the Company’s transfer agent. The participants of PCD are the

beneficial owners of such shares. PCD holds the shares on their behalf or in

behalf of their clients.
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First Philippine Union Fenosa, Inc. (FPUF) is a joint venture company
between First Plhlllpplrle Holdings Corporation (FPHC) and Union Fenosa
Inversiones, S. A of Spain. Itis owned sixty percent (60%) by FPHC and forty
percent (40%) by Union Fenosa. Union Fenosa is a fully-owned subsidiary of
Union Electrica fenosa which is engaged in the business of power generation
and dlstrlbutloq On 23 December 1999, Union Fenosa Inversiones, S.A.
transferied its mterest in FPUP to Union Fenosa Desarollo Y Accion Exterior,
S.A. The Chalrman, or in his absence, the President of First Philippine Union
Fenosa, Inc. (the “Corporation”), is duly authorized as proxy to vote the
Manila Electric Company (“Meralco”) shares of the Corporation in the Meralco
stockholders meeting as said officer(s) may deem proper or beneficial to the
Corporation and to do such acts and deeds as may be required arising out of

or in connection with this authority.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corp., Ltd. is a participant of PCD
with more than 5% of the company’s outstanding capital stock (part of the
37.91% of the PCD Nominee Corporation ownership). The authorized
signatories of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corp. Ltd. who will
represent the ultimate beneficial owners and vote in their behalf are not
known to the re‘:gistrant. The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corp. Ltd.
Nominated, constituted and appointed the Chairman of the meeting to
represent and \‘rote the shares registered in their name in the Annual
Stockholders’ Meetmg held on June 24 2003.

|

The Government Service Insurance System is a participant of PCD with-
more than 5% |of the company’s outstanding capital stock (part of the
37.91% of the PCD Nominee Corporation ownership). The authorized
signatories of the Government Service Insurance System who will represent
the ultimate benef‘ cial owners and vote in their behalf are not known to the
registrant. In the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 24, 2003, the
shares reglstered in the name of Government Service Insurance System was
represented by Atty Winston F. Garcia. '

The Land Bank of the Phlhppmes isa partnapant of PCD with more than
5% of the company ‘s outstanding capital stock (part of the 37.91% of the
PCD Nominee quporatlon ownership). The authorized signatories of Land
Bank of the Phl|lRplneS who will represent the ultimate beneficial owners and
vote in their behalf are not known to the registrant. In the Annual
Stockholders’ Meetmg held on June 24, 2003, the shares registered in the

name of Land Bank of the Philippines was represented by Ms. Ma. Socorro S.
Morana. . A
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The Meralco Pension Fund was established in 1968 by Meralco to
provide employ‘ee retirement benefits to Meralco employees’ retirement plan.
The Chairman |of the Board of Trustees of Meralco Pension Fund is duly
authorized as proxy to vote the Manila Electric Company (“Meralco”) shares
of the pension fund in the Meralco stockholders meeting as said officer(s)
may deem proper or beneficial to the pension fund and to do such acts and
deeds as may be required arising out of or in connection with this authority.

(2 Securitv Ownership of Management

Followmg are the securities benef‘ icially owned by directors (excluding
those holding only qualifying shares) and executive officers of the Company '
as of December | 31 2003:

|

Name of Beneficial Title of Title of Total Number Citizenship ] Percentol
Owner Class Class ofCommoen Outstanding
“A” Shares “B” Shares Shares ‘
Manuel M. Lopez 0 292,152 269,074 561,226 Filipino 0.06%

‘I Octavio Victor R. Espiritﬁ 609 - 609 Filipino 0.00%
Jesus P. Francisco | 109,967 47,586 157,553 Filipino - 0.02%
Daniel D, Tagaza - \ 22,330 26,810 . 49,140 Filipino 0.00%
Ricardo V. Buencamino | 5,400 1,179 6,579 Filipino 0.00%
Roberto R. Almazora | 3,156 16,651 19,807 Filiping 0.00%
Leonisa C. de la Llana | 5,030 10174 15,204 Filipino - 0.00%
Rafael L. Andrada \ 5,192 3,461 8,653 Filipino . 0.00%
Elpi 0. Cuna, Jr. | 28,835 23,498 52,583 Filiping - 0.01% -

] Jaime R. Camacho \ 4,979 7,286 12,265 Filipino. 0.00%
Gil 8. San Diego | 2,247 . 2,247 Filiping 0.00%
Camilo D. Quiason | 54,798 31,496 86,285 Filipino 8.01%

|

The aggre‘gate number of shares owned of record by the Chief
Executive Offi icers and Directors as of March 1, 2004 is 972,161 shares or
0.10% of the Company s total issued and outstanding shares.

The above‘ executive officers are covered by regulai' contract of
employment and as such covered by the Employees Retirement Program.

No director or officer of the Company owns 5% or more of Merailco’s
voting securities.

Pursuant to the terms of the issuer’'s Employees Stock Ownership Plan
(ESOP), equity securities benefi cially owned by executive officers covered by
subscriptions to existing offerings of the ESOP, including stock dividends, are
as follows: :
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NAME OF EXECUTIVE OFFICER “A” SHARES “B” SHARES TOTAL
Manuel M. Lopez | 68,804 45,868 114,672
Jesus P. Francisco 36,266 24,176 60,442
Daniel D. Tagaza | . 15,769 10,512 26,281
Ricardo V. Buencamino 10,260 6,839 17,099
Roberto R.. Almazora | 10,068 6,711 16,779
Leonisa C. de la Llana| ' 11,431 7.620 19,051
Rafael L. Andrada 16,163 10,774 26,937
Elpi 0. Cuna, Jr. | 6,000 4,000 10,000
Jaime R. Camacho | 1,586 5,057 12,643
Gil S. San Diege | 7,287 4,857 12,144
Camilo D. Quiason | 1,295 863 2,158

|

Pursuant to the terms of the Employees Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP),

subscription to lthle said plan is payable over a period of 5 years through
payroll deductloq. Holding period for the existing offering has ended allowing
participants to prepay the outstanding purchase price.

Voting Trust Holders

The reglst‘rant is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of
~common shares under a voting trust or similar agreement.

Changes in Control

No change|in control in the Company has occurred since the beginning"
of the last fiscal year.

|

lt_em 12. Certain Relationship and Related Transactions

During thq last two (2) years, the régistrant was not party to any
transaction in which any of its Directors or Executive Officers, any nominee

. for election as Dilz'ector or any security holder owning more than 10% of any
class of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares and/or his immediate

family had a matérial interest thereon.

~ PART IV— EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

|
Item 13. Exhihits and Reponts

|

(a) The following exhibit is filed as a separate section of this report:

Exhibit "A” - Consolidated Financial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules
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"(b) Report on SEC Form 17-C (June 2003 to December 2003)

June 2, 2003 ERC Orders

“In the Matter of the Application for Approval of the Rate Schedule to
Implement the NPC Rate Reduction under ERB Case No. 97-02” (ERC
Case No. 2001 — 383/ERB Case No. 97 — 18);

“In Re: Application for Approval of Revision of Rate Schedules and
Appraisal of Properties with Prayer for Provisional Authorlty (ERC
Case No. 2001 — 646);

“In the \Matter of the Application for Approval of the Revised Rate
Schedules in Compliance with Section 36 of Republic Act No. 9136;
ERC Order dated October 30, 2001 “Approval of Properties with
Prayer for Provisional Authority” (ERC Case No. 2001 — 900).

June 12, 2003 -

Copy of LAn Act Granting the Manila Electric Company (MERALCO) a
Franchise to Construct, Operate and Maintain a Distribution System
for the Conveyance of Electric Power to the End Users in the

Cities/Municipalities of Metro Manila, Bulacan, Cavite, Rizal and

 Certain Cities/Municipalities/ Barangays in Batangas, Laguna,

Quezon and Pampanga.

June 18, 2003 -

Press Release (Meralco Clarifies Refund Figures)

June 24 2003 -

AdJustments made by Sycip, Gorres, Velayo & Co (SGV) on the
balance for Meralco Common Stock as reflected in the Fmancnal
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2002;
Apponntment of SGV as Independent Auditors;
Election of Directors:
m] Mr. Fehpe B. Alfonso
o Mr Carlos G. Dominguez (Independent Dlrector)
o M Octawo Victor R. Espiritu
Q Mr. Jesus P. Francisco
a Mr hrlonuco V. Jacob
@  Mr. Manuel M. Lopez
Q Mr Chrlstlan S. Monsod
a Mr Washmgton Z. Sycip (Independent Director)
o Mr Margarlto B. Teves (Independent Director)
oD Mr E»muho A. Vicens
o Mr Cesar E. A. Virata (Independent Director)
Amendme“nt of Articles of Incorporation:
Q Removal of the 10% cap on stock ownership; and
o Creation and incurrence of additional bonded indebtedness

up to a maximum amount of U.S.$600 million
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July 16, 2003 - ,
« Meralco's reply to the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) in the news

article entitled “Meralco to get P8 Billion refund from NAPOCOR"”
published in the July 16, 2003 issue of the Philippine Daily Inquirer.

July 28 2003-
. Res:gnatuon of Director Carlos G. Dominguez and election of Mr.

Edmundo M. Varona as Director;

. Electlon of corporate officers and members of the different Board

' commlttees,

. Approval of the 12% Employees Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP)
Offermg,

. Transfer of Restricted Retained Earnings to Unrestricted Retained
Earnmgs amounting to P12 Billion; and

e Copy of ]Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC) Order “In the Matter of
the Application for Approval of the Special Program to Enhance
EIectrnc:ty Demand (SPEED) Rates with Prayer for Provisional
Authorlty" ERC Case No. 2003-359.

“August 12, 2003 - ‘ , _
. Appointrhent of Mr. Jaime R. Camacho, Vice President of MERALCO as

Acting Cl\aief Information Officer (CIO) effective August 16, 2003,
August 14, 2003 -
o Status of renegotiation of the power supply contracts with First Gas

Power Corporation (FGPC) and Quezon Power Philippines Limited
(QPPL).

August 15, 2003 -
e Copy of Press Release (Meralco Urges Customers wuth Terminated

Contracts to Inquire).

|

September 1, 2003 - ,
e Mr. Edmundo Varona is an Independent Director of the Company.

|

October 13, 2003 -

e Filing of| application for approval of revised rate schedules and
appraisal| of properties with prayer for provisional, pursuant to
paragraph (e), Section 4, Rule 3 of the Implementing Rules and
Regulatio‘\ns of R.A. 9136.

October 17, 2003 -

e Copy of Press Release (Meralco Fetes its 4 Millionth Customer)

|

October 23, 2(1103 -
. InVItatIOI'I to a Presentation of the Third Quarter 2003 Operating
Results and Teleconference Results on the Third Quarter 2003

Operating Resulits.
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November 3, 2003 -

. Deferm“ent of payment of the Third Quarter 2003 cash dividends on
preferred shares due to lack of unrestricted retained earnings.

November 27, 2003
e Mr. Ja:me R. Camacho, Vice President of MERALCO was appointed
Chief Information Officer (CIO) effective December 1, 2003.

December 1, 2003

« On November 27, 2003, Meralco filed its claim for recovery of excess
income |tax as a consequence of the Order of the Supreme Court to
refund to Meralco customers the amount of P0.167 per kWh
begmnmg February 1994 until April 30, 2003, as contained in the

. claim Ietter dated November 20, 2003;

o The ERC approved Meralco’s application for rate adjustment based on
the appralsal of property as of December 31, 2003 through an Order

' issued o&n November 27, 2003;

» The ERq issued an Order dated November 24, 2003 directing Meralco
to commence the implementation of Phase III of the refund scheme
‘starting |January 1, 2004 until June 30, 2004. Meralco is presently
evaluating the financial and legal implications of the Order; and ‘

e Meralco ]f’ led an Application with the SEC for approval of the Meralco
12" ESOP Offering and amendment of the existing ESOP

lmplementmg gmdelmes.

December 4, 2003
o Press Release (Meralco Upgrades Facilities Despite Constraints).

December 8, 2003
e Press Release (Meralco filed Motion for Recon on ERC’s Phase 3

Order).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant|to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section
141 of the Corporation Code, this report is signed on behalf of the issuer by
the undersngned thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Pasig on this ___
day of __APR 16 2006 2004,

US P. FRANCISCO |
- Principal Operating Officer

. HAGA ROSELITA G. ORLINO
Principal Finance Officer Principal Accounting Officer
and _Co}nllptroller :

T
: Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me . this APR 15a3086
2004, affiants exhlbltmg to me their Community Tax Certificates, as follows:

Community Date
Name Tax Cert. No. of Issue Place of Issue
MANUEL M, LOPEZ 22257183 01/_1.6/04 - Pasig City
JESUS P, FJIANCISCO 22292719 02/13/04 Pasig City
DANIEL D.TAGAZA 22262616 01/19/04 Pasig City
ROSELITA G. ORLINO 13791774 01/09/04 . Quezon City
GIL S. SAN DIEGO 13791772 01/09/04 Quezon City
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44 Fila No.82-3237
MERALCO
|
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|

The management of Manfla Electric Company is responsible for all information and representations
contained in the parent company financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002 and in the consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001. The fi nancnal\statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the Philippines and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates
and informed judgment of management with an appropriate consideration to materiality.

In this regard, management malntalns a system of accounting and reporting which prowdes for the
necessary internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets
are safeguarded agamst unauthorized use of disposition and liabilities are recognized. The

management likewise discloses to the Company’s audit committee and to its external auditor: (i) all
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls that could adversely affect its
ability to record, process, and report financial data; (ii) material weaknesses in the internal
controls; and (iii) any fraud that involves management or other employees who exercise significant

roles in internal controls.

The Board of Directors reyuews the financial statements before such statements are approved and
submitted to the stockholders of the Company.

Sycip, Gorres, Velayo & (T.o CPAs, the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has
examined the financial statements of the Company in accordance with generally accepted auditing

standards. in the Phlhpplpes and has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
- completion of such examination, in its report to the Board of Directors and stockholders,

JESUS P. FRANG\ISIEO

President and Chairman of the Board and
Chief Operatirxg Officer Chief Executive Officer
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this dayAP:R 1 ‘6'.2_0&'!004, affiants exhibiting to me
their Community Tax Certificates, as follows:
Name ' Tax Certificate No. Date of Issue Place of Issue .
MANUEL M. LOPEZ 22257183 01/16/04 Pasig City
JESUS P. FRANCISCO 22292719 02/13/04 Pasig City
DANIEL D. TAGAZA 22262616 01/19/04 Pasig City.
- .
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Page No. _#Z _
Book No. _[/[ MARLON I MOISES
Series of 2004. NOTARY FURLIC
UNTIL DECEMBER 31,2004
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City, 0300 Philippines PTYR NO, 1378530
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The Stockholders and the Board of Directors . MARZZ 04 «f :
Manila Electric Compan (’4’ v\o
ectric Company Q,UREC VED (¢
Lopez Building OF INTE LR
- - Ortigas Avenu‘e, Pasig City ) :

We have audtted the accompanymg parent company balance sheets of Manila Electric Company as of

- December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the consolidated balance shieets 6f Manila Electnc Company and

Subsidiaries as
in stockholders‘ equity and cash ﬂ0ws for the years then ended. These financial statements are the

ﬁnanclal statem‘ents based on our audlts

. responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibthty is to express an opxmon on these ,

‘We conducted our audxts in accordance with, audmng standards generally accepted in the Phlhppmes
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about = -
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. - An audit includes examining, ona . -
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessmg the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; as -
well as evaluatmg the overall financial statement praentatxon We beheve that our andtts prowdc L

. _reasonable basas‘for our opmtoa ' _
"In'our aud:tors xeport dated April 25, 2003 our opinien oh the 20ﬁ2 ﬁmncfal statemm .y

quahﬁed due to the nonacerual of contingency losses of #28, 728 million; excluding income tax

' effects, pending the resolution of the Parent Company’s Urgent Motion for Consideration filed with- .

the Supreme Court (SC) on April 14, 2003, As discussed in Note 1(d), on April 30, 2003, the Thtrd
Division of the SC denied the Urgent Motion for Consideration filed by the Parent Company, -
rendering its decxsxon dated November 15, 2002 final and executory. The loss arising from the SC

decision amounted to P28,728 million, which represents the amount of refund to the Parent -

Company’s customers of 0.167 per kwh for billing cycles from February 1994 to December 31,.
2002. -As a result of the refund, the Parent Company has effectively overpaid income taxes estlmated
at #8,902 million. The Parent Company amended its income tax returns for 1999 and 2002 and -

'apphed the overpayment for those years against its 2003 income tax payments. The Parent Company

has a contingent ‘asset for overpaid income taxes for the years 1994 to 1998 and 2000 and 2001

estimated at 7, 1\19 million. Refunds covering the period February 1994 to December 31, 2001
amounting to PZ3 817 million, net of income tax effect for 1999 of 1,126 million, were accounted for

as extraordinary 1‘oss in the 2002 statements of incomne. Refunds covering the period January 1, 2002
to December 31, 2002 amounting to 3,785 million were reflected as reversal of 2002 revenues. The
x effect of R1,133 million in 2002 was reflected as a reduction in the provision for
income tax. The 2002 financial statements have been restated. Accordmgly, our present opinion on
the 2002 financial statements, as presented herem, is no longer qualified. S

SGV & Co is a member practice of Emst & Young Global
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material rcspécts the
financial position of Manila Electric Company as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and Manila ’E]ectrié
Company and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their |
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles:

generally accepted in the Philippines. o

G gt
v. 3. CRUZ . ‘ : ' R .' \ﬂiph;tks A'S)‘s.f.‘l-;\.‘ s .\ ‘}:: -
Partmer .~ . C - L & RIBETH- N
CPA Certificate No. 83687 R {5 MRIBETH’G..UBU Coa
SEC Accreditation No. 0073-A . N, MARZE 2004. R
Tax Identification No. 102-084-744 - \%5, RECEIVED S/ .
PTR No. 7012976 Ny gf,ﬁ,emm_‘_“ _
. January 2, 2004 :
Makati City
March 5, 2004
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES v ’} Coy.
BALANCE SHEETS ‘ - T

A . A , ‘A <, .,; '/:?. _‘"”’u,,v 0,,!'/" ‘.‘;'.*,“.,
/'7/7 - éj’.’
. T 2.
. , Parent Company . Consolidated o
\\ ‘ - 4 " December3l . =
| ' _ 2002 . 2002 2001
\ : : " (Asrestated - - {Asrestated - (As restated -
2003 Notes | and 2) 2003 Notes 1 and 2) Note 2}
’ , ' (Amounts in Millions) R
ASSETS .
Noncurrent Assets o
Utility plant and othc:s at revalued amounts : L '

- (Notes 5 and IS) o . P8548T - 79287 £86,357 PBOM481-  RTISLE:
Construction-in progrws (Note 6) . 6,188 | 8,613 6,677 - 8,Nne 7,039
Investments - at equity (Note 7) . . 4023 - 4,154 2656 2,767 . 931
Investments - atcosy (Note 8) B o 114 114 . . 444 454 -3
Investments in real properties (Note 8) - . - - 74,000 4015 - . 4,085

" Land held for future|development - at cost C - o
(Notes 4.and 15) o - . 93 1,654 - 2346
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 9 and 23) . 21,944 22919 - 22809 23,805 23,180
Total Noncurrent Assets ’ 117,756 115,087 123,917 . 121,895 115,865
. Cnrrent Assetl ‘ . ‘ : ' o L I .
Cash and cash equivalents (Note IO) . 5107. -~ 6,193 - 5320 6,832 . 2966
- Receivables (Nolcs9 11, 15 and20) . - . 21,160 - 20,508 . 23,802 . 21318 21,975
Inventories (Note 12) : . ‘ ©o992 0 ¢ 991 . 1,202 13127 . 2364
Deferred income tax assets (Note 23) - - - o 1,364 - ;,047 1,367 2,049 . 659..
Other currcntassets (Notes 13 andZS) - i 407 - 747 T 468 . 768 ... . TN

29,030 - 30,485 3;159-'" 32280 28741 .
P146,786.. PI455T3  P156,076 . FiS4)75  B144608

. ‘Total Current Assets
| TOTAL ASSETS | '
 STOCKHOLDERS' mumuuvn LIABILITIES -

Stockholders® Equity - . - T o oo E
" Preferred stock (Note ‘14) . o P1,407 . R837 . #1407 - B837° - p8e’ -
Common stock (Note \14) . L 9,993 9993 . 9,993 9,993 -~ 10,063 - .
Capital in excess of par value (Note 14). . 2,895 T 2,974 . - 2,895 2974 - 3,445. -
Subscriptions recewab\le- comimon stock (Note 14) - o (10) (1] (10) (58 .M
Deposits on subscnptlons to preferred stock - 101 150 101 150 - 185
Appraisal increase in utility plant and others (Note 5) 27205 25 894 27,445 26,140 . 25,578
Share in revaluation increment of subsidiaries T . :
and an associate (Nots Sand 7) . 1,695 1.962 1,458 1,716 -
Share in cumulative uanslanon adjustment (Note )] o (39) - ) - L -
Unappropriated retamed eamnings (deficit)” - . . o o L
(Notes 1,2,7, and 14) . 2,951  (11,664) 2,951 (11664) . 15598 .
e = 12,600 - 12600 - 12600

" Appropriatéd retdined eamings (Note 14)
Total Stockholders’ Equity

(Forward)

46,202 42,688 - 46,202 42,688 68,131
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‘ ‘Parent Company _ Consolidated '
| - December 31 .
- 2002 . ©2002 2001
\ : (As restated - (As restated - (As restated -
. 2003 - Notes 1 and 2) 2003 Notes 1 and 2) Note2)
‘ \ _ {Amounts in Millz‘pu:) .
Minority Interest P~ R p2848  P2786  PI39

Noncurrent Llabllma '

Customers’ refund “- noncurrent pomon (Note 1)

Customers’ deposnts (Notes 17 and 18)

Liability arising ﬁ'o‘m deferred pass-through ﬁxel costs
(Notes 9.and 20) . .

" Deferred income. tax liabilities .(Note 23)

Provisions (Notes 18 and 19)

Long-term debt - nct of portion classified as currmt
(Notes 5, 15 and 25)

Estimated liability t’or project developmem {Note 27)

Other noncurrent lisbilities (Note 9)

18689 22504 18680 . 22594 -
13255 11924 13255 11924 - 11,400 .

8286 4544 . 8286 . . 4544

3065 . 3527 . 3,065 . .3527 . 3,740
2870 2,000 - 2,87 2000 - 164
1249 1250 2350 . 3239 3986
. - v 1,630 e -, -
1,09 905 . 1079 905 - 346

48,493 46,744 - 51,224 48,733 21,116 -

Total Noncurrent Liabilities -

Current Liabilities

Notes payable (Noté 16) . S
Accounts payable and other current habxlms -
_ (Notes 4,17, 18,20 and 27)

Customers’ refund - cument portion (Note 1)

" Long-termdebt « - current pomon ’

(Notes 5, 15 and(25)

‘Long-term debt classxﬁed as Wt

(Notes 5, 15 and 2;)

5,286 CC6SST 5816 1344 9605

18,063 18,087 . 20,136 . 20240 17453
6919 . 6134 . 6919 6134 -

7,668 . 507 - 8716 . 6065 25167

L1485 . 20082 14,85 20082 - 22722.

‘ Income tax payable:

Tetal- Cum:m Liabjlities

2 M 52;22; bR

' TOTAL ST OCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

AND LIABILITIES

5.2;09!“ i 56,"-1‘“ e

| P146,786  BI4SST3 R1S6076° B154.175 - B144.606

T

See accompanying Nores %o Financial Statements.
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIE

STATEMENT S OF INCOME
Parent Company “Consolidated
Years Ended December 31 .
12002 . 2002 " 200}
(As restated - (Asrestated - (As restated -
2003 Notes 1 and 2) . 2003 Notes 1 and 2) Noe2) .
) . {Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share Data) .
REVENUES (Notes | 4nd 21) _ P132019  PI17,821  P135035  P120,044  PI327I0 .
- OPERATING EXPENSES : o S R : L
Recoverable purchased power (Notes 20 and 27) . 110,076 98,631 110,076 =~ 98,631 106.279
Operations and maintenance (Notes 20,22and24) - 10336 9,824 10,784 10,415 10333
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 9and22) 4,305 4870 4576 - - 5215 T 5089
Taxes other than income tax (Note 23) 1,728 2891 1,728 2,891 2981
. Cost of contracts and services (Note 22) . .- - I 906 - - 988
Real estate sold . - - - - - . 1,288 494 1812
. , L 126445 116216 - 129,037 118552 - . 127,252 -
OPERATING INCOME " 5574 - 1,605 5,998 1,492 . - 5458
OTHER mcomn(cmcm . - O e
Interest and other chargs net (Notes 9, 18,22'and 25) - (3,052) (G267 . .(3,229) (3,840) (3,287
Unrecoverable purc?‘aased power (Notes 20 and 27) (1,508)  .(1,351) - (1,508) : (1,351) . (953)
Equity in net eamings (losses) of investees (Note 7).~ - 376 - (265) - 207 . 306 - - 605
Recovery of (provision for) probable losses on’ : - P o
- disallowed receivables (Notes 9end 22) - S 6 (1,639 .6 - (1,639 | .~
Write-off of disallowed receivables (Note9 . : - (878 . . .= . (878) . -

@178 (A0 - @524 _(1402) (3635

INCOME (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY o e,
ACTIVITIES BEFORE INCOME TAX, R

- MINORITY INTEREST AND~ . .. ‘ g L T
~ sx'rmo;mmmvmss S 1396 (5.795) - 1474 (Sei0) - 1Em -
PROVISION Foxmsummommcom L e T T
: TAX(NotesJ:nd‘ZJ) . o L e
Cument o . 268 . LoIm T T294 . 198 L1294
Deferréd ' 221 - (1602) . . 21 (1SSTY - (456)
4 489 (1,431) - 505 (1359) 838 -
INCOME (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY : R T

" ACTIVITIES BEFORE MINORITY : : , .

INTEREST AND EXTRAORDINARY LOSS 907 " (4,364) 969  (4551) . o85.
_MINORITY INTEREST : - - __(62) . 187 367
INCOME (LOSS) FROM onmmnv ‘ - . ~ - -

ACTIVITIES | - o907 (4364) %07 (4364) - . 1352
EXTRAORDINARY| LOSS [Notes I(d) and23] . - @aun - - @an . -
NET.INCOME (LOSS) (Note 28) L P907 . . (P28,181) CP907  (P28,181) - P1.352

Basie Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share (Note 28) .

* On income (loss) from ordinary activities . ) . . ‘ :
(®4.442) P0.825 (P4.442) R1.270

Including dcprec:anon on appraisal increase £0.825
Excluding deprec:anon on appralsal increase 1.791 (.48  L791 (3 443) . 2420
‘On net income (Joss) ' ’ ) . I
Including depreciation on appralsal increase .. 0.825 . (28.283) 0.825- (28.283) - 1.270
Excluding depreclanon on appraisal increase - 1.791 (27.289) - . 1.791 - . (27.289) . 2420
Diluted Ezrnmgs Per Common Share (Note 28) ‘ o '
On net income (loss) ‘ : -
Including depreciation on appraisal increase £0.823  (P28.283) £0.823 (F28.283) . RL270
Excluding depreciation on appraisal increase - 1.787 (27.289) Lici At ’

See accompanying Notes (o Financial Statements.
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN | STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

B

Years Ended December 31
- 2002 2001
"(Asrestated - . (Asrestated - .
2003 ' Notesland2) Note2) .
‘ ' T " (Amounts in Millions) _ -
PREFERRED STOCK (Note 14) . ' .
Balance at begmmng of year P37 - - PE63 - #8330
Issuance-of shares ‘ : 608 : v 98
Redemption of shares - (38 . (99) ‘ (65)
Balance at end of jear - 1,407 837 863
COMMON STOCK (Note 14) B " _' R o
Balance at beginning of year - 993 - 10063 . 10,08
Cancelled subscnpnons - . “(70) - ’ -
Balance at end of year : 9993 . - 9993 . 10,06}
CAP!TAL IN EXCESS OF PAR VALUE - N o o
‘Balance at bcgmmng of year 2,974 . 345 3,445
Decrease in subscnpnon on repurchase cﬂ:on (Note l4) - (719 . (471 -
Balance at end of year ' . 2,895 ) 2,974 - 3,445
SUBSCRIPTIONS RECEIVABLE COMMON STOCK (Nome I4) S S Lo _
Balance at beginning|of year 8) . - AmM- (249
Reclassified to (ﬁom) current recelvabls (1 0) . . 86 .- 74
Cancelled subscnynons : 27 - -
Balance at; end of"- yw L ) . 110) . (58 arn -
_DEPOSI'FS ON SUBSCRIPT]ONS TO PREFERRED S‘DOCK - : ‘ ST e
- Balange-at-begi m;ofyw S . . A }59 . W8 T A
'Additional depems on subscriptions - - 610 - ] 42
issuance of shares. i o608 - . - (7Y i (98)
Cancelled subscnpuons (51) . s - ) -
. Balance atend ofyear 101 150 155
‘ APPRAISAL lNCREASE IN UTILITY PLANT - ‘ ,
.-~ AND OTHERS (Note5) - S LT
. Balance at begmnmg of year .'26,140 25578 0 24075
Additions - - - 2,170 - 1,355 - 2,660
Revaluation mcrement‘ of disposed uuhty plant and others - {161) : - -
Depreciation on appraisal increase transferred to- D R o
‘unappropriated retamed eamings .. . - S (704) . (993) (1,157
Balance at cnd of year 27,448 - -26,140 25578 .

(Forward)
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Years Ended December 31

\

2002 2001
© " (Asrestated-  (Asrestated-
2003 Notes 1 and 2) Note 2)
\ ‘ (Amounts in Millions)
SHARE IN REVALUATION lNCREMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AN ASSOCIATE (Note 7) .
" Balance at begmnmg of year 1,716 - -

_ Additions ‘ - . 176 . - -
Depreciation on share in revaluation i increment transferred o

10. uﬁpgmgnated retained eammgg . : (261) C - -
Balance at end ofyear 1,458 . 1,716 - -
SHARE IN CUMULATIVE TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT o

OF AN ASSOCIATE (Note 7 _ S ‘

Balance at beginning of year . = - -
 Translation adjustment during the year 35) - -

. Balance at end o[yw _(35) — -
UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT) '

(Notes7andl4) . P .
Balance at begmnmg of year, as previously reported i - 14,255 15351, 19,387
Prior penod adjustm‘entS arising from customers’ refund (Notc l) : . (26,469) IR e

. Change in accounting for provisions and mtan)gble assets (Note 2) ; 550 - . 247 376
Balance at begmnmg of yw as restated -~ (1L,664) . 15598 .. 18,763
‘Net income (loss) - . :-9%7 . (28,181) 1352
Depreciation-on appmxsal increase in ut:hty plant and others 704 - . .. 993 ° CO,187
Dcprec:ahononsharcmrevaluanon increment of an associate . . 261 7 e T e

- Revaluyation mcremcm of disposed utility plant and othm . . 161 - PR -
Cash dividend on preferred stock - 2%::2008 R S U o ]

| and 10%in2002and 2001 1 - : Coan - (7«3,. SR "
Transfers. from.(to). appropnated rctamed armggrs 12 600 - - . ’ " (6,600)

. Balance at end ofyear L 2, 951 , (ll 664) 15,598 -
APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Note 14) R . s ‘ . : T
Balance at beginning of year 12,600 o 12,600 - 6,000
Transfers from:(to) unEggmpnmed retained eam;ngi 12 500) e a 6,600 . .
Balance at end of yean ' - e 12600 12,600

~ - : .
| £46,202 42,688 - %8,131

\

See accompanying Notes fo Financial Statements. -
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Parent Company -

Consolidated

/;

&
ey,
U oF iNTE

RECEIV E\, &2

S

Years Ended December 31
2002 2002 - 2001 .
/{As restated - (As restated = (As restated - .
2003 Notes | and 2) 2003 Notes [ and 2) Naote 2)
v . {Amounts in Millions)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES | _
Income (loss) from ordmary activities before income . , . o :
* _tax, minority interést and extraordmary loss - £1,396 (®5,795) - P1,474  (P5910) © PRI 823
Adjustmentsfm‘ ; ' . S o SR
Depreciation and amortization = . - 4,308 - 4370 4,576 5,215 5,058
Interest expense on loans and financial chargﬁ 2,629 - 2,411 2,942 © 2842 - 2993
Franchise tax cxgcnse ‘ L1548 - 2,787 1,545 77 2764 -
Interest expense on, customers’ deposuts T 967 1,035 . . 967 1,05 1,014
" Other provisions | - 491 - 505 491 675 38
Interest and dividend income A . (442) .. . (450) @62) . (616) (789)
'Equity in net (earnings) losses of investees @376 . 265 207 _ (306) - (605)
Net loss (gain) on| disposal of utility plant and others an 72 (1)) T2 -
* Provision for (rccovery of) probable losses on _ L . .
disallowed recelvables ON 1,639 6 .. 1639 -
‘Write-off of disallowed. receivables’ . - 878 : - . 878 -
Operanng income before working ¢apital changes 10,392 8,217 11,197 8311 - 12,297
Changes in operanng]asscts and habilms: ' T T _ e P
Decrease (increase) in: =~ . : L . e
- Receivables | . '1.564 - - 1,238 1,899 2,466 . (3,8546)
Inventories . \ . {1 - 68 1190 1,053 . . 2208 : .
Other eurrent assefs - (13 298 154. 2% - (1M)
“Increasedn: - | S , . o . . Sod
Accounts payable : and other current habllmu-' 385 2,534 . - 419 2383 810
Other noncurrcn‘x liabilities : : 22 - 28 - 22 . 28 36
' Customers”. refund 1,595 . 3,785 - 1,595 3,785 -
Net cash generated from operanons 14,150 -~ 16,780 15,456 18,302 1,311
.. Franchise tax paid - , - (1, 148) (2,836).  (1,148) . - (2,836) (2,836)
Interest paid (2,759) C(2,524) (3,246) -~ (2,953) - . (3,0%4)
" Income tax paid - I © . (668) 29) (718) - (1,354)
Interest and dividend received . 442 450 462 616 . 789
Cash flow from ordinary activities 10,685 11,202 11,495 12414 . 4,816
Cash flow froin extraordinary item R ' L . c
Customers’ refund paid ' - {1,617) -~ {1,617) . - C - . -
Net cash provided by operating activities 9,068 . 11,202 9,878 12414 4,816
(Forward)
2 v(ERs ASSISTA!\\.; \
‘0
mmams ueuuzw )
MARZ ¢ 2004. K



S~ A R

l2 No,82-3237
-2

Parent Company Consolidated

Years Ended December 3t

2002 , 2002 2001
(As restated - (As restated - “ (As restated -

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to utility plant and others
Decrease (increase)|in: -

2003 * Notes 1 and 2) 2003 Notes 1 and 2) Note 2)
: (Amounts zn Millions) -

Fe9  Fo)  @emn  Pessy) @2

Other receivables 343 (48) (194) (84) 378

Other noncurrent‘asscts ‘ . 67 451 - 140 . 5120 (3,300)

Land held for future development - - 681 692 . 661
Dividends received from associates 558 261 . 58§ - - 261 . 331
Proceeds from disposal of utility plant and ethers 860 .53 876 . = 53 . -
Collection of advances (additional investments : o R

and advances) B (39) (54) . (204) (12) (666)

Net cash used in investing activities

' CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of:
Long-term debt
‘Notes payable

Proceeds from:
Notes payable
Long-term debt ‘

Advance payment rcr‘.el\;ed froma customer :

" Increase in customers’ deposits

Dividends paid on prefcrred stock

Proceeds from issuance of and subscnpnons no
Preferred stock - | -- .
Common stock . |

Redcmpuon of preferred stock

Decrease in minority interest

(4,649) . (5,842) = (4,964) (5,431) - (10,840)

G277 (1,179 . (6051)  (1,888)  (1485)
@067  (3968)  (2214) - @461  (8155)

500 - © 3,006 500 3,129 . 9,605
421 4 421 45 600°
- 200 0 - 2000 . 2,283
364 187 364 187 936
as) (74) a8 (78 - (T4)
. 6’10 _ o 610 68 - 42
‘ 1 =l 23 - 329
: (38) R 2 2 B ) _-‘(99) 1 (65)

an - (400)

Net cash prowded by (used in) financing activities -

(5 505) (1.791)‘ . ‘6,426) -~ (3, 117) 3,616

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

(1,086) 3,569 .:(1,512) 3,‘866, (2408

6,193 2,624 6832 | 2966 - 5374

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

PS5,107  PR6,193  P5320 P6,832 . P2.966

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES |
Al P ;l‘l )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
x
WRZLAN o

1. Corporate Information
" a. General

Manila Electric Company (the Parent Company) is incorporated in the Philippines. It is
mvolved in the distribution and supply of electricity covering cities and a2 municipality in -
Metro I&"Iamla and in six provinces surrounding Metro Manila. Its subsidiaries, also
mcorpox‘-ated in the Philippines, are mainly engaged in engineering, construction and
consultiflg services, information systems and technology, real estate, and other electricity-

- related services. The number of employees of the Parent Company was 5,849 by the end of
2003, 5, 969 by the end of 2002 and 6,060 by the end of 2001. On a consolidated basis, the
number \Of employees was 6,053 by the end of 2003, 7,784 by the end of 2002 and 7,103 by
the end of 2001. The reglstered ofﬁce address of the Parent Company is Lopez Building,

Ortigas Avenue, Pasng City.

The accompanymg financial statements were approved and authonzed for issue by the Boaxﬂ
of Du‘ectors (BOD) on March 5, 2004.

b. Regulanon 3

-Prior to the enactment of Republlc Act (RA) No. 9136 thc “Electric Power Industry Reform
Act of 2q01 in 2001 (see Note 29), the Parent Company was subject to the ratemaking
regulations and regulatory policies of the Energy Regulatory Board (ERB). On June 8, 2001,
RA No. 9136 was signed into law. RA No. 9136 abohshcd the ERB and created in its place -

the Enaéy Regulatory Comrmssmn (ERC)

e -‘Francl'nse Renewal

On. Marcll 24, 2003 the ERC, in its Orders issued in ERC Cases No. 2003-129 to 139, granted
the Parent Company a Provisional Authority to operate electric services in the Cities of

. Manila, S‘an Juan, Las Pifias, Quezon, Malabon, Makati, Caloocan, Pasay, Mandaluyong and

: Paranaque and the Municipality of Navotas. The Parent Company filed its application for the
issuance of new Certificates of Public Convenience and Necessity (CPCN) for these areas on

- March 21, 2003 since its CPCN covermg the aforemcnnoned ClthS and municipalities explred.

on March \24 2003.

. On June 9, 2003, President Gloria Macapagal-Anoyo s:gned 1nto law RA No. 9209, which
. grented thc\: Parent Company a 25-year franchise to construct, operate and maintain an electric
~ distribution system. The law consolidated 50 previously held franchises covenng citiesand a
mumcxpahty in Metro Manila and other cmes and munlmpa]mcs in six provinces surrounding

.Metro Mamlla
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On February 16 1998, the ERB in ERB Case No 93-118, rendered a decision ordering the
Parent Company to refund to its customers R0.167 per kilowatt-hour (kwh) starting with the

Parent C‘ompany s billing cycles bcgmmng February 1994 until February 1998, or
correspondingly credit the same, in favor of the customers, against their future consumption.
The ERB’s decision superseded and modified the provisional relief of P0.184 per kwh that the

'L(/b

ERB gra‘nted to the Parent Company on January 28, 1994,

'I'he ERB‘ clarmed that the Parent Company had exceeded the maximum allowable rate of
return on rate base (RORB) of 12%. In computmg the RORB, the ERB dlsallowed, among
others, income tax as an operating expense and -computed for the rate base using a method that
is Opposed to the average method pracnced by the Parent Company and sustamed by the. ERB

in its earlier applxcatlons

The Parcnt Company ﬁ]ed a Petition for Review of the ERB s decision before the Court of
Appeals (CA) ‘On February 26, 1999, the CA rendered a decision setting aside the
aforcmentroned ERB decision insofar as it directed the Parent Company to reduce its rates and
effect a refund to its customers The CA hkcwrse demed a motion for reconsrdcrauon filed by

the ERB.|
On Fcbruary 21, 2000, the Parent Company recerved a copy of a petition filed vnth the SC by

. the Repubhc of the Philippines, represented by . the ERB, questioning the aforesaid decrsron of
“ the CA. It also received a similar petition filed by the Lawyers  Against Monopoly and -

Poverty (LAMP) on March 22, 2000. Comments on the said petitions were filed.by the' Parcnt
Company‘on May 24, 2000 and October 30, 2000, respectively. On January: 30 2001 the

N Parcnt Company received Rephes to Comrnents from both petmonu's

On November 15, 2002, ‘the Third Dmsron of the SC reversed the CA decrsron, correlanvely,

the SC dec1sxon affirmed the ERB’s directive that the Parent Company refund its customers

R0.167 pcr kwh starting with thie Parent Company’s billing cycles beginning February 1994

until F ebruary 1998 or correspondingly credit the same ‘against future consumption. The SC*
sustained thc ERB’s disallowance of income tax as an operating cxpense and its method of

compunng the rate base.

On December 5, 2002, the Parent Company filed a Motion for Reconsideration with the SC.

The. motlo‘n is based mainly on the following grounds

i, the drsa]llowance of income tax is contrary to Junsprudence partxcular}y to the decrsxon m

the Galveston and subsequent cases, which became part of Philippine laws and
Junspmdence when the country adopted the Public Service Act from American public
utility laws It likewise runs counter to carher decisions of the ERB itself; :

ii. the decrsron modxﬁes previous SC decisions recogmzmg 12% as the reasonable RORB a

r Cowill bd reduced to about 8%;

the demsron disregards the method of computing the rate base which had been previously
affirmed by the SC nself and _

1.

utility company is entitled to. If income tax is disallowed for rate malcmg, then the RORB -
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A even the successor of the ERB, the ERC, adheres to the principle thaf income tax is part of
ope‘ratmg expenses as set forth in the Uniform Filing Requirements (UFR), which
embodied the detailed guidelines to be followed with respect to the rate unbundlmg
apphcatrons filed in December 2001. : :

On January 27, 2003, the Parent Company filed with the SC a motion seeking thc referral of -
the case to the SC en banc. The motion was denied by the SC in a resolution which the Parent
Company received on March 17, 2003. The Parent: Company filed a Mouon for
Reconsideration of this resolution on April 1, 2003, g

The Mouon for Reconsideration was denied by the Third Dmsron of the SC in its resolutlon

dated Apnl 10, 2003. On the basis of the separate opinion rendered by Justice Artemio V.

' Pangamban, one of the five justices composing the Third Division of the SC, who observed .

that the case should be heard en banc, with oral arguments, the Parent Company ﬁled an
Urgent Monon for Consideration on April 14, 2003 ‘ .

On April 30, 2003, the Third Dmsron of the SC denied the Urgent Motlon for Consxderauon
filed by the Parent Company, rendering its decision dated November 15, 2002 final and ‘
executory The loss arising from the SC decision amounted to 28,728 million, which

" represents the amount of refund to its customers of £0.167 per kwh for billing cycles from.

February 1994 to December 31, 2002: The Company’s 2002 financial statements have been
restated to reflect the 1oss arising from the SC decision. Refunds covering the periods

. February 1994 to December 31, 2001, amounting to £23,817 million, net of tax effect for
.-1999 of B1,126 million (see Note 23), were accounted for as an extraordinary loss in the 2002
* statement|of income. Refunds covering the period January 1, 2002 to December 31,2002, :

amounting to 3,785 million were reflected as a reversal 'of 2002 revenues. The related tax

effect.of 1,133 million is reflected as a reduction in the provision for i mcome tax

(see Note \23) The Company’s revenues for the first five months of 2003 were adJusted to

_reflecta rellback of its drstnbutron rates totaling approxrmately P1,595 million.

The Parenlt Company has reached an agreement with the ERC that the refund wtlI be carried -
out in four‘ phases in such a way that would first satisfy the Parent Company's obligations to’
its more numerous, but smaller and, mainly residential customers, who account for the Parent
Company’ s lower income accounts. Phase I, which involves refunds to residential-and general

" service customers consuming 100 kwh or less of electricity per month, was approved by the

ERC in June 2003. Phase II, which involves refunds to residential and general service -

 customers ‘consummg 101 to 300 kwh per month, was approved by the ERC on July 11, 2003.

The schedule for Phase ITI, which will involve refunds to residential and general service
customers ‘consummg more than 300 kwh of electricity per month, was similarly approved by
the ERC in an Orderissued on November 28, 2003. According to the Order, Phase IH will

. commence‘m January 2004 and should be completed by June 2004. The Parent Company
filed a Monon for Reconsideration, petitioning the Commission to extend the duration of
Phase IlT from six to twelve months. On February 13, 2004, the ERC approved the extension

of the refund period for Phase III to twelve months. For Phase IV, which will involve refunds

to commercial and industrial customers, the Parent Company has proposed to pay the refunds .
d of approximately five years starting May 2005 in order to minimize the financial
burden on the Parent Company. The proposal for Phase IV will be soon filed with ERC.
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AsofD ecember 31, 2003, the balance of the refund for each of the four p

Refund ' _ . Cash Application ,

Phase Amount Payments against Billings Balance
iR (Amounts in Millions) ‘ . y

1 22,170 - R1214 ?329 ' P627 -
i 4,559 403 2,769 1,387 .
m . 4,905 o= = . 4905
v 18,689 ‘ - : - - 18,689

230,323 . _ 21,617 ; 23,098 R25, 608

Of the P6,919 rmlhon current portion of customer refund, about ?2 000 mﬂlxon will be apphed
agamst future billings as agreed with customers. S :

Certain oonsumer groups have asked the ERC to clanfy whether or not the Parent. Company
will be requxred to refund an additional £6,200 million to 6,800 million in interest on the
excess charges the Parent Company had collected. The Parent Company has obtained an
external legal opinion interpreting the SC Decision as not requiring the Parent Company to

" pay interest. Furthermore, Phases I, II and IIT of the refunds were approved by the ERC

without ﬂrovxsxons for the payment of interest on the refund amount.

Rate Apphcatlons w1th ERC

On April 14 2000, the Parent Company ﬁled mth the ERB an. apphcat:on for a k0. 30 per kwh

rate: mcreasc

- In accorda‘nce W1th Section 36 of RA No. 9136 the ERC requu'ed the National Power
Corporanon (NPC) and all the distribution utilities to file their unbundled rate charges within

siX months from the effectivity of RA No. 9136. On December 26, 2001, the Parent Company

 filed with ‘the ERC a petition for its unbundled rate charges. The filing was made in

accordance with the UFR 1ssued by the ERC on October 30, 2001.

On June 17, 2002 the ERC issued an Order consohdatmg the Parent Company s k0 30 per
kwh rate increase petition (ERC Case No. 2001-646) with its unbundling petition (ERC Case
No. 2001-900) in order to simplify and expedite the resolution of the rate cases. All records -
and proceedings of the rate increase application were deemed consolidated with that of the

mbmdlmé The heanngs on the consolidated petitions were terminated on December 19,

2002.-

: On March 20, 2003, the ERC promulgated its Decision on the consolidated rate petitions In

the Demsnon, the ERC granted an Overall Average Tariff Adjustment (OATA) of 20.054 per
kwh, comp~ared to the Parent Company’s February 2003 effective selling price of B5. 4040 per
kwh, not including adjustments due to the Currency Exchange Rate Adjustment (CERA) and
the franchise tax. Meanwhile, according to a press statement released by the ERC, the

approved rates would lead to an overall Weighted Average Tariff Adjustment (WATA) of
£0.22 per kwh when compared to February 2003 rates.
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Inafi lmg dated March 31, 2003, the Parent Company manifested that its computations and
sxmulatxons showed that the unbundled rates approved by the ERC will not result in the
OATA\mennoncd by the Decision nor the WATA found in the ERC’s press statement. The
Parent Fompany also said in its manifestation that it disagreed with a number of the findings,
conclusxons and dispositions of the ERC in its Decision. Thus, the Parent Company stated
that it would not implement the Decision begmmng with its April 2003 billing cycle and it
would ﬁle a motion asking the ERC to reconsider its March 20, 2003 Declslon within the 15-

day penod allowed followmg receipt of the Decision.

<&

On April 9, 2003, the Parent Company filed a Motlon for Reconsideration with ihe ERC. On

4 May 30\ 2003, the ERC released an order resolving the Parent Company’s appcal providing
 for unbundled tariffs that will result in a total increase of 20.17 per kwh over May 2003 levels,

after giving effect to the reduction of rates ordered by the SCin April 2003. This consists of
PO. 0835 per kwh increase reflecting higher generation and transmission charges and a £0.0865
per kwh/increase in Parent Company-related charges (dlstn'butxon, supply, and metenng) The
tariff increase was 1mplemented in Junc 2003. - ,

On October 10, 2003, the Parent Company ﬁled an apphcanon at the ERC seekmg to adjust
. Parent Company-related charges by an average R0.1358 per kwh. The Parent Company’s rate

apphcanon was based on (a) an independent appraisal of 2002 assets appraised at an exchange

- rate of ?53 .096:US$1.00; (b) the Parent Company’s audited 2002 financial statements and

(c) the Company s wexghted average cost of capital (WACC) for 2002,

On Novel-nber 27 2003, the ERC approved an average prowsxona] adjustment in Parent - :
Company-relatcd charges of B0.12 per kwh, effective January 2004. Under the implementing .
rules'and regulations of Electric Power Industry Reform Act (EPIRA), the ERC has up to one
year from the issuance of the provisional approval within which to issué a final decision on'the =

Parent’ Company s petition. Hearing ¢ on the Parent Company s petition started on

 December 22, 2003.

On December 23,2003,a consumer group and three party list congressmen fileda petmon at
the SC scekmg a revocation of the November 27, 2003 provisional increase granted by the -

ERC. In e‘l Resolution dated January 13, 2004, the SC ordered ERC and the Parent Company
to observe the status quo prevailing before the filing of the petmon After the conduct of oral

‘ arguments‘ on the petition on January 27, 2004, the parties were given twenty (20) days or

until F ebrﬁary 16, 2004 to file their respective memoranda before the SC. The respective

" memoranda of the parties were submitted to the SC on February 16, 2004 The status quo .

order remains until lifted by the SC.

CompreheLsive Liability Management Plan (CLMP) '

" On December 4, 2002, the Parent Corhpany announced the creation of a Special committee to -

oversee the formulation and execution of a sustained viability plan and program under the

'CLMP.
- “Thc Parent| Company has short-term and long-term debt maturing in 2004 ﬁmounﬁxig to
B12,954 rmlhon It has determined various options for refinancing its maturing debts. The

Parent Company obtained the agreement of its short-term lenders to further extend payment of

short-term loans due in March 2004 for another 90 days and will consider further extensions

until the Parent Company can complete its refinancing program in
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On June 24, 2003, the Parent Company’s stockholders approved the issuance of additional
bonded|indebtedness of up to US$600 million or its equivalent currencies. The Parent
Company filed an application of similar nature with the ERC last September 5, 2003 which

was approved provisionally by the ERC on January 9, 2004. Public heanngs on the Parent
Company’s application are currently ongoing. ‘

"%..

$

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The pnncxpal accounting pohcles adopted in prepanng the financial statements of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries (collectlvely referred to as the “Company”) are as follows

Basis of Prgparatlon : ' o .
The accompanymg financial statements have been prepared in conforrmty thh accountmg

principles generally accepted in the Philippines under the hxstoncal cost basw, except for utlhty
plant and others which are carried at revalued arnounts . .

Adoption of New Statement of Fmancml Accounnng Standards (SFAS)/

International ‘Accounhmz Standards (IAS) -
The Company adopted the following SFAS/IAS wluch becarne eﬁ'ecuve in 2003:

* SFAS IOI‘IAS 10, “Events After the Balance Sheet Date,” prescn”oes the accountmg pohcles
and disclosures related to adjusting and non-adjusting subsequent events. Additional .
dlsclosures required by the standard were included in the financial statements pnnclpally the
date of authonzahon for release of the ﬁnancml statements S

* SFAS 37/IAS 37, ‘Provmons Contmgent Liabilities and Contmgent Assets ptowdes the -
- criteria fot the recognition and bases for measurement of provmons, contingent liabilities and
connngent assets. The new standard requires that a provision should be recognized when
" (a)an enterpnse has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a pasi event;
- (b)itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be requiredto -
settle the ob]hgatlons and (c) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

F ollowmg the new recognition criteria, the Company reversed the recorded provision for self-
insurance on properties not covered by insurance policies. The change in accounting policy
has been accounted for retroactively and the comparatxve financial statements for 2002 and
2001 have Peen restated. The change decreased net income for 2003 by B1 million and
~increased net income for 2002 and 2001 by 243 million and P38 million,. réspectively.
. Unappropnated retained earnings as of January 1, 2001 has been increased by P376 xmlhon,

- which is the amount of adjustment prior to 2001.

|

» SFAS 38/1/‘&8 38 “Intangible Assets,” establishes the criteria for the recognition and .

' measurement of intangible assets. It also requires that expenditures on research, start-up, -
training, advemsmg and relocation be expensed as incurred. Accordingly, the Company
changed its method of accounting for pre-operating expenses by charging to expense the
unamortized portion of preoperating expenses. Previously, such expenses were deferred and
amortized. The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retroactively and the
comparative statements for 2002 and 2001 have been restated. The change increased net

income for 2003 and 2002 by £83 million and P60 million, respectively, and decreased net




0’?€ RECEIVED ex‘v“
or INTERNP‘\’

income in 2001 by R167 million. There is rio effect on unappronriated retained eammgs as of
January 1, 2001, as the preoperating expenses were incurred in 2001. :

. SFAS 8A, “Deferred Foreign Exchange Differences eliminates the defetrél of foreign

exchange losses arising from long-term monetary items. The adoption of SFAS 8A in 2003
did not nave an effect on the Parent Company’s financial position, results of operations and
cash ﬂo?vs since the then ERB has allowed the Company to recover foreign exchange: losses
on its foreign currency denominated loans through adjustments in customers’ bills as resolved
under ERB Case No. 87-330-CERA 1I [Incremental Currency Exchange Rate Ad_]ustment
‘(ICERA) under the unbund]ed rate structure].. ‘

. New Accounnnz Standards Effective Subsequent to 2003

The Accounting Standards Council has approved the followmg accounting standards whxch will

. be eﬂ'ectnve s‘,ubsequent to 2003

= SFAS 12/IAS 12, “Income Taxes, prescn‘bes the accounting treatment for cument and
deferred i mcome taxes. The standard requires the use of the balance sheet liability method in -
accountmg for deferred income taxes. It requires the recognition of a deferred tax liability
and, subject to certain conditions, deferred tax asset for all temporary differences, with certain

: excepnons The standard provides for the recognition of a deferred tax asset when itis

~ probable that taxable income will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be

used. It also provides for the recognition of a deferred tax liability with respect to asset -
eva]uatno‘ns The Company will adopt SFAS 12/1AS 12 in 2004, The Company has not yct
determmed the ﬁnanclal 1mpact of the adoption of this standard S

. SFAS 17/1AS 17, “Leasec, prescnbes thc accountmg policies and dxsclosures to apply to
finance and operating leases. The Company will adopt SFAS 17/1AS 17 in 2004. The .
Company | has not yet determined the financial impact of the adoption of this standard.

|

s SFAS21/IAS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates,” provides restrictive
conditions for the capitalization of foreign exchange losses. The Company will adopt SFAS
21/1AS 21|in 2005. Similar to the adoption of SFAS 8A in 2003 as discussed above, -
management beheves that the effect of adopnon w111 not be matenal A '

Basis of Consolidation
‘The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and

the fo]lowmg du-ectly-owned subsxdxanes as of December 31 of each year' ~

Country of o . . - Pereentage of Ownership -
. Incorporation  Principal Actw'mu - 2003 2002 2001
" Meralco Energy, Inc. (MED Philippines Energy Systems Management 100 - - 100 100
e-Meralco Ventures, Inc (e-MVTD). Philippines e-Business Development 100 °~ 100 100
Asian Center for Encrgy Management Philippines Research & Development . . 100 100, -
(ACEM) : ' :
Merzlco Financial Services Corporation Philippines F' nancial Serwm Prov:der : 100 100 . -
(Finserv) . - .
Meralco Industrial Enginecring Servzca Philippines Engmecnng, Constmctlon and 97 97 72
Corporation (MIESCOR) : ‘ Consulting Services ' i
Batangas Cogener:mon Corporation Philippines - Power Generation - 55 55
(Batangas Cogen)| A ' _
Corporate Information Solutions. Inc. Philippines Systems Development 51 Sl 51
(CIS) ) 4
Rockwell Land Corporation (Rockwell) Philippines Real Estate s1 s1 51

* [n 2004, the Parent Company s ownership has been reduced to 38%. Accordingly, the Company will deconsahdatz the financial
statements of Batangas Cogeu in 2004. .
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Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company and
cease to be|consolidated from the date on which control is relinquished and transferred out.

Parent company and consolidated financial statements are prepared usmg uniform accountmg
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Intercompany balances
and transactions, including intercompany profits and unrealized profits and losses, are eliminated.

Minority interests represent the interests not held by the Parent Company‘ in MIESCOR and its -
subsidiary MIESCOR Builders, Inc., Batangas Cogeneration Corporation, Corporate Infonnatxon
Solutions, Inc. (CIS) and Rockwell Land Corporatxon (Rockwell) '

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for tmder the equity method in the parent company
financial statements. :

Investments|in Assoclates

- The Company’s investments in associates, entities which are nexther subsidiaries nor joint .
ventures, where the Company owns at least 20% or has significant influence and which are neither

subsidiaries nor joint ventures, are accounted for under the equity method of accounting in the -

 financial statements They are carried in the balance sheets at cost plus post-acquisition changes

in the Company s share in the net assets of the associates, less any impairment in value. Sharein -
the results of operations of the associates is recognized. Proportionate share in unrealized gains '
arising from transactions with its associates are eliminated against the investments accounts.
Unrealized losses are eliminated similarly but only to the extent that there isno evidence of

xmpau-ment of the asset transferred.

Interest in a J oint Venture

. The Parent Company s interest in Soluziona Pl'uhppmes, Inc (Soluz.lona), a joint. venture is

accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The interest in joint venture is carried at*
cost plus post-acqmsmon changes in the share in the net assets of the joint venture, less any
impairment in value. The share in the results of operations of the joint venture is recognized.

Investments i in ]Real Progertlg_sL : S : :
Investments i 1n real properties represent land, bu1ldmg, structures and 1mprovements of the mall

and condominium units for lease of Rockwell. These are carried at cost-(including borrowing
costs) less accumnulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Depreciation is computed on a
straight-line basis over a 35-year penod for the mall and a 20-year penod for the condominium

units for lease,

i
\

Other Investments ,
All other investments held on a long-term basis are valued at cost less any 1mpaxrment in value

and are mc]ude in “Investments - at cost™ account in the balance sheets.

' Unhg Plant and Others

Utility plant and others is stated at revalued amounts less CERA recovenes, accumulated

“depreciation and any impairment loss. Independent property revaluations are performed

periodically. The latest valuanon as of December 31, 2002 was certified by a qualified

~ independent appraiser.
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The initial cost of utility plant and others comprise their purchase pnce mc]udmg unport duties,
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to income in the year the costs -
are mcurred‘ In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted .
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of -
utility plant\and others beyond their originally assessed standard of pcrformancc the expenditures
are capxtahzed as an additional cost of utility plant and others.

In prior years, a two-year lag exists in the recordmg of appralsed values. For 2003, ‘the lag is only
one year. Due to the volume of assets involved, it is not possible to finalize the independent -
valuation an“d to record the results as of the date of the financial statements. For pracucal purposcs,
the Parent Company has consxstently adopted the lag in recordmg

Additions tolutility plant and others subsequent to the last appraisal date‘are stated at cost.
Recorded appralsal increase is reduced by the amount being recovered through the Currency
Exchange Rz\ite Adjustment (CERA II) Clause for Debt Service. Any increase in the utility plant’ s
valuation is credxted to the “Appraisal increase in utility plant and others” account in the balance
sheets. Any decrease is first offset against the increase on earlier valuation in respect of the same
property and|is thereafter charged to current opemung income. Depreciation on appra1sal increase.
charged to operations is transferred to retamed earnings or deﬁclt o '

Upon ERC’s approval- of the Parent Company s new base exchange rate of B40.081, it is allowed
to restate utility plant and others by the amount of the difference between the.previous base '
exchange rate and the newly approved base exchange rate multiplied for each dollar identified in . -
the utility plant and others which were acquired using the proceeds of the forexgn cm'rency -
denominated loans ‘ - oo

" When assets are sold or retired, the1r revalued amounts and accumulated depreciation and any

impairment loss are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal

' is included in|the statements of income. Upon the dlsposal of revalued property, the relevant

portion of the appraisal increase realized in respect of previous valuation is transferred from the
appraisal increase directly to retained earnings or deficit. However, for certain subtransmission

- and distribution assets (e.g., poles, transformers and meters), when an asset in the group is sold or

retired, the assl,et account is credited for the cost of the asset retired and the accumulated
depreciation account is debited for the same amount. For financial reporting purposes,

depreciation of utility plant and others is computed using the stralght-lme funcnonal group method

over the follo%g estimated seful lives:

'Subtransrn~issi0n and distribution ‘ ' 25-35 ycars
Others: | o
' Computers. -+ Syears
Transportation equlpment _ - ~ 5-10 years
Communication equipment o 20 years -
Building and improvements 40 years

Others _ : 20 years
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For income tax reporting purposes, deprecxanon of utlhty plant and others is computed based on -
the doub]e-declmmg balance method ' ,

|

| Depreciation of assets of the subsidiaries, except MIESCOR which-usee sum-of-years’ digits

method for certain assets amounting to 81 million (included in the 2003 consolidated balance

sheet), is co‘mp_uted using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Building and improvements . 35years
. Office furmture fixtures and other equlpment ' - Syears
Transportatlon eqmpment . Syears -
Others ' B ' § years

The useful hfe and depreciation method are revxewed penodlcally to ensure that the penod and
method of deprecxatxon are consistent W1th the expected pattern of econormc benefits from xtems

of utxhty plant and others.

Construcnon in Progress ~
Construction|in progress of subtransmission and distribution substatxons and buxldmg is stated at

cost which includes cost of construction, plant and equipment and other direct costs. Borrowing
costs that are \dnrectly attributable to the construction of utlhty plant and others are capitalized
during the construction period. Construction in progress is not deprectated until such time that the
relevant assets are completed and put into operatlonal use. ' -

_lmalrment of Assets

The carrying values of long—hved assets are reviewed for unpamnent when events or changes in-
circumstanices indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. . If any such indication .
exists and. where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash- '
generatmg units are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount ofan =~

‘asset is the greater of net selling price or value in use.  In assessing value in use, the estimated

future cash ﬂo:ws are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money-and the risks specific to the asset. For an
asset that does|not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is - '
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses, if any, are
recognized as a charge to current operatlons except for utility plant and others, whichare =
recognized as a reduction in the appralsal increase and any excess as a charge to current -

operatlons '

Land Hcld for Future Development

Subdivided and unsubdivided land of Rockwell are stated at the lower of cost or net reahzable
value. Expendxtures for development and improvements of subdivided land are capitalized as part
of the cost of the land. Borrowing costs are cap1tal1zed while development is in progress. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling pnce in the ordmary course of business less the estimated

costs to complete and sell.
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IntangjbIe Assets _ » : , ,
Intangible lassets consist of software cost, consultancy fees and other development expenditures

incurred 1 in relation to a corporate-wide computerization program. These are measured initially at
cost. Aﬁex" initial recognition, deferred charges are measured at cost less accumulated
amortization. These are amortized on a su-alght-lme basis over five years upon unplementatlon of .

such pro_]eots

Deferred Pass-through Fuel Costs

" Deferred pass-through fuel costs are recorded based on actual bllhngs for unconsumcd gas
" determined at the end of the year. A _

Exchange rate differences arising from the restatement of deferred pass-through fuel costs are -

deferred as these costs will be passed on to customers upon consumptxon

" Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are deferred and amortlzed ona straxght-hne basis over the term of the long-
term debt. : , ,

" Cash and.Cash Egulvalents

Cash mcludes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-texm, hlghly liquid
investments tpat are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original matunnes of tlu'ec :
months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Receivables

Receivables. a}e recogmzed and camed at original i invoice amount less an allowance for any -
uncollectible amounts. An estimate for doubtful accounts is made when collection of the full

" amount is. no longer probable '

Inventones

" Materials and \supphes are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Costs incurred in
" bringing materials and supplies to their present location and condition are determined on the
‘moving average method. Net realizable value is the current replacement cost of the asset. ’

“Condominium units for sale of Rockwell are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value.
. Cost includes tpe cost of the land, construction costs and borrowing costs incurred during
‘construction. Net realizable value is the estimated selling pnce in the ordmary course of business

less thc esnmated costs to complete and sell.

Provisions

' Starting on January 1, 2003, provisions are recogmzed when the Company has a present obligation

(legal or constructwe) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obhganon and a reliable estimate can

‘be made of the leount of the obligation. In prior years, provisions for contingencies were accrued

when it is probaPle that a liability had been incurred at balance sheet date and the amount can be
rc_asonab]y estimated. Otherwise, the loss contingency was disclosed. ‘

Contingent Assets
Contingent assets arising from the tax refund discussed in Note 23 are not recognized unless the

realization of the refund is virtually certain.
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Revenue

‘Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic beneﬁts will ﬂow to the

Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The followmg specific recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognized: ‘ :

* Parent Company

Operatm g revenues are recognized upon supply of power to the customers. Prior to June -
2003, the bills rendered monthly were computed according to rate schedules approved by the
ERB in ERB Case Numbers 95-385, 97- 18 and 2001- 168 The bill format had the followmg

components:

- . Basic Charge. This charge allowed the Parent Company to recover 1ts operating expenses |
and attain a reasonable return on its investment. Basic charge also includes fixed :
* Purchased Power Adjustment (PPA) equlvalent toa purchased power cost of P1. 7845 per '

kwh.,

- CERA. CERAIand H'eovered the increases and decreases in the operations and
maintenance expenses and foreign-debt principal payments due to changes in the
Phl]lpplne peso-US dollar exchange rate respectxvely - :

~ - PPA. T}us covered. the increases and decreases in the cost of power bought from the
Parent Company’s power suppliers.” This represents changes in the Parent Company 5
purchased power cost beyond the base level of ?l 7845 per kwh mcorporated in the Basw

Charge

. In cornplxance thh Section 36 of RA No. 9136 the Parent Company filed w1th the ERC last .
December 26, 2001 for the unbundling of its charges to its customers. The UFR on the rate’ f

: unbundhn‘g released by the ERC on October 30, 2001 specified that the Parent. Company's
billing W111 have the following components: Generation Charge, Transmission Charge,
System Loss Charge, Distribution Charge, Supply Charge, Metering Charge, the CERA and . -
Interclass and Lifeline Subsidies. National and Local Franchise Taxes, the Power Act
Reduction (for Residential Customers) and the Universal Charge are also separately indicated
in the custpmer s billing statements. As discussed in Note 1(c), the ERC has issued lts
Demsxon on the Parent Company’s rate unbund]mg apphcatxon. ‘

On February 24, 2003, the ERC issued an- Order approving the Irnplementmg Rules and
Regu]anons (IRR) for the new Generation Rate Adjustment Mechanism (GRAM) and the
Incremental Currency Exchange Rate Adjustment (ICERA). The GRAM and ICERA are the
mechamsrns by which the Parent Company can reflect changes in the levels of the Generation

Charge and the Currency Exchange Rate Adjustment (CERA). The levels of the Generation

" Charge and the CERA are fixed until such time that the ERC approves new levels for these
following a filing by the Parent Company under the GRAM and the ICERA. Theserate
adj ustmenti mechanisms still allow the Parent Company to pass on to its customers changes in
generation ‘costs and some of the effects of the peso depreciation. The cost recovery process,
however, is no longer automatic, as the ERC’s approval is required on a quarterly basis
resulting 1ﬂ a lag between the time the costs are incurred and when they may be recovered.
Accordingly, over or under recoveries in operating revenues at the end of the year are reversed

or accrued.
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s MIESCOR

Revenues from construction contracts are rccogmzed and measured using the percentage of
complet‘lon method of accounting for the physical portion of the contract work, determined
based on the actual costs incurred in relation to the total estimated costs of the contract.
Revenue from contracts to manage, supervise, or coordinate construction activity for others =
and contracts where materials and services are supphed by contract owners are recogmzed '
only to the extent of the contracted fees. . :

Contract|costs principally mclude subcontracted costs related to contract performance.
Expected losses on contracts are recognized immediately when it is probable that the total
contract c‘:osts will exceed total contract revenues. The amount of such loss is.determined -
1nespecqve of whether or not work has commenced on the contract; the stage of completion of
contract activity; or the amount of profits expected to arise on other contracts which are not

. treated as‘\ a single construction contract. Changes in contract performance, contract conditions
and estxm‘ated profitability, including those ansmg from contract penalty provisions, and ﬁnal
contract sett]ements which may result in revisions to estimated costs and gross margins are

‘ recogmzcd in the ycar in Wthh the changes are determmed

.. Rockwell

* "Revenue from sale of real estate is recogmzed when the s:gmﬁcant risks and rewards of
owner‘shxp of the property have passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue ¢an be
measu‘red reliably. Sales of real estate, which include the sale of land and condominium
units, are accounted for under the percentage of completion method where there are o
material obli gations under the sales contracts to provide improvements after the property =
is sold‘ Under this method, the gam on sale is rccogmzed as the related obhgatlons are

fulfilled. A ‘
Cost of condornininr'n units sold before completion of the project is detérmined based on
actual \costs and project estimates of building contractors and technical staff. The

, esnmated future expenditures for development pertain to the cost of condominium units
sold shown as “Estimated liability for pI‘OJeCt development” account in the consohdated

balance sheets.

For inc\\ome tax purposes, full revenue recognition is applied when at least 25% of the _ "
selling price is collected in the year of sale, othermse the installment method is applied.

Revenue from cinema, bowhng, bxlllards and snack bar is recogmzed upon recelpt of cash

from th\e customer. -

- Lease income from condominium units held for lease and from mall operatwns are
" accounted for in accordance with the terms of the lease agreements.

. Intcrest income

Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues.
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Foreign Currency Transactions ' :
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Philippine peso by applying to the forexgn currency

amount the exchange rate between the Philippine peso and the foreign currency at the date of the
transactlons Exchange rate differences arising from the settlement of monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded during the penods are generally
recognized in the statements of income in the period in which they arise. ‘Monetary assets and
liabilities denomnated in foreign currencies are restated using the closmg exchange rate at the
balance sheet date. However, foreign exchange gains or losses arising from restatement of foreign
currency denommated loans to the current exchange rate are deferred (included as part of “Other
noncurrent essets account in the balance sheets) and amortized (shown as part of “Interest and
other charges” account in the statements of income) as amounts are recovered through
correspondmg adjustments in customers’ bllls in accordance with CER.A I (ICERA under the

‘unbundled rate stmctm'e)

Retirement Costs ' ' ' )
The Parent Company has a funded, noncontributory deﬁned beneﬁt retirement plan forall .

permanent e‘mployees In 2003, retirement costs of the Parent Company are actuanally

determined nsmg the projected unit credit method. This method reflects service rendered by .
employees to the date of valuation and mcorporates assumptions concerning employees’ projected
salaries. Renrement costs include current service cost plus amortization of past service cost, ‘
experience a‘djustments and changes in actuarial assumptions over the expected average workmg
lives of the c:overed employees. In prior years, retirement costs of the Parent Company were -
actuarially determmed usmg the entry age normal fundmg method “The effect of the change on

the ﬁnancxal statements is not matenal

Certain sub51 diaries prowde for reurement beneﬁts based on pro_;ected umt credxt method and

 ‘entry age normal fundmg method

Stock Ownership Plan
The Parent Company has a stock ownershlp plan for the grantmg of non—transferable options to .

and employees to purchase fixed number of shares of stock at a stated price during a
iod. When the grants are exercised, the capxtal stock transactions are recorded at the -

management
specified peri

Borrowing Costs '
Bormrowing costs are generally expensed when incurred.  Borrowing costs are capltalu.ed if they

are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.
Capltahzatxon\ of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in

. progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred and ceases when the assets arc

rcady for their intended use.

Leases '
Operatmg lease payments are recogmzed as expense based on the terms of the lease- agreements

Income Tax
Deferred income tax is prov1ded usmg the liability method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to (a) the temporary differences between -
the financial reporting bases of assets and liabilities and their related tax bases; (b) carryforward -

. benefit of the n:et operating loss carryover (NOLCO); and (c) the excess of minimum corporate’

income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
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measured using the tax rate expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled and NOLCO and MCIT are expected
to be apphed A valuation allowance is provided when the deferred tax assets will not be reahzed

" in the future.

;

Prior to the SC decision dxscussed in Notes 1(d) and 23, the provision for income Iax was "
segregated into utility and non-utility operations in the statements of income. The 2002 and 2001

financial statements have been restated to give retroactive effect to the change in the presentatlon

of provision for income tax.

Financial Instruments - A .
The Parent/Company uses various interest rate structures to manage mterest rate risks and to :

-obtain a more stable and predictable interest cost: These structures are generally entered into

concurrent ‘thh the issuance of floating rate debts. Net amounts paid t0 or received from

counterpartxes under these interest rate structures are recorded as interest expense in the period i in

which they ‘accrue

Current accounting practice does not require recognmon of mark-to-market values of derivative
instruments, Mark-to-market values are presented in the related notes for dxsclosure purposes

only.

Subseguent Events
Subsequent events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at balance sheet date are

reflected in the financial statements. . Subsequent events that are indicative of conditions that arose -
aﬁer the balance sheet date are d:sclosed in the ﬁnancxal statements when xmtcnal ‘

Segment Informatwn :

The Company s operating busmesses are organized and managed separately accordmg to the
nature of serwces provided, with each segment represennng a strateglc busmess umt that offers

dxfferent products. . - _
. ‘The powcir distribution segment is mvolved in the distribution and supply of e}ectncxty

| covermg franchise areas in the Luzon region.

= The real estate segment is involved in real- estate deve]opment and leasmg

» The semces segment is involved pnncxpa]ly in engmeerxng, constructlon and consu]tmg
services, and computer-related services.

Segment revenues, segment expenses and segment results include transfers among business
segments. Suoh transfers are accounted for at competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated
customers for similar services. Those transfers are ehmmated in the consolidation. -

Segment assets and segment results for 2002 and 2001 have been restated to reflect the effect of
change in policy with respect to provisions and pre-operating expenses (see Note 2) and
custorner s refund [see Note 1(d)]-

The Company Pperates and generates revenues in the Phlhppmes (1 e., one geographlcal locatmn)
Thus, geographical segment mformanon is not presented.
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4. Supplemehtal Information on Rockwell

Rockwell is engaged in real estate development, sale or lease of residential and commercial lots

" and units and lease of mall facilities. In May 2002, Rockwell commenced construction of its new

condominium project - the “Manansala.” The project broke ground in May 2002 with 93% market

' take up by )\lear-end Rockwell expects to tum over the “Manansala” units by December 2005

Total cash -recexved from pre-selling activities of “Mam.nsala amounted to R389.4 nnlhon as of
December 31, 2002 and is shown as part of “Accounts payable and other current liabilities -
Deposits from pre-selling of condomxmum units” in the 2002 consohdated balance sheet

(see Note 17)

Condensed ﬁnancial information for chkwéll, before intercompany elirnihation, follows:

2003 . . 2002 2001
‘ ’ {Amounts in Millions)
Cash and cash eqmva]ents o C P60 . P362° P147
Trade and other receivables - net ‘ - 2,036 493 1,202
. Investment in real properties - at cost - ‘ _ 4,000 . - - 4,015 - 4,095
Total assets . - 10,130 - 10,005 11,413
Long-térm debt ' ' 2,209 12,983 2,714
Estimated hab\xhty for project developmcnt - 1630 0 o= s
Total habﬂmes S 4321 . 4327 = . 5253
Total stockholders equnty s 5809 5,678 <. 6160 .
Revenues |- ' ST 2,332 - L1125 . 1,970 © -
Costs and expenses R _ 2202 1,606 -2,761
" Net income (loss) | - - 130, - (481) - (191)
,‘.—‘?—’—‘Ao,;;_u
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5 Utllnty Plant and Others

The movementof ity it and othcrs for the year ended Daccmba 31 2003 follows |
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On January 27, 2003, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the conveyance of real propcmes

of MML Peve]opmcnt Center (MMLDC) in Antipolo City, as contribution to fund its pension
obligations to the Meralco Retirement Plan being held in trust by the Meralco Pension Fund

 (MPF). The net book value of the properties transferred amounted to P647 million which reduced

the Parent Company’s unfunded actuanal liability by the same amount (see Note 24).

A Memora\ndum of Agreement and Deed of Ass:gnment conveying the tltle and ownership of thc
real estate properties have been executed between the Parent Company and the Meralco Pensxcm
F und The|corresponding taxes due were paid to the government.

The ori gmal cost bas:s and accumulatcd depreclatwn at cost of utlhty plant and others follow*

o ) Parent Conjpan ' Consohdated
| 2003 2002 2003 2002 2001 .
. 3 ‘ T (Amounts in Millions) i -

At cost: ﬁ _ c . L - c
Subtransmission and distribution’ - P64,252 B55206 - P63,095 P55,206 BS51,902
Others ) 16,393 16,162 - 16,969 16,162 16,348

. ‘ 80,645 - 71,368 80,064 71,368 - 68,250
Land ' : e - - 2 2 2
- - Building and improvements o - e T 164 Lo.212 o

" Office fumltu\re, fixtures and other equipment - - 474 543 - 27
Transportation equxpment - - . 118 18 © 17
Others \ - - 759 - 752 . 44

: ' o 80,645 71,368 81,578 - 72995 69,503 - -
Less accuinulated dep‘reciah’on 22,363 . 17,975 - 22,666 18,654 17,195

e - $58282 . P53393 £58,912 54,341 R52,308

NE

Construction in Progress -

" Parent Company ‘ ~ Consolidated

- Reclassification from advance payments to.

" 4 2003 2002 3003 . 2002 2001

‘ . o {Amounts in Millions) L
" Balance, beginning of year PS613  P6933  BSTI9  BI039  B10S91
 Additions | 6438 - 6505 6818 6.505 - 7.365
Transfers to utility plant and others (sce Note $) 9.629)  (4820)  (.629) (4825  (10917)

suppliers and others 769 L= - 769 . -

£6,188 Pg,613 6,677 P8,719 £7,039 ..

Balance, end of year|

. Construction in pl'ogreés of the Parent Company includes borrowing costs incurred in connection

with the construction of subtransmission and distribution facilities. Borrowing costs capitalized

amounted to P68 million, 2119 million and 9216 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectxvely

Capitalization rates m 2003, 2002 and 2001 ‘were 6 1%, 7.7% and 11 3%, respecnvely
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7. Investments at Equity

In the Parent Company financial statements, subsidiaries, associates, and joint vcntﬁrc are
accounted fPr under the equity method. In the consolidated financial statements, associates and
joint venture with ownership of 50% and below are accounted for under the equity method.

Percentage of Ownership - -

Parent Company  Consolidated
Subsidiaries . oL S '
MEI | . | o ' 0 . -
e-MV1 . - : A : 100 -
ACEM |~ - . S 100 0 .
Finserv | -~ N o . 100 -
MIESCOR N o 97 o
Batangas Cogen - . - 1 1 J .
CIS - . ' R 51 S
Rockwell - : 51, -
~ Associates : ' S
First Private Power Corporatlon and Subsidiary (FPPC) o 40 40 .
General Electnc Philippines Meter and Instmment ' S o B
Company, Inc. (GEPMICI) 3 : . : 35 .35
Joint Venture ‘ ' oo S S
Soluz:ona 50 S50

: ‘ln 2004, the.PnrauCompany:ma:hlphabeanreducdb3m Aacmding!y r.‘neé‘ompmywmdmaldau:beﬁnm
. statemenis of Batanga.r Cogen MZOW .

" The dctaxls and movements of mvestments in SUbsidiarics, associates and joint venture‘ follow: 3
Parent Company Consolidated :
, 2002 : 2002 - 2001,
_ (Asrestated- Umnnmd-@sﬁaaﬁ-
2003 see Note 2) 2003 see Note2) - see Note 2)
. ’ (Amounts in Millions) .
* Acquisition costs S 1,504 R1,465 - PB76 ' F648 . P47
Accumulated equity in net earnings: o . < . -
Balance at beginning of ym, as previously L T ’
reported 834 1,346 . 403 284 84
Effect of change in accountxng for mungible ) ’ . ' .
" assets (see Note 2) - (107) - (167) . - - -
Balance at begl‘nmng of year, as restated 721 LI 403 . 284 .84
- Equity in net earnings (losses) for the year 376 . (265) 207 o306 605
Depreciation ox"A share in revaluation mcrernem 267 - 261 - -
Dividends declared (511) (187) . (511) (1837) ~  (405)
Balance at end of year 859 727 360 403 284
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Parent Company Consolidated
, 2002 2002 2001
~ (As restated- (As restated - (As restated -
2003 - see Note 2) 2003  see Note 21 see NoteJ
] (Amounts in Millions)
Share in revaluation increment of subsidiaries and
an assoc:ate'
Balanceat‘begmmngofyear ‘ . B1,962 - PL716 . B i
Additions during the year : - 1,962 - 1,716 S -
Depreciation on share in revaluation increment _ , o o
(see Note 28) (267 - . (61). . - - -
Balance atlend of year s 1,695 1,962 1455 . 1,716 . -
- Share in cumulative translation adjustment of an S '
associate ' - (3% - Q5 - - - -
' £4,023 £4,154 #2656 £2,767 £931
The carrying values of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture follow:
Parent Company - Consolidated
2002 o 2002 2001
. (Astestated - " . (Asrestated - (As restated -
2003 seeNote2) .° 2003  seeNote2) see Note?2)
] NN : . i i ] {Amounts in Millions) - )
FPPC : oL . B3,262 - P2641  P3262 Pz,su : asu
Rockwell . e , 1,382 1,174 L= e :
GEPMICI ' T S 87 a1 s 65
Others - e oo - 288 - 252 1 N 39 28 .
. £4,023 £4,154 #2,656 £2,767 - $931

Undiétﬁbuted accumulated equity in éamings of investees included in the Patent Company’s

unappropriat

'Condensed financial information for FPPC and GEPMICI follow:

2003 2002 - 2001

ed retained earnings amounted to 2859 million and B727 million as of December 31,
- 2003 and 2002, respectively. These amounts are not currently avallablc for d1$tnbunon as
" dividends until declared by the sub51dxancs and associates. - :

Net income - . 1,0§6 12

FPPC__GEPMICI FPPC___GEPMICI. FPPC__ GEPMICI

" (Amounts in Millions) o
Current assets - '  P1,664 "P350 P1,374 - P293 - PL176 P313
Noncurrent assets . 2618 . 40 4242 .45 4,685 53
© Current liabilities 1,273 131 103 - 90 1,070 122
Noncurrent liabilities 1,860 - 2,370 - 2,749 _
Net assets 1,149 259 2212 248 . 2,042 244
Revenues , 2,851 399 2634 305 2,689 4m
Costs and expenses = 1,785 387 1,885 . 301 1,890 420
749 4 799 57
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The aggregate amounts of the Parent Company’s proportionate share in the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses related to its 50% interest in Soluziona follows:

| R 2003 2002 2001

] . (Amounts in Millions)
Current assets P82 P88 RO4
Noncurrent ‘assets . - 10 - 167 28 -
Current liabilities - , S (41) - (56) . (66)
~ Noncurrent liabilities ‘ (2) - (5) - (18) -
Net assets : L R49 : 843 R38
Revenues o RISO - B207 - RI99
Costs and expenses 163 - 191 175
Net income 217 : Blé . P24

. Investments in Real Propertnes and Investments at Cost

Investments in real properties mclude the accumulated costs mcurred for the development and
construction }of the mall, “The Power Plant,” and condominium units held for lease. Unamortized
borrowing casts (net of depreciation) capitalized as part of investments in real properties
amounted to P332 million and 2343 million as of December 31 2003 and 2002 respectlvcly No -

borrowing costs were capttahzed Starting 2001

On May 12 1‘999 Rockwell entered into an agreement w1th Rockwetl Leisure Club Inc. (RLCI)
for the assxgn‘ment of facilities and the related condominium certificates of title carrying the :
premises amounting to 2400 million, in exchange for advances convertible irito shares of stock of
RLCIL Asof ‘December 31, 2003, investments in RLCI shares and advances convertible to RLCI
shares amounted to 227 million @31 million in 2002 and 60 million in 2001) and R210 million -
®210 million in 2002 and P187 rmlhon in 2001) respectively (shown as part of “Investments -at

cost ')

lAs discussed in Note 15(b), investments in real prOpernes of Rockwell with a carrying value of

23,700 million as of December 31,2003, serve as collateral on certam long-term debt of
Rockwell. .

Prior to 2003,

the Company presented investments in real properties and investments at cost as -

part of investments and advances account in the balance sheets. Starting 2003, the Company E

separately disc
Prior year pare

loses investments in real properties and investments at cost in the balance sheet.
nt company and consolidated balance sheets were restated to glve effect to the

change in presentation.
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Parent Company Consolidated
2003 2002 - 2003 2002 2001
o ) ' ' - ' IR (Amounts in Millions) _
Deferred pass-through fuel costs (see Note 20) -~ $8,286 . P4,544 P8,286 . P4544 B
Deferred foreign exchange loss (CERA II) : 658 - 7,501 6,588 72,501 6677
Deferred PPA |(net of allowance for probable . ‘ -
disallowance of #710 million and .
P1,639 million in 2003 and 2002, m ‘ : _
- respectively) : 3,487 5,757 3,487 5757 ° 10300
Prepaid income tax - net of current portion o ' g
, (see Note 23) . . 3 . 1,088 1,353 1 055 1,383 -
Intangible asets net’ - _ ' - 788 1,577 - 788 1,577 2456
- Unamortized debt issuance costs : " 726 84s 726 845 938
. Deferred charges on system imbalance penalties . o '
(net of allomu for probable disallowances Co : ,
of R399, m:lllon in 2003) (see Note 22) ) ' - 370 o= 370 89
Input value added taxes (VAT) and credltable v T ' . : :
withholding taxes ' - - 452 .. 364 748
Deferred income tax (see Note 23) : - - 80 . 117
\ g ' 1014 - 972 1,347 1,423 1,855

Others .
i 21,944 £22 919 $22,809 . P23.80S $£23,180

a. 'Deferred pass-through fuel costs

Deferred pass-through ﬁxel costs represents the quantlty and cost of natural gas that’ was
' conu-acted for but not consumed by the Parent Company’s major independent power .
producers‘ First-Gas Power Corporation (FGPC) and FGP Corp. [collectively referred to as -
“First Gas™ - see Notes 20-anid 27(a)}, due to the constrained dispatch imposed on them by the
National Power Corporation(NPC)/National Transmission-Corporation (TransCo). Both
FGPC’s 1,000 megawatt (MW) Sta. Rita plant and FGP Corp.’s 500-MW San Lorenzo plant
should be dispatched at the stipulated capacity factor of 83% every year. Billings by First Gas
. for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 for such unconsumed gas amounted to
US$64 m:]lnon and US$85 million, respecuvely Such unconsumed gas can be utilized over a
period of 10 years up to 2013. The payment term is dependent upon the outcome of the
dispute described below. The related liability is presented as “Liability arising from deferred
pass-throuLgh fuel costs” account in the balance sheets and is interest-bearing starting February
2003. The interest rate is based on LIBOR plus 1%. Total interest for the year ended
December|31; 2003 amounted to 152 million and is shown as part of “Interest and other .
charges™ account in the 2003 statements of income. The related l1abxhty for interest is shown

as part of “Other noncurrent liabilities” account in the balance shects

‘A dispute has arisen between First Gas and the Gas Sellers (Shcll Phlhppmes Exploratxon

- BV, Shell‘ Philippines LLC, Texaco Philippines, Inc., and PNOC Exploration Corporation)
under the Gas Sale and Purchase Agreements (GSPA) between First Gas and the Gas Sellers.
First Gas’ posmon is that the Gas Sellers have breached the terms of the “Most Favored
Nations Clause” (MFN) contained in the GSPA by failing to notify and offer First Gas certain

~ pricing terms and conditions that the Gas Sellers have previously offered to National Power
Corpomhor‘x (NPC) in connection with NPC’s 1,200 MW Ilijan Power Plant. The Gas Sellers
offered a deferred payment facility to NPC to finance payment for NPC’s take-or-pay
obligations \undcr its GSPA with the Gas Sellers for the llijan Power Plant. The Gas Sellers
have not off\‘ercd the Ilijan Price Terms to FGP including a deferred payment facility.
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With re spect to 2002, FGP is of the view that it has fully comphed with its obligations under -
the GSPA and is, therefore, not hable to Gas Sellers for any take-or-pay obligations. FGPC is -
of the position that the Gas Sellers are obligated to offer the complete Ilijan Price terms, which
include a deferred payment: facﬂlty pursuant to the MFN. -

If the G‘as Sellers had provided First Gas wrth a deferred payment facility pursuant to the
MEFN under the GSPA, any take-or-pay obligations in 2003 and 2002 deemed owed by FGP to.
the Gas| Sellers and the disputed amounts, if deemed owed by FGPC to the Gas Sellers, would
be defenable under such deferred payment facility. Consequently, FGP has taken the position
that its entire amount of obligation is subject of a bonafide dispute between FGP and the Gas
Sellers. ‘F GPC has also taken the position that the dxsputed amount is subject of a bonaﬁde :

dlspute between FGPC and the Gas Sellers S

On a mclnthly basis commencing in March 2003, the Gas Sellers have mvoxced Fu'st Gas for
interest in connection with the 2002 disputed take-or-pay obligations. Given FGP’s position
that it is not liable for any take-or-pay obligations, FGP is of the position that it is not liable
for any interest payments on the said amount. Also, given FGPC’s position that it is entitled
to the lluan price terms, including deferred payment facility, and such claim constitutes a bona

* fide dispute, the interest should be computed using a lower rate as stipulated in the GSPA. .
-Under the terms of the GSPA such mterest is not due for payment unul such tune that the

dispute is resolved

intends to wgorously pursue xts dtspute with Gas Sellers under the GSPA.’

resolutxon through arbm-anons of saxd dxsputes to happen wzthm the next twoto twoanda half ,

- years.

- Consequently, the Parent Company s obhgauons to pay for uncon.sumed gas for 2003 and -

2002 would also be deferrable until resolution of the dispute. The hablhty on unconsumed gas
is present}ed as a noncurrent liability and is shown as “Llabxhry arising from deferred pass-
through fuel costs” in the balance sheets.” The related interest is presented as pan of “Other

' noncurrent liabilities” account in the balance sheets.

The benef' ciaries of the dispute are the Parent Cornpany and the consumers who will benefit

from any reduction in the cost of natural gas, as the cost of fuel is a pass-through cost. In case
First Gas loses in the dispute, First Gas will collect from the Parent Company the deferred
payments ‘due to the Gas Sellers. The parties are meetmg and explonng possibllmes on how

‘the unconsumed gas will be utilized.

Nonetheless, the Parent Company expects that with the increasing deinand for electricity

* beginning|in 2005, First Gas will be dispatched sufficiently by TransCo to utilize the
-unconsumed gas w1thm the prescribed 10-year penod : _ :

CERAII

CERAI r=presents deferred forexgn exchange losses that are billable to customers upon
approval of the ERC. :
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Deferred PPA
Deferred PPA represents unbilled purchased power costs mcurred by the Parent Company

|

On qul 30, 2002, the ERC issued a Cease and De515t Order (CDO) ordermg the Parent .
Company to cease and desist from automatically billing unbilled PPAs. The Parent Company .
filed a I\E/Iotzon for Reconsideration on May 7, 2002 which the ERC denied on May 28, 2002.
On December 19, 2002, the ERC issued an Order under ERC Case No. 2001-383 stating that
upon verification of the Parent Company’s computation of the unbilled PPAs of :
9,269 nnlhon as of September 30, 2002, only $7,180 million can be billed to the customers.
The dlfference of 2,079 million, which was not allowed to be recovered from customersby -

- the ERC, pertains to anti-pilferage campaign expenses of 1,279 million and VAT savings in
Independent Power Producers’ (IPP) costs of 810 million which were reflected in residential

customers bills as part of the PO .30 per kwh MRR prowded forin Sectxon 72ofRA

. No. 9136.

The Pare‘nt Company has wntten-off the portlon related to antl-pllferage campalgn expenses
of ?1,279 million. Of this amount, P401 million is reflected as reduction in revenue while
£878 million is shown as part of “Write-off of disallowed receivables” in the 2002 statements
of income. Pending final resolution by ERC and the competent Court, the Parent Company -

* provided an allowance and a provision for probable losses for the remaining portion of the

dlsallowe‘mces by the ERC amounting to 2810 million. In a letter dated October 30, 2002, the
ERC ordered the Parent Company not to implement a change in the current procedure of using

“a portion \of the VAT savings in IPP costs as part-of the MRR. The Parent Company .

contmued to-absorb a pomon of the 30 centavos MRR reduenon pending ERC’s ﬁml
resolutxor\x. ‘ : o o -
Of the total approved deferred PPA in 2002 Pl 545 mﬂhon pertams to transmission. lme fee

charges of Quezon Power (Philippines) Limited Co. (QPPL) for the period January. 1, 2000 to |
September 30, 2002 which is still being evaluated by the ERC. The recoverability of this ’

. portion of the deferred PPA depends on the outcome of the evaluation of the ERC. The Parent

Company} has provided an allowance of P829 million for this portion and the provision'is |

included i in “Provision for probable losses on dtsallowcd recewables“ in the 2002 statements

- of income.

Starting June 2003, the Parent Company did not bill the estimated portion of the dxsallowed
' transmlssxon line fee charges. A portion of the transmission line fee charges for the year "

ended December 31, 2003 amounting to 523 million, is shown as part of “Recovery of
(provision for) probable losses on disallowed receivables” account in the 2003 statements of

income. The provisioning for both periods were estimated based on the ERC Decision

- dlscussed in Note 1(e).

thle the ERC in the same order has allowed the Parent Company to collect P5,635 million
(27,180 million less 1,545 million) of the total deferred PPA as of 2002, the manner and

schedule for the collection were not specified.




““PL‘ YERS ASS'STA“C\\

& NARIBETH & LASUAZA) ™
MAR Z ¢ 2004 \@,‘/

RECEIVED 9‘6‘” .
| | OF INTERNALEZ
In ERC’s Decision on the Parent Company’s rate unbundlmg dated Marc s the
Parent Company was authorized to collect the deferred PPA of B5,635 rmlhon through its
rates to customers by an amount equivalent to P0.0875 per kwh over a period of three years.
In a manifestation filed with the ERC on April 1, 2003, the Parent Company stated that it
would begin collecting the said amount begmmng in the Apnl 2003 billing cycle.

-26-

. On May 29, 2003, the ERC issued an Order authorizing the Parent Company to collect

effech\e in the June 2003 billing cycle an additional amount of £0.0127 per kwh as deferred -
PPA recovery. This additional £0.0127 per kwh, together with the RO. 0875 per kwh collection’
of Wthh started in the billing month of April 2003, brings to £0.1002 per kwh the total
defen'ed PPA recovery that will be mcorporated in the Generatxon Charge component of the o
customers® bills. : _

Based on the collectlon penod approved by the ERC, current and noncurrent portmn of the

deferred PPA is as follows: -
2003 » © 2002
‘ - — ' {(Amounts in Millions)

Current [shown as part of “Notes and customers’ ‘ , o .
accounts” (see Note 11)} - - - - S~ P2,619 - PBlL144
Noncurrerit - net - S 3,487 . 5,757
Total . o f', - R6, 106 : ’ PG 901

‘ On Dece mber &, 2003, the Parent Company madc its first apphcat]on under the GRAM ,
-covering the period May to September 2003 supply months. An amended applicationwas

filed on January 16, 2004.. On January 26, 2004, the Parent Company received-an Order from

' the ERC dated January 21, 2004 approving a Generation Charge of £3.1886 per.kwh,

inclusive of the deferred PPA. In that same Order, the ERC disallowed the recovery of

“R199 million of the VAT savings passed on as part of the mandated residential reduction for

the penod July 2001 to October 2001 supply months. The accumulated VAT savings passed -

_on as part of the mandated residential reduction for the supply months November 2001 to
"October 2003 of P1,798 million was authorized for recovery over a 36-month period via an

addmonal P0.0224 per kwh to the deferred PPA component of the Generation Charge starting
February | 2004 As a result, the Parent Company reversed in 2003 the allowance for probable
losses of P810 nulhon in 2002 pertaining to unrecovered MRR. '

. Intangible assets

Intangib]e\ assets represent mainly soﬁware cost, consu]tancy fees and other developmcnt

‘expendltuxl'e related to the Parent Company’s corporate-wide computerization program. The -

program involves all of the Parent Company’s business processes, namely, customer service,

' dxstnbuho\n materials management, finance, human resources, logistics and executive
-information system. Amortization (shown as part of “Depreciation and amortization” account

in the statements of income) charged to operations amounted to 789 million, 879 million
and ?779 million for the years ended December 31 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectlvely

2003 - 2002
. (Amounts in Millions) .
Balance, beginning of year . _ $1,577 - P2456
Amortization (see Note 22) L 789 - 879
P788 R1,577

Balance, end of year
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‘e. Deferred Acharlges on system imbalance pcna’ltics

The Parant Company withheld payment startmg July 2001 the 50% penalty on the energy
charge imposed by NPC (TransCo starting October 2002) on the excess imbalance energy
mcuned\hy the Parent Company’s IPPs. The Parent Company contested the 50% penalty
because of its apparent application to the Parent Company’s IPPs only. These charges’
amounted to 399 million as of December 31, 2003. Although the matter was raised to the
ERC in a December 16, 2002 letter, there was no resolution of the issué. The penalty on
1mba1anc$: charges was also included among the claims that the Parent Company sought
~compensation from NPC in a letter dated March 14, 2003. This was, however, not mentioned
in the Settlement Agreement s:gned by the Parent Company and NPC on July 15, 2003. '

: Rccovery from customers of the total withheld amount of 9399 rmlhon coverxng the penod
July 2001 to October 2003 will be pursued by the Parent Company through an appropriate
filing at thF ERC. While the Parent Company still has to seek ERC approval on the recovery
mechanism, the Parent Company made a provmon for probable dxsallowancas of the same

amount.

. f. Others.

“Othcrs mclude matured placements w:th a local bank amounnng to B272 nulhon as of
December %1 2002 (P383 million as of December 31, 2001). The local bank was placed o
under receivership on April 26, 2000. Based on the Memorandum of Agreement and pursuant .
. to the. Llabxllty Servicing Plan of the Rehabilitation Plan for the local bank, 75% of the o

placements were converted into “Repayment Notes” which are payable over a period of three . . -

years comml‘:ncmg on September 14, 2002 and 25% were converted into “Promissory Notes”
payable over 2 period of three years commencing on September 14, 2005. On October s,
2001, the “R\epayment Notes” due on September 14, 2002 were dlscounted The Parent
Company collected Pl 11 rmlllon on Scptember 14 2003.

10. 'Casll and Cash Equivalents

" Parent Company . Consolidated

l ' 2003 2002 2003 2002 2001

. : ] i ] ' .- (Amounts in Millions) . .
Cashonhandandinbanks . = $2,099 . PL414  $2280  RLEA 2124
Short-term investments : -~ 3,008 - 4779 - 3,040 5,191 842

| ‘ ¥5,107 £6,193 $5320 - P6,832 P2,966

g Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term investments are made for
varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the -
Company and earn mterest_at the prevailing short-term investment rates.
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11. Receivables
. Parent Company ‘ Consolidated
\ : 2003 2002 2003 2002 2001
‘ o ' 4 (Amounts in Millions) .
Notes and customers’ accounts: o . o
Billed \ ' _ £10,070 P9,975 . P12,356 . PI10,870  PI11,392
Unbllled (see Note 9) 11,647 10,685 11,647 10,685 10,350 -
Related parties (sce Note 20) - 292 - 468 1 190 86 .38
Others 0 748 962 1,391 1,348 1,162
Lo 22,757 22,090 - 25,584 22,989 - 23,287
Less allowance for doubtful accounts C . -1,597 1,582 1,782 1,671 - 1,312
\ $21,160. ?20,508 $23,802 B21,318 . 921,975

|

Unbxl]ed receivables represent purchased power costs mcmred by the Parent Company Wthh will

be billed to customers in the succcedxng months.

As discussed in Note 15(b), receivables amounting to B715 miilion from the “Manansaia"' |

\

condominium project have been assigned as security for the syndicated loan of Rockwell.

-12. Inventories | -
Parent Company _. . Consohdated
2003 . 2002 2003 2002 .- 2001
: \ . T (Amotnts in Millions)
Materials and supphes -at net reahzable value P92 ol P1,020° API,'W . Pl 754
‘ Condominium units for sale - at net realizable : ‘ : o . W
_value | | = = 182 . - 266 610
\ - $992 - P99) $1,202 P1 312 82,364
13. Other Current Assets
Parent Coan Consolidatéd- .
2003 2002 2003 2002 2001
’ (Amounts in Millions) )
Current portion of prepaid income tax : o .
(seeNote23) S . P298 - P268 P298 8268 [
Advance payments to supphers 94 394 - 118 394 694
Others | ' : 15 85 55 107 83
- ) £407 R747 P468 £769 R7TT.
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Capital Stock
2003 2002 - 2001
. . (Amounts in Millions)
Preferred stock - 10%, R10 par value ‘
Authorized - 300,000,000 shares
Issued and subscribed Series B - 140,655,458 shares in 2003 S o
83,715,340 shares in 2002, and 86,317,451 shares in 2001 : 1,407 P837 - P863
Commeon stock - 10 par value
" Authorized:
s Class A - 648, 000 000 shara
Class B - 432,000,000 shares
Issued - 997,473,465 shares in 2003, 995,734,487 sham in 2002 . A
. | and 995,718,823 shares in 2001 . #9975 "P9.957 . P9.957
Subscribed - 1,787,996 shares in 2003, 3,526 974 shars in 2002 ) o ) :
~ |and 10, 592 471 shares in 2001 . : 18 .. 36 . 106
99,993 P9, 993 £10,063

“The Artlcles of Incorporanon of the Parent Company was amended based on aresolution . -

taken dl."xnng the Annual Stockholders’ meeting held on May 28, 2002, to increase authorized -
common stock from 1,080,000,000 common shares with par value of P10 to 1,242,000,000 - ‘
commoﬁ shares. The Amended Artlcles of Incorporahon w111 be ﬁled with the Securmes and .

Exchange Comrmsswn (SEC)

_Preferred stock is nonparnclpatmg, nonconvertﬂnle into common stock and, like common -

stock, has no preemptive right to subscribe to any or all issues or other disposition of preferred .
stock. Preferred stockholders are entitled to cumulative dividends not exceeding 20% a year, -
as may be determined by the Board of Directors, payable generally on a quarterly basis. As -

' approved by the SEC redeemed stock are not consxdered retlred and may be relssued.

Preferred stock should be issued senal]y in blocks of not less than 100, 000 shares Shares of
preferred stock comprising one series shall have thc same nghts and restrictions. -

Series B Lreferred stock is redeemable five years from date of issue at the option of the Parent
Company or holder upon 90 days notice. In cases where a service application would require
extens:on or new distribution facilities, the “Terms and Conditions of Sérvice” of the Parent
Compan)(, which was approved by the ERB, require apphcants for electric service to subscribe
to preferred stock to cover the costs. The Parent Company issues the underlying preferred
stock to the customers. As of December 31, 2003, only Series B preferred stock is active.

 Asof December 31, 2003, cumulative dividends on preferred stock that have not been
declared or pald since second quarter of 2003 amounted to approximately 65 million.

e e - —
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- Movement of capital stock follows:
. _Number of Shares
. 2003 ‘ 2002 2001
Preferred stock: : ' - ‘ o -
Balance at beginning of ymr o , 83,715,340 86,317,451 83,018,928
Issuance of shares 60,813,590 7,354,900 9,836,900
Redemption of shares - (3,873,472) (9.957011)  (6,538377)
Balance at end of year . 140,655,458 83,715,340 86,317,451
Common stock:
lssued - ‘ . . ‘
' ?alance at begmnmg of year _ .- 995,734,487 995,718,823 .995,006,383
Issuance of shares : 1,738,978 . 15,664 712,440
Balance at end of year . 997,473,465 995,734,487 995,718,823
Subseribed: ' o o o -
' Balance at begmmng of year , 3,526,974 10,592,471 11,304,911
- Issuance of shares . ‘ , '(1,738,978) ‘ (15,664) (712,440)
Cancelled subscriptions ‘ __(7,049,833) .
Balance at endivear - _ l 787,996 3.525,974 - 10,592 471 .

Authorize d shares of common stock of the Parent Company whleh are listed at the Phxhppme ‘
Stock Exc hange (PSE) are dxwded in two classes :

. Class “A” - Compnsmg sxxty percent (60%) of the common: stock, can be subscn“bed by
' Fih'pmo citizens or corporations or associations orgamzed under the laws of the :
Philippines at 1east sxxty percent (60%) of whose capital is owned by Fxhpmo cmzens and

. Class *B” - Cornpnsmg forty percent (40%) of the commion stoek, can be subsenbed by, o
' Atransferred to and owned by exther Filipino citizens or by aliens. '

Omersm;: of the Parent Company’s common stock by any person or entity shall not exceed .
10% of the outstanding common stock, except for the two corporatlons which already own.
more than 10% as prov1ded for in the Articles of Incorporatxon

On _February 24, 2003, the BOD approved a resolution to remove the stock ownership cap of
10% in the{ Parent Company’s Articles of Incorporation. The resolution was subsequently

approved in the Annual Stockholders’ meeting held on June 24, 2003. The Amended Articles
of Incoxporatron were filed wrth SEC on July 29 2003 and were approved on August 4, 2003

. Emp]oyee Stock Owners}up Plan (ESOP or the Plan) -

" The Parent Company’s Plan entitles regula_r employees of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries and retirees of the Parent Company to purchase shares of common stock of the
Parent Company on offering years at a purchase price, and payment and other terms to be .
defined at the time of offering. The purchase price per share shall not be less than 80% of the
weighted average daily closing market price at the PSE during a 30-day calendar period that
ends two weeks before the start of the offering year. The terms of the Plan include, among
others, a two to three-year holding period of the purchased shares and authorizes caneellatmn

of the purchase prior to full payment of the purchase price.




-31-

‘-_
MAR { ! 2004 5{,
A summary of shares under the Plan follows:

' : Number of Shares
. | . 2003 2002 2001
Total shares allocated 25,000,000 25,000,000 - 25,000,000
. Options exercxsed under the Plan o L S

Bala‘mce at beginning of year ' 12,909,510 . 18,367,249 18,367,249

Less cancellations ' 5,457,739 ) -
Balance at end of year 12 ,909,51( 510 12,909,510 18,367,249
Options unexercised at end of year - , 12,090,490 12, 090 ,490 6,632,751

Asof DLcember 31, 2002, accumu]ated cancelled shares from partxmpants totaled 5,457,739
- shares \N‘thh was approved by BOD. The cancellation of the ESOP subscription is reflected
‘asa revqrsal of the subscribed common shares and the corresponding: subscriptions receivable

and capital in excess of par value in the 2002 statement of changes in stockholders’ cqmty It

has been\ the policy of the Parent Company to re-offer cancel]ed shares to quahﬁed

parhc:pants in subsequent offenngs

In 2003, common shares arising from cancelled subscriptions under the ESOP 11% Offering in
1999, we\re subscribed by qualified participants under the repurchase option approved by the

- SEC. The remaining al]ocanon to the Plan of about 12 million.common shares was offered for
sale durmg the ESOP 12® Offering (“Centenmal Oﬁ'ermg ") from December 16 to 31, 2003 as

approved by the SEC

c R:tamed"iﬁannngs
On July 23,2001, the BOD approved the transfer of 6,600 million from unappropriated
retained eamings to appropnated reteined eamnings for long-term expansion and improvement
projects.

On Iuly 28,2003, the BOD approved a rcsolutlon to revert the appropnated retaxned earnings
of 12, 600 million to unappropnated retained earnings. : o

15. Long-term Debt

o - * - Parent Company K Consolidated -
| : 2003 2002 2003 2002 2001
: {Amounts in Milliqu) :

Parent Company - Secured
" First Mortgage Bonds issued for: -
Gross avaxlmcms from various credit facilities:
. US dollar tcrm loans at annual interest rates
ranging from 7.76% to 9.3%, payable in C o . .
semi-annual installments up 10 2012 P6,884  P7135 - P63884 - BTI3S F7,404
Japanese yen\term loans at annual interest E ‘
rates of 5.5% and 5.7%, payablein

serm-annual installments up to 2010 3,673 3,583 3,673 3,583 - 3,574

(Forward)
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‘ . Parent Company . 4 " Consolidated
\ . 2003 2002 2003 2002 2001
) . - (Amounts in Millions) ' ‘
Deutschmark term loans at annual interest . '
- rate of 6.0%, payable in serm-annual .- ‘ :
mstall‘ments up to 2005* ‘ #1334 P441 #334 )] 8511
US dolar term loan at annual interest rate : ' .
of 2. 7%, payable in semi-annual i
" installments up to 2002 = - - - 17
) | . 10,891 11%159 10,891 11,159 11,506

Parent Company - Unsecured

U dollar term Joan at annual interest rate
of 6-month LIBOR plus 1%, payable in : ' o . ‘ -
semi-annual \mstallmgnts upto 2005 4,447 5,325 0 4447 5325 5,169

US dollar term loan at annual interest rate T o

of 6-month LIBOR plus 1.6%, payable in . . S
semi-annual msta]lmems upto 2005 - 4,002 6,390 4,002 639 6,203

Philippine peso term loan at annual interest rate ‘ . . ' :
of 10.93%, payable in quarterly mstallrnents ) ‘ ' . .
up to 2005 2,790 2910 - 2,790 2,910 . 3,000

Philippine peso term loan at armual interest rate - ' ' ‘ e

of 11.78%, payable in quarterly installments
up to 2006 .

Euro availment under the Mastcr Credit
Agreement at\an annual interest rate of 5. 56%,.
payable in equal semi-annual- msmllmena . _ - N
until 2010 ' ‘ 232 L= 232 < T -

US dollar term loans.at annual interest rate .~ e A o o
of 6-month LIBOR plus 0.65%, payablc , L . o S

_ msenu—annuahnstannxmsuptozom 130 % . 180 - 9 -

CHFavaﬂmtundcrdxeMasthedtt ' T ' o _ o
Agreement at an annual interest rate of S ;

" 6-month LIBOR plus 0.7%, payable in equal

M40 600 440 . 60 . 600

semi-annual installments until 2010 120 - " 120 . -
Philippine peso loans payable to govemment - . , e
entitiés with average annual interestrate”
of 3.5%, payable in quanerly mstallments - i P -
upto 2011 | 20 26 20 26 3
| 12,181 15,344 12,181 - 15,344 15,004
Rockwell - Secnr‘ed by Rockwell Assets : : . . ' o
Long-term commerclal papers (LTCPs) , - - 667 1,333 2,000
V s - - - 828 936 . -

Loans from vanous banks

§xnd1cated loan payable to aJocal bank ‘ - IR 714 714 714
| - = 2,209 2983 2,714 |
\ ) 23,072 . 26,503 25,281 29486 - 29224
Less current portion ' ' : I -
Currerit portion|based on cxnsnng payment _ ‘ ' : '
terms ' 7,668 5,071 . 8,776 6,065 2516
. Long-term debt|classified as current 14,155 20,182 - 14,155 20,182 22,922

| 21,823. . 25253 - v 22,931 26,247 25,238
| $1,249 91,250 $2,350 P3,239 #3,986

*Converted 10 Euro on January 1,2002 at { Euro = 1. 95583 Deuz:ckmark
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The Fi 1rst Mortgage Bonds issued under an indenture as primary obligations and those issued
as co]]ateral for all the other secured loans have a first mortgage lien on substantially all of the
Parent Fompany s utility plant (R84,848 million as of December 31, 2003, £78,300 million as
of December 31, 2002 and R76,100 million as of December 31 2001) in favor of a ]ocal bank, -
as trustee, for the benefit of all bondholders

The md‘enture and loan agreements contain restrictions with respect to, among others,
encumbrances on assets; payments of dividends subject to certain conditions; acquisition of

' addmonal franchise areas; disposition of a significant portion of the Parent Company’s assets;

avaxlment of additional long-term borrowings; and maintenance of certain financial ratios. In

‘ addmon\ substantially all of the Parent Company’s existing loan agreements contain Ccross

default prowsxons which may render the outstanding loans due and demandable. For the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Parent Company did not comply with-the -
rmmmum required return on net fixed assets of 8% required by two secured creditors.

However, the Parent Company has received a waiver of noncompliance to this requirement
from one of these secured creditors and has received notice from the other secured creditor
thata wa‘wer will be issued subject to certain conditions. In addition, for the years ended

' December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Parent Company did not comply with certain financial .

ratios requxred by its unsecured creditors. The Parent Company, however, continues to service
the prmctpal and interest payments at maturity dates and has not received any demand for

. payment nor has any of its exlstmg creditors commenced default proceedmgs

| IAS requtres the classification of debt in techmcal default as noncurrent account only when

the lender has agreed, prior to the financial statements, not to demand payment asa -
consequence of the breach or violation and it is not probable that future breaches or violations

will occur within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

The Parerit Company is in the process of securing waivers from the concerned secured and
unsecured creditors for noncompliance to certain financial ratios. Pending receipt of the
waivers, these loans totaling £14,155 million as of December 31, 2003, were presented as part
of cm'rent\habxlmes under the account “Long-term debt classified as current”. Prior year

 parent company and consolidated long-term debt have been reclassified accordingly
- (B20,182 million in 2002 and £22,722 million in 2001). Such loans will continue to be

serviced blased on the ongmal contracted payment schedule and should the Parent Company

receive the relevant waivers, the loans will be reclassified back to noncurrent liabilities.

On February 8, 2002 the Parent Company executed a Master Credit Agreement (MCA) with
Credit Lyonnals whereby the latter granted the Parent Company a credit facility up to an

" aggregate maximum amount of US$30 million. Under the MCA, the Parent Company has

committed obhgatxons amounting to US$10.94 million as of December 31, 2003 for the
funding of two major projects to be completed by foreign suppliers until the second quarter of
2004. Actual loan drawdowns amounted to US$8.7 million as of December 31, 2003. Timing

. of drawdowns correspond to the schedule of payments to the forclgx suppliers under the

respective supply contracts.



The estimated schedule of repaymcnts of long-tcrm debt of the Parent Company based on g
existing payment terms is as follows: - :
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Amount in Original Currency
Japanese
Yen

~Philippine

US Dollar Euro Peso

2004
2005 - 77
2006 | ‘ T4
2007 ‘ 15
2008 thereafter ' 74

{Amounts in Millions)
¥1,011 €4 -
1,011 o .2
- 1,011 .

1,011

| P1,305
1,815
124
51390
. 3,035 1 5759

$100

Total -

| $280

In equivalent pesos

-1
*7,079 € #3250

15,583 3,673 66 3350 RB0n

i

i.

..

" Amount N |
‘ Bank (Tn Millions) _ Restructured Terms ,
Equitable PCI Bank, R586 Payable in three equal annual amortizations of
Inc. - | P234 million each, commencing on July 1,
‘ *| 2003.  Interest shall be equivalent to the 91-
{ day MART 1 rate plus 2.75% per annum,
payable quarterly in arrears.
Metropolitan Bank 162 Payable in thirty-six equal month]y
| and Trust Company amortizations of B7.6 million each, -
commencing on December 30, 2002. Interest
rate is fixed at 9.75% per annum, payable
: monthly.
| Total | R748

.
b. Rockwell .
| LTCPs

|

The LTCPs are payable in 12 equal quarterly payments commencing -on the first quarter of
2002\ The interest rate shall be equivalentto the applicable 91-day Philippine Treasury -
bill rate plus a spread of two and one-fourth percent (2 1/4%). The LTCPs are secured by
a Mortgage Trust Indenture (MTI) over investments in real properties thh a carrymg

value of #3,700 mllhon as of December 31, 2003 (see Note 8) .

In January 2004, Rockwell initiated reﬁnancmg a porhon of its matunng LTCP prmmpal
obhgatxons As of March 5, 2004 dxscusswns are sull ongomg ,

Loans from Vanous Banks

Loans from various banks have annual interest rates ranging from 7.49% to 12.00% in _
2003 and 8.41% to 15.00% in 2002. Certain parcels of land with an estimated cartymg _
value of B817 million havc becn assxgned as security for these loans - _

- In Septhber 2002, a substantial portion of the short-term loans of Rockwell was -

restmc‘turcd As of December 31, 2003, the outstandmg balance of these restructured
loans fol]lows :
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The remaining balance of P80 million is secured by trade receivables from sale of ¢ cmstmg

co‘ndormmum units of the same amount, and will be settled in 2004 @20 rmlhon) and -

2005 (®60 million).

Sy]ndicated Loah
€ Syndicated loan (with an original amount of 1,000 million) is pﬁyéble in three years |
inc\lusive_ of a one and a half year grace period in equal principal quarterly installments

commencing at the end of the 6th quarter from drawdown date of November 1999, The

interest rate for the B250 million portion of the loan is fixed at 14.5% per annum while the

interest rate for the remaining 750 million shall be equivalent to the 91-day MART 1 rate
plus 2.75% per annum payable quarterly in arrears.. In December 2002, the outstanding
balancc of the syndicated loan of B714 million was restructured extending the- maturity .
date to December 2005. Under the terms of the restructuring agreement, the synd:catcd

' loaﬁ will be repaid in single lump sum on maturity date.. Trade receivables amounting to

P715 million from the “Manansala” condominium project maturing in 2005 and -
investments in real properties with a carrying value of $3,700 million as of Decembcr 31,
2003 have been asmgned as security for these loans (see Notes 8 and 11)..
N Repayments of Rockwel] 'long-tcrm debt based on existing terms are scheduled as follows. -
Amount .
L o .. - (In Millions)
';>oo4 - ' '  I - P1,108°
2005 andonwards L o L101
16. Notes Payable
' Parent Company - ‘Consolidated - ,
2003 2002 2003 2002 2001
) ‘ , (Amounis in Millions) : _
Parent Company - Unsecured
US dollar loans with annual
interest rates ranging from 3.3% to 4. 56% in
2003, 6.13% to 6.875% in 2002 and 3.6% to y ‘ . - o
7.93 % in 2001 - #3,833 R4,742 ~ P$3,833 P4, 742 PS5 531
Phlhppmc pesa lPaM with annual mtemst rates . , : ' :
‘ ranging from 6.25% to 10.18% in 2003,
6.875% to 10.177% in 2002 and 11% to 12% L
"in 2001 < 1,453 1,925 . 1,453 1,925 1,931
Rockwell - Secured by Rockwell Assets ‘ ‘ ' ' ’
Philippine peso term loans with annual interest
' rates ranging from 8.41% to 15% i 2002 and , ' ,
13.5% to 16/5% in 2001 ‘_ - - - 90 - 1,466

(Forward)
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Parent Company ' Consolidated -
| . 2003 2002 2003 2002 2001
‘ . " (Amounts in Millions)
MIESCOR - Unsecured . . ° : '
Philippine peso term loans with annual interest
rates ranging from 7.8% to 15.2% in 2003,
7.8% to 11.8% in 2002 and 14.6% to 18.3% . C
in 2001 ' _ B~ B P458 £492 P597 -

CIS - Unsecured A
Philippine pcso\term loans wnh annual interest
rates ranging from 8% to 14% in 2003, 14% , ' ' b
in 2002 and 14% to 14.75% in 2001 ' - 7 95 80
\ Bs, 286 6,667 PS5 816 _ P7344-  BO60S

As dxscussed]lm Note l(f) the. Parent Corrq:any s short-term lenders have agreed to further cxtend
the short-term loans due in March 2004 for another 90 days and will consider further extensions

“until the Parent Company can complete its reﬁnancmg program th!s year.

As discussed i in Note 15, short-term loans of Rockwell amounting to #8936 million were

restructured i m 2002. Accordmgly, these loans are rcﬂectcd as part of the long-term debt in 2002

A]'

17. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

_ Parent Company - - Consohdated

| - . i 2003 2002 - 2003 2002 2001
: . c N A (Amow:u in MlHion.y ’ N
Trade accounts payable (see Note 20) ’ £11,968 Pl3 122 B12,073 P13 757_ . LRI1I9TE
Accrued pension o 2,115 - 363 2,133 378 ¢ -
Accrued taxes o L1442 718 1,163 742 - 617
Current portion of meter and service deposits ' PN I
(see Note 18) - 470 480 470 480 . 688
Advance payment received from pole rentals 380 .200 . - 380 - 20 - | =~
Accrued interest on loans - 2R 411 288 412 s;
Current portion of interest on meter and service o A
deposits (see Note 18) : 101 72 ‘101 72 . 31
- Current portion of a“dvance payment recelved ‘ : e : C .
froma customer (see Note 18) . ‘ - . 633 - 633 799
Deposits from pre-selling of condominium units ‘ o o I
(see Note 4) - v . - - - o389 -
Customers® deposits : - - - 297 417 187
Accrued expenses and other liabilities’ : 1,605 . 2,088 3,234 - 2,760 2626

| * £18,063 R18,087 - $120,136 #20,240 17,453

On August 3, 20(\)1 Rockwell and First Philippine Holdings Corporation (FPHC), a shareholder,
entered into an option contract whereby the latter can purchase two parcels of land with a total
area of about 3, 008 square meters at an option price of 100,000 per square meter, inclusive of all
taxes.  The opnon period shall be for a period of two years. As of Decémber 31, 2002, total

' payments received by Rockwell under the contract amounted to 285 million and are shown as

part of “Accounts|payable and other current liabilities - customers’ deposits” in the 2002

consolidated balance sheet. This opnon was exercised in 2003 and shown as part of “Revcnucs

-account in the 2003 statcment of income.
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In Apnl 2093 Rockwell and FPHC entered into a lease agreement related to the above parcels of
land whereby Rockwell leased back the parcels of land for a period of three years subject to an -
increase of 10% per annum. Rent expense of Rockwell amounted to P6 million for the elght

' 'months ended Decembcr 31, 2003.

18. Customers’ Depaosits

- _Parent Company and Consolidated

2003 2002 2001
: (Amounts in Millions) :
Meter and service deposits - net of current portion (a) oo » - #9,800 " PB898  B7,866
Interests on meter and service deposits - net of current portion =~ 3458 3,026 2,730
Advance payment received from a customer - net of current pomon ' ‘ o X
(see Note l7)(b) o - . - 804
- i ' $13,255 R11,924 P)l A00

a. Meter depos:ts cover 50% of the cost of the metenng eqmpment whlle the service depos:ts
secure payments of the monthly bills for electricity consumption and are equivalent to the
esnmated bill for one month of service. These deposits are refundable, together with accrued

. interest, tlxpon termination of the contract, provided that the metering equipment is returned in
good condxtlon and all accounts in the name of the customer have been paid. However, if the
service depos:ts and related accrued interest already exceed the customer’s current monthly

_bllls, arefund of the excess can also be made

Meter anc‘i service dep051ts eamed interest at 6% pcrannum prior to 1995. In 1995 the ERB - © -
issued new. standard rules and regulanons governing electric utilities, which includes among -
others, mcreasmg the interest rate of these deposits from 6% to 10%. The Parent Company
fileda rnotlon for reconsideration which was given due course by the ERB. In 2000, the ERB
resolved the motion maintaining its stand on the 10% interest but allowed the Parent Company

_ to apply the interests due on-the monthly bills of customers. The amendatory order issued in
2000 is yet to undergo pubhcatxon in the official gazette or a newspaper of general circulation
before it b}ecomes effective. Since 1995, the Parent Company has recognized the provision for’

_ the addmonal 4% but continues to give refund at 6%. The 4% accrued interest differential is
presented as part of “Provisions” account in the balance sheets (see Note 19).

- The Parent Company filed an application with the ERC on January 10 2003, docketed as ERC

Case No. 2003-18; seeking the lowering of the rate of interest on meter and bill deposits from -

the 6% interest per annum stipulated in its approved “Terms and Conditions of Service” to 1%

interest pe‘r annum. The ERC is prcsently hearing the case.

Interests OIL meter and service deposits are determined using the sxmple computation method. -
The Parent Company’s external legal counsel is of the opinion that since there is no exprcsscd
stipulation|in the Terms and Conditions of Service as approved by the ERB for the Parent
Company and the consumers that interest shall earn compounded mterest then ipso facto the

" 6% interest cannot be compounded.
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Meter and service deposits and related accrued interest which are estimated to be refunded in -
the following year, based on historical experience, are shown separately as part of “Accounts
payable and other current liabilities” account in the balance sheets (see Note 17).

b. Advance payment received from major industrial customers (referred to as “customer™) -
represents the present value of a customers’ expected future electrical requirements for the
- next one to three years until 2003, as specified in the advance payment agreement. The
dlﬁ'eren‘ce between the total amount received and the total pre-agreed credit is amortized using
the effective interest rate method and recorded as part of “Interest and other charges-Interest
expense} on customers’ deposits” account in the statements of income (see Note 22). -
Amortization for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 amounted to PSS mxlhon and

R133 xmlllon, respectxvely

On August 23, 2002, a customer pre~termmated its agreement resultmg to a preternunauon
loss of B9 million which is shown as part of “Interest and other charges-Interest. expense on
customers’ deposits” account in the statements of i income (sce Note 22) o

19. Provisions

Movement during the year follows:

_ Parent Company and Consolidated -

2003 - 2002 2001
: - . (Amouncs in Millions) -

Interstdlﬁ'erenual onmeterandsemcedepos:ts(see Note 18) o e i L

_Balance, begmmng of year . . _ ‘ : . 92,000 1,644 S P13

" Provisions during the year . - . . 3719 356 - 3y

Balance, end of year : . 2,379 2,000 1,644
Provision for various tax assessments and legal claxms ' ' : .

Balance, be‘gmmng of year ' - - -

‘Provisions during the year (sée Note 22) C - .. 491 e -

Balance, en:l ofyear ‘ , ) : . 491 - -

' ¥2,870 #2,000 Pl ,644

~Actual payout of the interest differential on meter and service deposits will depend on the ERC'

decision on th‘e Parent Company’s apphcanon fora resoluuon on the appropnate interest rate due
on the deposxts (see Note 18). -

Information on tax assessments and Iegal claims required by SFAS 37/IAS 37, “Provisions,
Contingent Ll?bllltles and Contingent Assets,” is not disclosed as it may prejudice the Company’s
position as regards these assessments and claims.
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20. Related Party Transactions

. The following significant transactions have been entered into by the Parent Company wnh related
parties: |- : - ' ' ‘
Purchases Deferred . Amounts Amounts -

s o * from Pass-Through Owed by - Owedto
, Relationship with _ Related Fuel Costs Related Parties Related Parties
" Related Party Parent Company Parties (see Note 9)  (see Note 11)  (see Note 17)
. " . o : ‘ o ’ © (Amounts in Mlll:m) - .
FGPC - Affiliate 2003 P28,120  B2616 S - 8,631
(see Notes 9 and 27) , 2002 - 20,615 3849 - 3540
: .01 1372 . - = 2932
_FGP Corp. . Affiliate . 2003 13978 . L1260~ - 2gys
(see Notes9and 27) - 2002 . 4964 - 65 . 0 - EER T Y I
. S ‘ 2001 ’ ' - . - . - ) : -
MIESCOR - Subsidiary 2003 .o1s - ‘ 2
: : o 2002 200 - 202 -
. ... 2001 - 357 . - 224 -
Soluziona Joint Venture 2003 338 - 2 . 8
: 2002 - - 396 L= s Lo
. 2001 236 L= 2 -
GEPMICI . Associate - 2008 . .. 195 . - - ‘2
R 2002 378 . - . - -
o _ o S0 269 L - - -
Philippine Electric Corp. ‘Affiliate 2003 ~ - 546 - S 2
(PHILEC) - : . 2002 612 - . = 56
' g c 2000 o1 - - 43

FGPC, FGP Corp and PHILEC are subs:dlanes of I-'PHC a shareholder

Purchases . ' ‘
Purchases from related parhes consist of purchases of power (FGPC and FGP Corp ), construction

- services (MIESCOR) information systems technology services (Solunona) transformers
(PHILEC) and meters (GEPMICI). These are made at normal market prices.

Revenues ,
In the ordmary course of busmess the Parent Company provxdes electncuy to related parties

within its franchxsc area. The rates for these related partxes are comparable with those from-
' unrelated parties. :

' Other transactions with related partles consist of nonmterest-beanng cash advances.
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In comphance with Section 36 of RA No. 9136, the Parent Company was required to unbundle its
billing charges to customers. For the year ended December 31; 2003, the Parent Company s

billings had the following components:

Amount
(In Millions) .
Electric revenue ' ‘
January to May 2003 )
Basic charge’ B25,347
PPA 27,143
CERAI 1,810
i ‘ 54,300
June to December 2003 S
Generation charge 42,105
Transm:ssxon charge 15,669 -
System loss charge - 6,363
qsmbunon charge 10,199 -
Supply charge - 3287 - .
Meftenng charge 1,511 o
CFRA r. 16
Power act reduction : o (1,499) -
_Inter-class, lifeline subsujy and others A (504)
Electric revenue 131,747 .
- Non-electric revenue L3
TR P32019
22. Expenses
Operations and Maintenance
Parent Company . Consolidated
2003 2002 . 2003 2002 2001 -
) ' . (Amounts in Millions) :
Salaries, wages and employee benefits ‘ - g N
(see Note 24) 3,849 P4,298  P3,988 P4,S63  B4287
‘Retirement expense (sec Note 24) 2,400 . 1,142 2,404 1,144 - 1,150
Contractors’ scmm 1,984 1,961 1,865 1,962 2,005
Transportation anq travel 553 175 557 184 238
Provision for various tax assessments and legal : - . :

. claims (see Note 19) 491 - 491 - . -
Materials and supplies 300 306 310 . 334 564
Corporate expenses 115 131 17 148 128
Property insurance 82 87 - 93 87 7
Provision for inventory obsolescence and : . .

inventories written off 26 186 26 362 38 -
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 2 13 16 28 33
Provision for doubtful accounts - 414 200 498 495
_ Others 534 1,111 717 1,108 1,324

P10,336 P9,824 £10,784 P10415 £10,333
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Depreciation and Amortization QF INTERN B
' Parent Company Consolidated
2003 2002 2003 2002 200!
. - (Amounss i Millions)
Depreciation at cost ‘ p2818 - $2,998 P3,083 - $3343 . p3123
Depreciation on appraisal increase (see Note 28) 698 993 704 993 1,157
Amortization of deferred charges (see Note 9) 789 879 789 879 779

£4,305 - P4,870 R4,576 . B521S R5,059

Cost of Contracts and Services . _ |
' - Consolidated ‘

2003 2002 2001
, (Amounts in Millions)

Materials and supplies S ‘ - p2ss 67 . R0
Salaries, wags\and employee benefits _ ‘ - 188 174 - 192
Contractors’ services : , 70. 47 - 115,
Gas and oil ' 16 - 28 90
Others : ' ; . _ 59 - 390 321

PS8S £906 pogs
Interest and Other Charges - Net -

Parent Company Consahdated
2003 2002 2003 2002 2001

— "~ A : (Amounts in Millions) - _‘
CERA Hrecovery - A . S BL24 T B6ET . P124) P669 PSI13
Interest and dividend income 443 . 436 .. 463 . B8 789
Others | SERTEUUUREI | - SUURDE-S. - - S S
Total financial income - 1,800 . L7 1,93’7'-' C1,288 - 1,302
Interest expense ¢ and financial charges on Ioa.ns : ) ' : S .

- (see Note 9) . (2,629) “(2,411) - (2,942) (2,842) - (2,993)
CERA I realized foreign exchange loss : (1,241) (667) (1,241) 667 (513)
Interest expense on customers d:posns ' oo i o L

(see Note 18) ' 967) (1;035) 967) (1,038 - ' (1,014)
Others ' ‘ (15) (271) (16) (579) (69)
Total financial expenses : (4,852) (4,384) (5,166) (5,123) (4,589)

@3,052)  (P3.267)  (¥3229) (P3.840) _ (P3,287)

Recovery of (I)TOV!Slon for) Drobable losses on disallowed receivables (see Note 9)

Parent Company and
Consolidated
2003 .2002
~(Amounts in Millions)
Provisions for: '
Estimated disallowed transmission line fee charges . . ' (®523) (P829)
‘System imbalance charges (see Note 19) - ‘ (399) -
Unrecovered|mandated. rate reduction : - (810)
(922) . (1,639
Recovery of: : ‘ . )
Unrecovered mandated rate reduction 810 -
Estimated diéallowed transmission line fee charges ° : 118 -
928 - S -
$6 (®1,639)
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23.Income and Franchise Taxes < OF INTERNAL

a. Income tax

As a result of the refund discussed in Note 1(d), the Parent Company has effectively overpaid
income taxes estimated at 8,902 million. This amount represents the income tax effect of the -
£0.167 per kwh rate charged to customers from February 1994 to December 31, 2002, which -
formed | part of the Parent Company’s revenues for the said periods. The Parent Company
amcnde‘d its income tax returns for 1999 and 2002. For the year ended December 31, 1999,
the overpaid income tax of about B1,126 million was set up as an asset and offset against the
extraordmary loss.of £24,943 million (see Note 1). For the year ended December 31,2003
and 200? the computed current provision for income tax represents. MCIT. The amendment
of i income tax returns for December 31, 2002 resulted to an additional overpayment of i income
tax of about P202 million, which increased the total overpayment for the year ended -
December 31, 2002 to R495 million. As of December 31, 2002, total overpayment of income
tax ammlmted to #1,621 million. As of December 31, 2003, remaining prepaid income tax
amountcg to 1,353 million. Prepaid income taxes estimated to be applied the following year
amountuﬁg to P298 million in 2003 and P268 million in 2002 are shown as part of “Other -
current assets” account (see Note 13). Remaining balance is presented as part of “Other -
noncurrent assets” account (see Note 9). The Parent Company has a contingent asset ‘for
ooverpaid income taxes for the years 1994 t6 1998 and 2000 to 2001 estimated at -

P7,119 million. The Parent Company has filed its claim for the recovery of the excess income
taxes for the said taxable years. The Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) has xssued thc letters :
of authonity for the examination of the Parent. Company s books dunng the sard
mcludmg subrmsswn of the docurncnts " , A

As dxsclo.‘e»ed in Note 2 pnor to the sC demswn, the proviswn for income: tax presented in the o
'statements of income was segregated into utifity and non-utility operations of the Parexft oo
Company Startmg 2003, provision for income tax is no Ionger segregated. A

The components of the Company s deferred tax assets and habxlmes follow:

Parent Company - Consohdated
‘ 2002 .. 2002 - 2001
(As restated - (As restated -  (As restated -
see Notes | see Notes 1 see Notes 1
2003 and 2) . 2003 and 2) and 2)
‘ (Amounts in Millions)
Current: ‘ ,' .
Deferred income tax assets: -
Allowa‘nce for probable disallowances ' :
of receivables . B523 BS525 PS23 £525 B-
Allowance for doubtful accounts 511 - 506 564 s33 418
MCIT 176 171 186 182 . 8-
Allowance for inventory obsolcscencc " 66 . 71 66 8
NOLCO - - 760 ) | 784 22
Others .83 19 86 19 255
- ‘ 1,364 - 2047 1461 2,109 M
Less-valuation allowance 94 60 52

P1,364 ?2,(}47 1,367 #2049 659
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Parent Company Consolidated
2002 2002 2001
{As restated - {As restated - (As restated -
see Notes | seeNotes1  see Notes |
2003 and 2) 2003 and 2) " and2)
" (Amounts in Millions) .
Noncurrent: '
Defeljred income tax assets; - o
NOLCO - B t P180 £230 P366
MCIT . o - - 44 34 17
Allowance for decline in value of ' . .
*. condominium units - - 39 .60 4
Unfmnded pension cost and A S ) o
unamomzedpastsemeecost - - 8 . 4 - 13
. Allowance for doubtful accounts - - 6 T2 1
Others . - —— % . - 106 66
\ . ' - = 367 446 467
Less: Deferred tax liabilities S ’ ' : ‘
Capxtahzed interest - - 124 134 145
Others : - - - 64 31 95
| - - ‘188 165 240
' - - 171 281 227
Less valuation allowance - « - - . 9% 210 . 110
: L N B~ P80 B71 P117
.~ Parent Company and Conébhda:ed 4
2003 2002 2001
. . S (Amaunl: -in Mﬂw
Deferred i mcome £ax « noneum _ 4 o
Defeﬁed tax liabilities: . . . S . -
Depremanon nethod diﬁbrential - #2951 R0 2479
Capltahzed duties; taxes and interest deducted in. advance B 1,013 1,050
Capnahzed interest 851 866 - 864
Net bbok value of capxtahzed/reahzed forelgn exchangc loss g 271 - 130 . - 156
\ : : 5,082 . 4,714 4,549
Lessdcferredtaxassees ' R : . : . .
Provisions and others - s . 2,017 - 1,187 - - 809
' £3,065 P3,527 £3,740

The recon\ciliation of income tax on pretax income computed at the statutory income tax rate
to provision for (benefit from) income tax as shown in the statements of income is shown

below:
Parent Company Consolidated '
2003 2002 2003 2002 2001
(Amounts in Millions)
Income tax computed at statutory tax rate - R447 (®1,854) - P472 ®1,891) BS83
Income tax effects of: ' :
Depreciation on appraisal increase 223 318 225 38 370
Equity in net (eamnings) losses of investees (120) 85 (66) © (98) (194)
Interest income subjected to a lower final . . :
tax rate ) (135) ain - (141) (164) (166)
Nondeductible interest expense 64 53 .67 81 - 82
Nondeductible expenses 46 83 46 83 -
Change in valuation allowance and others (36) (5) {98) 312 163
: P489 (R1,431) P505 (R1,359) P838
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As of December 31, 2003, the Parent Company and its subsidiaries have NOLCO and MCIT -
that can be claimed as dcducnons from future taxable income and as deductions from tax due,
respecti ve]y, as follows:

&,
&
'?Cq

Parent Company .- Consolidated -

Year Incurred Expiry Date . NOLCO MCIT NOLCO MCIT
. . ‘ Amounts in Millions ‘
2000 | 2004 T S P71 P13
2002 2005 : 2,375 171 2,407 191 .
- 2003 - - 2006 : - .- 5 10 26
‘ ‘ o 2375 _ 176. 3,188 . 230
Less NOLCO applied ‘against regular taxable income - 2,375 . 2529 -
\ - p PI76 R6S9 $230

NOLCO applied as-deduction from normal taxable income arnounted to ?2 ,529 lmlhon in
2003 (?2‘375 million for Parent Company) and $£23 million in 2002 Expired MCIT '
amounting to P18 million was written oﬂ' during the’ year.

|

b. Franchise Tax

Based on the March 20, 2003 Decision on ERC Case Nos. 2001-646 and 2001-900 on the
Parent Company’s consolidated petitions, franchise tax should be identified as a separate line
item on th‘e customers’ bill and computed as a percentage of the sum of all charges except’
taxes and the universal charge. Prior to the unbundling of charges which was implemented in
June 2003‘ ﬁ'anch]se taxcs were computed by mulup}ymg gross re.ce:pts by thc ﬁ'anchme tax

ate. | -

The Parent Company has a funded, noncontnbutory defined beneﬁt renrement plan covermg A
substantially all of its permanent employees. The fund is held in trust by the Board of Trustees of ~
* the MPF. . - : ' R

On May 23, 2003, the Parent Company implemented a Special Retirement and Separation
‘Program (SRSP). The actuarial valuation was updated to give effect to the SRSP. Additional
expense recognized by the Parent Company as a result of the SRSP amounted to 2125 million ;
shown as part of “Operations and mamtenance-Salanes, wages and employee benefits” account in
the 2003 statement of income (see Note 22). -

Basedona valu ation by an independent actuary as of June 30, 2003 for the Parent Company, total
present value of retirement obligations amounted to £16,402 million while the fair value of the
plan assets amounted to £3,777 million. The unfunded present value of pension benefits
amounted to 12,625 million. The principal actuarial assumptions used to determine retirement
benefits were an investment yield of 9.50% and salary increases of 7.26% to 9.67%. Annual
contributions to|the retirement plan consist of payment covering the current service cost plus
payments toward funding the actuarial accrued liability. Retirement expense amounted to

2,400 million, 1,142 million, and ®1,142 million in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively

(see Note 22). Actuarial valuations are updated every three years.




latest actuan

/ YN MaeaSte 5
"~
r""

@ l@ N@ 82 3237 @ i" M{IBHHBLAGUNZAD'

g “'.
L MAR 242004
@0 S
-45- '9@40 RECEIVEDR,D@
| OF INTERNAL

" Rockwell d1d not update its actuarial valuation since January 1, 1998. As of January 1, 1998, the

1al valuation date, the actuarial present value of benefits amounted to P14 million,

The principal assumptions used to determine pension benefits were a discount rate of 9% and a
salary increase of 10%. Rockwell’s management plans to update their actuarial valuation in 2004.

Retirement|e

xpense charged to operations amounted to B3 million each in 2003, 2002 and 2001.

MIESCOR fhas a funded, noncontributory, defined beneﬁt retirement plan covering substantially
all of its employees. Total retirement expense amounted to B2 million each in 2003 and 2002 and
P5 million in 2001. At October 31, 2001, the latest valuation date, actuarial present value of -
retirement benefits amounted to 46 million. The fair value of plan assets amounted to

P16 million.
discount rate

The principal actuarial assumptions used to determine retirement benefits were a
of 10% and salary increases of 8%. Actuarial valuat:ons are made every three years.

. CIS has a funded, contributory retirement plan covering all of its employees. As of July 1, 2003,
the actuarial present value of retirement benefits amounted to #16 million. The fair value of the
plan assets amounted to P12 million. The principal actuarial assumptions used to determine
retirement beneﬁts were a discount rate of 9% per year, compounded annually, and salary increase
rate of 7% Actuarial valuations are made at least every three years. :

The retirement expense ona consolxdated basxs amounted to B2, 404 HlllllOn, £1,144 mllhon and
R1,150 xmllmn in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respecnvely

25.

Fmancxal Instruments

The Parent Campany has ]ong-term tmseeured ﬂoatmg rate dollar debt totallng USS 152 mtﬂion. -

The Parent Ct

ompany entered into various interest rate swap agreements generalily to swap its

floating rate dollar obligations to fixed rate amounts for notional amounts covering 91% of the
~ total unsecured dollar debt. These agreements have the same matuntles as the hedged long-term .

debt.

The interest rate swap agteemen’ts for the US$72 'ntillion debt consist of a zero’-cost collar that

subsequently

limits the Parent Company’s interest rate exposure to between 5.98% and 8% and a fixed rate
_swap of 5. 92% for the period January 19, 2001 to July 19, 2002. The Parent Company

Qmended the fixed rate swap to a forward rate structure which reduced the fixed rate

to 3.3% for the period July 19, 2002 to April 19, 2003 and to 3.336% for the interest period from
April 19, 2003 up to termination date.

. The interest rate swap agreements for the US$80 million debt consist of a -stmcture which fixed
the interest mt‘e at 6.37% for as long as the 6-month USD LIBOR is less than 7.5% and a subsidy
of 1.13% if the 6-month USD LIBOR is greater than or equal to 7.5%, and a structure which fixed

-the interest rate at 6.425% with a trigger at 7.5%. In 2001, the Parent Company entered into a

forward rate structure which overlays the trigger swap and reduced the fixed rate to 5.675% for the
period April 3, \ 2001 to April 3,2002. The fixed rate was subsequently reduced to 4.58% effective
April 3, 2002 to April 3, 2003 and to 4.8816% for the interest period from April 3, 2003 up to

termination date
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The swaps with fixed rates of 3.336% and 4.8816% were sxmultaneously pre-terminated at a L net |
realized loss of US$93,000 last February 2004. The gross realized gains and losses on these: pre-

terminated swaps will be amortized over the term of the respective hedged loans

The Parent Company entered into a JPX-USD amomzmg mterest rate swap with notional amount
of JP¥5.532 million where the Parent Company receives a fixed rate of 5.7% and pays 6-month
UsSD LIBOR plus spread. In January 2003, this swap was pre-terminated at a realized gain of
US$450 000 Said unrealized gain is amortxzed over the term of the hedged unde.rlymg loan. -

The mterest\ rate differential, which represents the present value of the excess of interest cost under
these mterest rate structures over current market interest rates amounted to £353 million and

© P738 mxlhon as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Suchamount is not included in the -
determination of net income undcr the current accounting practlce ,

For the USS$152 million debt, the welghted average interest rate at drawdown was 7 83% that -
included 6-Month USD LIBOR plus spread. Information and analysis of the financial market at
that time shc\;wed a bias toward increasing US Dollar interest rates. Management therefore,
entered into the interest rate structures described above to ensure that the Parent Company’ s

. effective mterest rates on its long-term debt do not excced 7%.

26. Contmgent Llabxhtlos

a. The Parent. Company was' assessed bya Ioca] govemment for deﬂexency franchzsc tax. In the
" opinion. o:f management and its legal counsel, the Parent Company has strong legal grounds to
contest the assessments. In addmon, the Parent Company 35 aliowed to recover tbe ﬁanehw:

* ‘tax based on the unbundling.

The Parent Company is contmgently hable for habxlmes arising ﬁ'om lawsmts or clalms ﬁled
by third pames including labor related cases, which are pendzng decision by the courts, the
outcome of which are not presently determinable. In the opinion of management and its legal
counsel, the eventual habxhty from these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material
effect on the parent company and consohdated financial statements. :

b. MIESCOR and RockWell have contingent liabilities with respect to clauns lawsuits and taxes
which are \elther pending decision by the courts or under negotiation, the outcome of which are
not presen‘tly determinable. Management, after consultations with outside counsels, beheves
that the probable resolution of these issues w111 not matenally affect the Company s ﬁnancml

position and results of operations.

c. Addiﬁonal claims of a contractor of Rockwell with respect to the development and
construction of the condominium units against Rockwell were resolved in November 2001.
Addmonal\ amounts to be paid to the contractor have been reflected in the 2001 consolidated.
financial statements as a charge to cost of real estate and al]ocated to remaining unsold units

for income| tax purposes.
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27. Significant Contracts and Commitments
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Si gnificant contracts and commitments include:

a. ‘Parcnt Company

Nl\’C
On November 21, 1994; the Parent Company entered into a 10-year Contract for the Sale

“of Electnc:ty (CSE) with the government-owned firm, NPC, commencing on January 1,

1995. One of the provisions of RA No. 9136 is for NPC to submit to ERC for approval
Tra‘nsmon Supply Contracts (TSC) with distribution utilities before year-end 2001. Under
the said law, utilities having TSCs with NPC may nominate their contract demand. The
Parent Company, in a September 8, 2001 letter, signified its intention to enter into a TSC
wnth NPC. NPC did not respond to the letter. Instead, it assessed the Parent Company
startmg January 2002 with a monthly penalty (billing adjustment) based on the contracted
vo]umes under the CSE which should have been already superseded by the TSC. The -
Parent Company in a letter dated February 20, 2002 cited its reasons for its refusal to pay
the penalty and-also served notice that 1t is exercxsmg its nght to- termmate as prowdcd in

, the CSE

|

The bxl]mg adjustments amounted to 230,413 million and ®14,685 mx]hon as of
Decembcr 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The disputed amount pertains to-the.

.' dxffercnce between the contracted capacity and energy and the-actual capacity and energy |

ofﬁake from NPC. In addition, NPC has charged the Parent Company interest for unpaid-
penaltaes amounting to B2,743 million and 797 million as of December 31, 2003 and -

- 2002, respectively. In the Settlement Agreement desctibed below, in the event: the Parent

Company will be obliged to pay these amounts, these charges shall form part of the Parent
Company s purchased power cost. ‘The Parent Company did not pay the disputed amount -

- as the grounds for which the penalty may be imposed did not arise, among other reasons.

The ITarent Company did not accrue for these dxsputed bills and interest chargcs and the
corresponding receivable from its customers.

Meanwhlle on March 25, 2003, the Parent Company served a written demand to NPC for
payment of claims amounting to 8,300 million, for the following: NPC’s failure to
prowole timely transmission service to the Parent Company’s IPPs, recovery of the 50%
pena]ty for excess imbalance charges, imbalance charge adjustments, back-up energy .
rates, no-credlt over-deliveries, NPC’s failure to turn over directly-connected customers to
the Parent Company, and increase in the cost of QPPL’s transmission line caused by the

delay i in the commissioning of QPPL’s power plant.

' The Parent Company has entered into mediation talks with NPC to resolve and settle the

outstandmg issues arising from the CSE. ‘Mediators have been appointed by the two
parties and discussions were undertaken between March to June 2003
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‘ As a resuit of the mediation discussions, the Parent Company signed a Settlement

Agreemcnt with NPC on July 15, 2003. Under the Settlement Agreement, the Parent
Company shall pay NPC $27,500 million, representing the value of the difference A
bctwecn the aggregate contracted energy for the years 2002 to 2004 and the total enérgy
the Parent Company has already bought from January 2002 until April 2003, subject to
adjustment from the date of signing and the energy that the Parent Company will purchase -
from NPC for the rest of 2003 and 2004. On the other hand, NPC shall credit the Parent:
Co}‘npany for transmission delays as well as for energy corresponding to NPC’s sales to
duectly connected customers located in the Parent Company’s existing franchise areas,
totahng £7,500 million. The net payable of the Parent Company to NPC amounted to _

F2q 000 million which the Parent Company expects to pass on to its customers (being

' generanon costs) and settle with NPC based on the agreed terms of payment. While the

schedules of repayment show R1,350 million for 2003 and 3, 350 million for 2004 as
mdzcated in the annexes to the Settlement Agreement, these amounts have to be revised

‘ from the time the settlement becomes effective. In the event the Parent Company defaults

in makmg the payments based on the agreed schedules, NPC may charge interest on the

, dehnquent sum or sums in accordance with the terms of the CSE

- The Settlement Agreement also prvades 'for among ot’hers;the fol‘lowing- '

. Ifthe Parent Company sources from NPC less than the basehne quantity for a
arncular billing period, there will be an upward adjustment to the settlement amount .
due for the billing period computed at P1.51 per kilowatt-hour multiplied by the
shortfa]l between the baseline quantity and the actual Parent Company-off take, The
“baseline quantity for 2003 and 2004 totalled 12, 730 million knlmﬁ-hmﬂ's and 13 600_ '
million’ hlowaﬂ-hom, r:specnvely ‘ o . _ '

| It‘ the Parent Company sources ﬁ'om NPC miore than the baseline quantlty for the '
particular billing period, there will be a corresponding reduction in the settlement
amount equivalent to ®1.51 per kwh multiplied by the excess off take from NPC

NPC warrants that it shall reduce the nommatton of i 1ts capacxty to accommodate the
'Parent Company’s IPPs at the contracted minimum energy quantity (MEQ) level,
whxch shall effectively amend the existing transmission agreements between NPC and
the Parent Company for QPPL and FGPC, and which will also be stipulated in the
transmission a greement to be executed between TransCo and FGP Corp. '

» The Parent Company shall pass on to its customers the ﬁnancxal benefit of its TPPs

runhmg at the mutually agreed levels, which was estimated at £0.25 per kilowatt-hour
‘ (usmg March 2003 supply month figures). Notwithstanding the pass-through
character of the £20,050 million settlement liability of the Parent Company, the
Settlement Agreement is expected to result to the lowering of rates to consumers.

. In the event the Parent Cornpany purchases electricity beyond the aggregate of the

prevaxlmg respective MEQ levels of QPPL, FGPC and FGP Corp., and the baseline
quantities from NPC, the Parent Company shall purchase such additional electricity
requ~irements from any supplier, preferably from NPC, in a manner that results in
lower costs to consumers, as determined by ERC.
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The Settlement Agreemcnt shall take effect upon approval by the ERC for which both
parnes shall file a petition with the ERC. On November 24, 2003, the Parent Company
and NPC filed at the ERC their respective applications for the approval of the Settlement
Agreement The followmg day, the Parent Company ﬁled a motion for the consolidation
of both cases. :

On March 1, 2004, the Parent Company, TransCo and NPC entered into an Amendatory
stgatch Agreement whereby NPC warrants to reduce and/or accept a reduction of the
nommated schedule of its IPPs to accommodate the Parent Company’s own nominated
scheldule of its IPPs and ensure the dispatch of these IPPs to thelr respectzve MEQ levels
up to nudmght of December 31, 2004. '

In the event ERC disapproves the Settlement Agreement, both Parties shall revert to their

respectwe positions before the mediation. If this happens, the remedy ava:lable to both

 parties, pursuant to the 10-year contract, is arbxtratlon

Pendmg approval by the ERC, NPC contifues.to bill the Parent Company forthe
dxffetence between the actual and contracted off takes whereas the Parent Company
mamtams its posmon of not recognizing the liability. '

.Tota] purchased power from NPC. amounted to P36,895 m]lhon, B54,602 million and |

- B79, 553 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectwely

Prior to the implementation of NPC’s unbundled charges on September 26, 2002, NPC S '

. charges were not segregated between genemﬁon and tmnsrmssmn charges

|
TmnsCo

: Pursuant to Section 8 of RA No. 9136, TransCo was created and assumed the electncal

transmission function of NPC

Total blllmgs ﬁ'om TransCo as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 amounted to -

- P17, 907 million and P4,586 million, respectively, representing charges for transmission,

iii.

ancﬂlax\'y, and other services starting September 26, 2002 upon the effectivity of the

' unbundled rate structure.

|

FGPC and FGP Corp.

The Department of Energy (DOE) in December 1994 asked the Parent Company to
provide the 1,500 MW market for the expected 3,000 MW output of the Camago
(Ma]ampaya) gas field. The accelerated development of the field was in line with the
govemment s energy self-reliance program and called for the simultaneous development
of the ﬁeld the construction of the pipeline infrastructure, and the setting up of the
downstream facilities (essentially gas-ﬁred power plants) so that gas is landed in Luzon to
supply a 2,000 MW market by 2000 and an additional 1,000 MW market by 2002. After a
series of exchanges of communications, subject to certain conditions on the matter, the
Parent Company in a letter to the DOE reiterated its commitment to absorb the 1,500 MW
output of the Camago (Malampaya) field and nominated First Gas Holdings, Inc., a related

party of the Parent Company, as the developer of the entire 1,500 MW capacxty
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- OnMarch 14, 1995 and January 9, 1997, the Parent Company entered into power |

purchase agreements (Agreernents) with independent power producers (IPPs), FGPC and
F Gl\’ Corp. Under the terms of the Agreements, these IPPs are committed to sell and
deliver electric power and energy to the Parent Company and the Parent Company is
cornnntted to buy electric power and energy from them, subject to certain terins and
conditions specified therein. The Agreements shall individually terminate on the date of

the 25th anniversary of the commercial operation dates of the power plants of these IPPs o

" The Parent Company entered into a Substanon Interconnectlon Agreement with NPC and

F GPC for: (a) the construction, ownership, operation and maintenance of a dedicated

35-lolometer transmission line from the power plant of FGPC to the NPC substation;

. (b) the interconnection of the power plant to the NPC Grid System, and (c) the receipt and

dehvery of energy and capacity from the power plant of FGPC to the Parent Company’s
point of receipt. Similarly, the Parent Company entered into an Interim Interconnection

: Agreement with NPC and FGP Corp. whereby NPC will be responsible for the delivery

and tr\ansm]ssxon of all energyand capacity from the power plant of FGP Corp to the

Parent Company’s point of receipt. .

iv.

Total purchased power from both FGPC and FGP Corp. amounted to P42 098 mﬂhon.,
P25, 579 million and 213,772 million for the years ended December 31 2003, 2002, and

2001, respectwely

QPPL

The. Parent Cornpany entered intoa Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with QPPL en
August 12, 1994 and amended the same ori December 1, 1996, Under the terms of the

_amended Agreement, QPPL is committed to-sell. and deliver electric power and energy te

the Parent Company and the Parent Company:is committed to buy electric power and

. energy | from QPPL, subject to certain terms and conditions spemﬁed therein. The

Agreernent shall terminate on the date of the 25th anmversary of t.he commerclal opei'atzon.
date of the power plant (Plant) of QPPL - .

The Parent Company also entered into a Transmission Line Agreement (TI..A) with QPPL
on June |13, 1996 (amended on December 1, 1996). Pursuant to.the PPA and the TLA,
QPPL is responsible for obtaining all necessary rights-of-way for, and for the siting,

- design, construction, operation and maintenance of the Transmission Line while the

Parent Company is obligated to pay all costs and expenses incurred by QPPL in
COmectlpn with the siting, design and construction, operation and maintenance of the
Transrmssnon Line (including unforeseen cost increases, such as those due to new

regulatlons or taxes) through payment of penodxc transmission charges.

The term of the TLA will extend to the duration of the term of the PPA, commencing on
the date of execution of the TLA and expiring on the 25th anniversary of the commercial

‘ Operat:on‘s date. The term of the TLA is subject to renewal on mutually acceptable terms

in con)un\cnon with the renewal of the term of the PPA. Under the TLA, the Parent

_ Company is obligated to make a Monthly Capital Cost Recovery Payment and a Monthly

Operating Payment to QPPL.
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In x\mid 2001, the Parent Company and QPPL were in discussions regarding the
amf:ndment of certain provisions of the Agreement. The changes to the Agreement
pn{nmly relate to the reallocation of risks relating to the performance and dispatch of the
Plant of QPPL. Pursuant to the amended terms of the Agreement, the Parent Company
wxll‘ in general, bear risks relating to the dispatch of the Plant of QPPL while QPPL, in’
general, will bear risks relating to the technical performance of its Plant. On February 22,
2002 the Parent Company and QPPL signed Amendment No. 3 to the Agrecment
(Amendment No. 3). o

In addmon to Amendment No. 3, the Parent Company and QPPL signed on February 22
2002 a Settlement and Release Agreement, which provides for the release of both parties

from existing claims, known and unknown, relating to parnes past pcrformance or

nonﬁerfonnance under the Agreement

Although the Parent Company and QPPL have sxgned Amendment No. 3 and the
Sett]ement and Release Agreement, the effectivity of the same is subject to the approval of
the ERC the lenders of QPPL and thc BOD of thc respecnvc parties.

Ina letter dated. Febmary 26, 2003, the Parent Company informed QPPL that it is
contemplatmg to withdraw the petition for approval of Amendment No. 3 from the ERC"

due tﬂ’ certain concerns raised by the ERC. On March 4, 2003, the Parent Company fileda
Monon to withdraw the petition.- Further, negotiations were held by the parties where the
Parent Company sought additional concessions. The parties are in the process of drafting

. an agreement for-concessions that may be ﬁnaliy agreed -apon, Thls agreement wﬂl also
‘be subrmttcd to ERC for approval.

Total power purchased from QPPL amounted to #13,605 million (‘mc!ué*mg transmission
line cqsts of B751 million) #11,556 million (including transmission line costs of
#707 nnlhon) and £10,254 million (including transmission line costs of 8671 mxlhon) for

the years ended Decernber 31, 2003 2002 and 2001, respecnvely

. Duracom Mo‘blle Power Company ('Dm'ac‘:om)

The Parent Company entered into a power supply agreement with Duracom on
Septerqbcr 15, 1993 that will expire on February 25, 2006, the tenth anniversary of the
commencement of commercial operations of Duracom’s power plant. Under the
agreemlent the Parent Company contracted for 108 MW of power on a dispatchable basis.
On February 26, 1998, an additional 108 MW was contracted from Duracom. The Parent
Compaﬁy currenitly sources approximately 1% of its electricity requirements from

Duracom.

- On November 21, 2003, the ERC provisidnally approved a nc‘ﬁv rate for Duracom which is

equal th the weighted average rate to the Parent Company (total of generation and
TransCo charges) of NPC, FGPC, FGP Corp. and QPPL. This new rate took effect in the

supply month of December 2003. Previously, Duracom’s rate was equal to NPC’s selling

rate to the Company.
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Details of purchased power follow: €4U B‘E INTERNALE (’“ ’
2003 2002 2001
- (Amounss in Millions)
NPC and TransCo - | 54,802 BS9,188  $79,553
FGPC and FGP Corp. ' 42,098 125,579 13,772 .
QPPL , . 13,605 11,556 10,254 -
Duracom and others . - - 1,079 . 3,659 3,653
\ ~P111,584 -~ P99,982 P107,232

Total co\mrmtments for the purchase of power from FGPC, FGP Corp and QPPL, mcludmg '
transmission ]me fees, is estimated as follows ' ,

. o Minimum Economic . o Equivalent

Year ' : Quantity (MEQ) ' . Amount*®

‘ (In Million Kilowan-Hours) , . (Tn Millions)

2004 : Co- 14,327 - g - . 67,929

2005 ‘ - 14297 . ‘ 67,797
2006 . . . 14,297 , ' . 67,797 -

2007 14,297 . 61,197

2008 & onwards - . 246,774 . 1,168,600

. ‘Basadon MEQrate: -

On January 7, 2004 the Parent Company s EPP Independent Rcwew Cormmttee md
FGPC/FGP Corp. signed the Amendment to the Power Purchase Agreement: (Amend:nem)

: between thc Parent Company and FGPC/FGP Corp. Coneessions with immediate value
include FGPC shouldering’ local business and community taxes, while conditional concessxons

include méreasmg discounts on excess generation, paying higher penalties for non-

' performanée and until 2011, not charging the Parent Company the capacity fee and fixed

operations Lsmd maintenance fee for energy delivered beyond the contracted amount but within -

' the 90% capac1ty quota. The signed Amendment to the Purchase Power Agreement w111 be

submitted to the ERC for approval.

The'unrccoycrable purchased power costs shown separately as part of “Other income
(charges)” in the statements of income relate to systems loss in excess of the cap allowed

under the “Anu-Pllferage of Electricity and Theft of Electric Transmission Lines/Materials
Act of 1994‘” (RA No. 7832) of 9.5% which the Parent Company is not allowed to recover

from its customers These amounts are shown separately to determine the operating income 6f

.- the Parent Company for purposes of computing the RORB.
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Rockwell entered into the following contracts related to the construction of “Manansala”
condormmum project:

b. Rockwell

. Superstructurc works Wlth Summa Kumagai Inc. (SKI) and Flrst P}nhppme Balfour
Beafty, Inc. (FPBB), a subsidiary of FPHC, amounting to a fixed fee of 21,680 million,
mch‘nsxve of all local taxes, overhead, cost of labor and materials and all other costs .
necessary for the proper execution of the works. Construction works started in April 2003

and ‘expected date of completion is in June 2005.

*  Substructure works with other contractors amounting to a fixed fee of 113 million.
These were started in October 2002 and completed in March 2003. '

28. Basm Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic earnmgs (loss) per common share is calculated by dividing the net income for the penod
- attributable to common shareholders [net earings (loss) for the period less dividends on preferred
shares] by the wexghted average numbcr of common shares outstandmg durmg the penod

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings (loss) per share, the net income (loss) attributable.

to common sh\areho]ders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potentzal common shares. arising from the exercise of share options. The
number of common shares is the weighted average number of common shares plus the weaghted -
average number of common shares which would have been issued on the conversion of all the

dilutive potential common shares into common shares. Share optians are deemed to have been
converted into common shares on the date when the ophons were granted.

Eamings (Loss) ,
: . 2002 2001

(Asrestated -  (Asrestated -
see Notes | see Notes |
: ' . : 2003 . and2) and 2)
’ ) ‘- ' : (Amounts in Millions)
Income (loss) from ordinary activities #907 - (P4,364) #],352
Cash dividends on| preferred stock (83) (74) .- - (74)
Eamnings (loss) including deprecnanon on appraxsal increase (a) - 824 (4,438) S ,278

Depreciation on appraisal increase and share in depremanon on
appraisal increase of subsidiaries and associate
(see Notes 7 and 22) ‘ 965 993 1,157
Eamings (loss) from ordinary activities excluding depreciation on

appraisal increase (b) P1,789 - (P3,445) R2,435
Net incorne (]oss)‘ . - #907 (P28,181) P1,352
Cash dividends on preferred stock . L (83) 74 a4
Eamnings (loss) mcludmg depreciation on appraisal increase (c) 824 (28,255) 1,278

Depreciation on appralsal increase and share in depreciation on
appraisal i mcre‘ase of subsidiaries and associate ,
{see Notes 7 and 22) 965 993 . - 1,157

Eamnings (loss) excluding depreciation on appraisal increase (d) £1,789 #27,262) 2435
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Shares-
- 2003 2002 2001
Weighted average common shares - beginning- 999,261,461 1,006311,294  1,006,311294 .
Cancelled subscnglons in 2002 - (7,049,833) . -
Weighted average common shares - basic (e) 999,261,461 999,261,461  1,006,311,294
Number of shares under option 12,090,490 12,090,490 6,632,751
Weighted avenge number of shares that would o o
have been|issued at fair value '(9,738,812) (35,676,856) ~  (11,308,062)
Adjusted weighted average common shares - diluted (f) 1,001,613,139 975,675,095  1,001,635983
Basic Per Share Amounts .
-7 2002 .. 2001
(Asrestated - (As restated -
‘ see Notes 1 ‘see Notes 1
- : . 2003 and 2) and 2)
Income (loss) from ordinary activities: T :
Including deprecnanon on appraisal increase (a/e) - P0.825 (R4.442) $1.270
Excludmg_eprecnanon on appraisal increase (b/e) 1.791 - (3.448). 2.420
Net income (loss) s : S -
Including depreciation on appraisal increase (c/e) #0.825 #28.283) - - 81270
Excludlvgi deprecxanon on appraisal increase (d/e) 1.791 (27.289) 2.420
Diluted Per S}\nare Amounts
\ 2003 2002 " 2001
Net mcome(]mss)l : T ' '
" Including deprocraﬂon on appmsal increase (alt) ' PO.82S @328 PIJ?G :
*_Exeluding depreciation on appraisal increase (b/f) '1.787 {27.289) 2. 420

The effect of the exercise under the Employee Stock Ownership Plan [see Note 14(b)) is anti-
dilutive for the periods ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 Accordmgly, diluted EPS is the same

as basic EPS

29. Other Matters

a. The Parent Company is alloWed to recover fbreign exchange losses on foreign currency-
denommated loans through adjustments in customers’ bills in accordance with CERA II

(ICERA under the unbundled rate structure).
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Presented below are the Parent Company s foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and
habllmcs as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, translated at the exchange rates of B55.586 and
P53, 254 per US$1, R0.5188 and P0.4428 per JP¥ 1 and $69.3779 and P55.1136 per €1,

respectxvely

-

_ 2003 ' 2002

' » ‘ ' Peso . Peso
\ ) Foreign Currency ‘ Equivalent Equivalent

: , Japapese Yen Euro US Dollar ) :
Monetary assets ‘ ¥~ S 5 | " $23 £1,318 £3,001
Monetary liabilities 7,080 8 - sss 36,788 39,026
Net | - ¥7,080 €7 5’5'62 #35.470 $36,025

9136, the “Electric Power Industry Reform Act (Act) of 2001 was signed into law
on June 8, 2001 and took effect on June 26, 2001. RA No. 9136 provides for the privatization -
of NPC and the restructuring of the electric power industry. The Implementing Rules and
Regu]anons (IRR) were approved by the Jomt Congressional Power Comnussnon on’
February 27, 2002

RA No. 9136 and the IRR impact the industry as a Whole and the Parent Company in ,
partxcu]ar Other provisions of RA No. 9136 and the IRR are: (a) distribution utilities, such as -

- the Parerh Company, will provide open and nondiscriminatery access to its distribution

systems »pthm three years from the effectivity of the Act, subject to certain conditions
precedent, (b) distributors shall be allowed to.recover stranded contract costs, subject to

“review and verification by the ERC for fairness and reasonableness; (¢) NPC and d:sm“butoes

shall have ﬁled theu proposedunbundled eharges wzthm smmonths from the Actls
"Sepa

rates to be prowded by NPC and passed on by-dxstrfbutors startmg August 2001 ® the power ‘
to grant electric distribution franchises shall be vested solely in Congress, thereby repealing or
amendmg\Secnon 43 of Presidential Decree 269 (The National Electrification Decree);

(g) NPC shall segregate its subtransmission assets for disposal to qualified distributors within
two years; from the effectivity of the Act; (h) NPC shall file with the ERC within six months
from the e\ffecnvny of the Act the TSCs negotiated with distributors; and (i) distribution
compames may engage in related business, provided up to 50% of the income from the related
business shall be used to lower wheeling charges. The law also empowers the ERC to enfcrce

rules to enc‘:ourage competmon and penalize antl-competmve behavior. -

The ERC has pubhshed its Guxdchnes on the_classxﬁcanon of TransCo s suBtmnsmission
assets on November 5, 2003. This document identifies which subtransmission assets may be
transferred|by TransCo to qualified distn'bution utility companies like the Parent Company.

Also in accordance with RA No. 9136, the DOE promulgated the W“holesale Electric Spot
Market (W'ESM) Rules on June 28, 2002 after being endorsed by the industry participants. In
accordance with the Rules, a Technical Working Group (TWG), in which the Parent Company
isa member was constituted on July 27, 2002 to ensure smooth transition from the :

. promul ganon of the Rules to the actual operation of the WESM. On August 2003, the TWG

endorsed the incorporation of the Philippine Electricity Market Corporation, the entity that
will be in chmrge of the day-to-day operations of the WESM. Meanwhile, on December 5,
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2003, the ERC released the draft Price Determination Methodology (PDM) for the WESM for
commer\lt A public consultation on the PDM was conducted by ERC on Februa:y 12,2004,
Electric Power industry participants, including distribution utility companies, are mandated to
file by the end of 2002 a BSUP for approval by the ERC, pursuant to Section 36 of RA

No. 9136 requiring structural and functional unbundling of business activities of electric
industry participants. The ERC, however, has extended this deadline. On January 29, 2003, -
the ERC released for comments the Business Separation Guidelines which provides the -
framework for the plans to be filed by the industry participants. The Guidelines were finalized
and pubhs]hed by the Commission on November 20, 2003 and took effect on December 5,
2003. Accordmg to the Guidelines, distribution utility companies are reqmred to ﬁle their
proposed BSUPs on or before June 5, 2004 ' :

The Parent Company is in the process of complymg with the provnsmns of RA No. 9136 and

the IRR.
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BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001
SEC Accreditation No. 0012-F

Report of Independent Auditors
On Supplementary Schedules

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Manila Electric Conlpany

Lopez Building
Ortigas Avenue, Pasig City

We have audited in|accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the financial statements of
Manila Electric Cornpany included in this Form 17-A and have issued our report thereon dated
March 5, 2004. Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as|a whole. The schedules listed in the Index to Financial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management and are presented for
purposes of complymg with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rule 68.1 and are not part of

~ the basic financial statements These schedules have been sub_]ected to the audmng procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state in all material respects the
financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. '

/Mw 'fﬂqut v lo
M. V.G.CRUZ
Partner
.CPA Certificate No, 83687
SEC Accreditation No. 0073-A
Tax Identification No. 102-084-744
PTR No. 7012976
January 5, 2004
Makati City

March 5, 2004
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MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

FORM 17-A, Item 7
December 31, 2003

Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Management's Responsibility for Flnancnal Statements 1
Report of lndependelnt Public Accountants 2-3
Consolidated Balanee Sheets as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 4-5
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31,

2003, 2002 and 2001 ‘ 6
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity as of December 31,

2003, 2002 and 2001 78
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended ‘December 31,

2003, 2002 and 2001 9410

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ' 11

Supplementary Schedules
“Report of tndependent Public Accountants on Supplementary Schedules , 57

A. Marketable Securities - (Current Marketable Equity Securities and Other

- Short-term Cash Investments) - .
B. Amounts Recenvable from Directors, Offi cers Employees, Related Parttes :
and Principal Stockholders (Other than Affiliates) 58
C. Non-Current Manketable Equity Securities, Other Long-term Investments and ‘
Other tnvestments : *
D. Indebtedness to Unconsotidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates *
E. Intangible Assets - Other Assets - 59
" F. Long-term Debt \ : ‘ »
G. Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties (Long-term Loans from ' _
Related Compames ‘ ' *
H. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers . *
|. Capital Stock 60

* These schedules, whi‘ch are required by SRC Rule 68,1, have been omitted because
they are either not r‘equired, not applicable or the information required to be presented
is included in the Company's consolidated financial statements.
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